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ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Administration Building 

451 Lincoln Avenue Orange, New Jersey 07050 
Tel: (973) 677-4190 Fax: (973) 673-0535 

February 25, 2019 

The Honorable President and Members 
Board of Education and Citizens of the 
City of Orange Township Public Schools 
County of Essex, New Jersey 

Dear Board Members and Citizens: 

INTRODUCTION 

Website:http//www.orange.kl2.nj.us 

Ronald Lee 
Interim Superintendent of Schools 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Orange Township Public Schools (the "District") for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and 
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the District. 
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and 
is reported in a manner designed to fairly present the financial position of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information at June 30, 2018 and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable for the year then ended. All disclosures 
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included. 

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered accountants. 
Samuel Klein and Company, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has performed an audit of our 
financial statements and issued an unmodified ("clean") opinion on the District's financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. The report of the independent auditors is located at the front of the financial section of this 
report. The independent audit of the District's financial statements was part of a broader, federally mandated 
"Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single 
Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only the fair presentation of the financial 
statements, but also on the internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on 
internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are 
available in the District's separately issued Single Audit Report. The District also receives a report regarding 
compliance with state programs as required by the State ofNew Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. 

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the report of independent auditors and 
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. 

The MD&A complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. The comprehensive 
annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The 
introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart, a list of consultants, 
accountants and advisors, and a list of principal officials. 
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The financial section includes the basic financial statements, required supplementary information and other 
supplementary information, as well as the auditors' report thereon. The statistical section includes selected 
financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. 

The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey State OMB Circular 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for 
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid ( NJOMB 15-08 )."The single audit section of this report 
include the auditors' report on internal control over financial reporting and compliance and other matters based on 
audit of fmancial statements performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and Government Auditing Standards, the auditors' report on compliance with requirements 
applicable to each major program and on internal control over compliance in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Par 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Award Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey State OMB Circular 15-08, schedules of expenditures of 
federal awards and state financial assistance and related notes thereto, and schedules of findings and questioned 
costs and summary schedule of prior audit findings. 

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES 

The District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB). All funds ofthe District are included in this report. The City of Orange Township, 
Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity and does not have any 
component units and is not considered a component unit of any other governmental unit. 
The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels pre-kindergarten through 
12 (Pre-K-12). These include regular developmental and alternative programs, as well as special education 
for handicapped youngsters. The District completed the 2017-2018 fiscal year with a resident enrollment of 
approximately 5,129 and an average daily enrollment of 5,108 students, which is 120 students more than the 
previous year's average daily enrollment. The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the 
District over the last five (5) years and the projection for two subsequent years. 

Charter School enrolment continues to increase, and the pass-through dollar amount pursuant to NJ 
Department of Education for 2017-18 School year is$ 3,290,512. It is projected that the pass-through dollar 
amount will continue to increase. 

*-Projected 

Average Daily Enrollment 
Percent 

Fiscal 
Year 

*2019-20 
*2018-19 

2017-18 
2016-17 
2015-16 
2014-15 
2012-14 

Average 
Daily 

Enrollment 
5,314 
5,210 

5,108 
5,166 
5,046 
5,154 
4,922 

Change 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
2.00% 
2.00% 

(1.10%) 
2.40% 

(2.09%) 
4.71% 
1.65% 
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2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

The City of Orange Township is in the center ofNew Jersey's industrial corridor, which extends from New York 
City to Philadelphia, and has experienced some of the same developments, which has affected large parts of 
northeastern and central New Jersey in terms of industrial relocation. Both manufacturing and non-manufacturing 
firms have tended, in recent years, to move from the cities large industrial parks located near the interstate 
highways. 

The City of Orange Township area has continuously experienced a period of development and expansion. The 
increasing number of businesses opening and or relocating to the area has resulted in an increase in the 
employment level leading to an increased tax base, both residential and industrial. This expansion is expected to 
continue which suggests that the City of Orange Township area will continue to prosper. As a result of the ongoing 
redevelopments, the school district enrollment has surged this past few years with the influx of new residents into 
Orange Township. The residential developments include but not limited to:-

North Parrow Street Project:- redevelop North Parrow Street, 20-30 town homes. 

Oakwood Avenue Redevelopment Project: - in an effort to rehabilitate the community surrounding the Dr. 
Walter G. Alexander Village, Ora.M.ge Housing Authority acquired several properties on Oakwood Avenue which 
were vacant and dilapidated due to a fire that took place in 2011. The project is completed, and there is a total of 
28 homes available. 

Dr. Walter G. Alexander Village Phase I and Phase II:- The Orange Housing Authority in conjunction with 
the Orange Housing Development Corporation seek to redevelop the Walter G. Alexander public housing 
complex by providing safe and affordable homes for seniors and neighborhood families, while attracting new 
mixed income renters 

Dr. Walter G. Alexander Village Phase III:- Wilson Place and Parrow Street are the locations where WGA 
Village Phase III developments will be built. When completed there will be a total of 42 tax credit units 
available. 

The Dr. Walter G. Alexander Village was originally a public housing complex built in 1952. This site is 3.8-
acres, bounded by Central Place, Parrow Street, Wilson Place and Oakwood A venue. The site now consists of 
48 affordable housing units for seniors and 66 affordable housing family developments. 

South Essex Avenue Urban Renewal Project: - This project will include 64 market moderate-income 
residential units. eight unrestricted and over 10,000 square feet of retail space. 

The City of Orange Township Public Schools operated ten schools during the 2017-18 School year, one high 
school, one middle school, seven elementary schools and one early childhood school. Except for three elementary 
schools rehabilitated between 2004 and 2009, most of the school buildings are over 50 years old. All the school 
buildings have been well maintained and appear to be in good conditions. 

The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) in collaboration with the New Jersey Schools Development 
Authority (NJSDA) have approved and commenced the renovation and addition project to the Cleveland 
Elementary and Orange High Schools. Both renovation and addition projects will include classrooms, 
multipurpose rooms, science and robotics labs, auxiliary gyms and expansion of the existing cafeteria. 
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3. Major Instructional Initiatives (2017-2018) 

The District continued to analyze student data to develop SMART goals that are specific, measurable, 
achievable, relevant, and timely. Utilizing the findings of the school and district data teams, the following 
four goals were established: 

• During the 2017-2018 school year, English Language Arts teachers increased the implementation ofbest 
practices in the New Jersey Student Learning Standards (NJSLS) through Read 180, System 44, iRead, 
Reading Plus, leveled and anchor texts, Experiential Literature, Parent Literacy nights and a Literacy 
Block Party, and increased students achievement by at least 1 0%, as measured by student schedules, lesson 
designs/plans, walk-throughs, instructional rounds, targeted professional development, and analysis of 
formative and summative assessments. 

• During the 2017-2018 school year, mathematics teachers incorporated the mathematical practices as 
outlined in the New Jersey Student Learning Standards (NJSLS), implemented the Go Math (in 30 self­
contained classrooms), Eureka Math (in 6 of the 7 K- 7 schools), Illustrative Mathematics (in 6 ofthe 7 
K- 7 schools), Math in Focus, secondary mathematics programs (e.g. Agile Mind), iReady, NWEA, and 
Family Math nights and increased students achievement by 10%, as measured by lesson designs, walk­
throughs, targeted professional development and analysis of summative and formative assessments. 

• During the 2017-2018 school year, English Language Learners (ELL), Special Education (SE),), and GE 
(General Education) teachers increased differentiation of materials and instruction based on district unit and 
benchmark assessments and state assessments, increased implementation of Sheltered English, Read 180, 
and System 44, iRead, Readorium, Dreambox, Rosetta Stone, implemented Parents Night, and continued 
implementation of an ELL program with highly qualified GE teachers and ESL support. 

• During the 2017-2018 school year, 100% of teachers and administrators set goals for themselves and 
increased their delivery of instruction and practice through professional development on the TeachNJ and 
AchieveNJ mandates, measured by professional development in Danielson's Evaluation Model, Marshall 
Evaluation Model, and Westwood Evaluation Models through Oasys/Frontline. 

The following scientifically research-based strategies were implemented to strengthen instruction in core 
academic subjects to help achieve our SMART goals: 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

• We expanded the implementation of Read 180, System 44, iRead, and Reading Plus, as well as provided 
professional development to teachers for implementation fidelity. 

• We increased the materials for grades 3-5 (Experiential Literature) and grades 9-12 (Pathways to Careers), 
with increased alignment to the New Jersey Student Learning Standards. Stipends for curriculum and 
assessment revisions budget was increased. Professional development and coaching were provided to 
support the implementation. 

• We continued the implementation of Balanced Literacy (K-2) and implemented Experiential Literature 
(grades 6-8). 

• Professional development was rendered in assisting teachers. Research and pilot programs that were 
closely aligned to the NJSLS. 
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ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS- Cont'd 

• Sheltered English: District data analysis shows that ELL students who were instructed using Sheltered 
English strategies outperformed their ELL peers. This was true for the former ELL students in transition. 
Therefore, the strategies were expanded to all classes with current and former LEP students. Professional 
development was provided to GE and ESL teachers. 

• We continued to implement electives for grades 10-12, including Young Adult Literature, Journalism, and 
Literature and Film. Materials were purchased to support these courses. 

• We continued purchasing leveled reading books and anchor texts for grades K-12. 

• We Purchased technology devices to ensure practice for PARCC and PARCC assessments, as well as 
blended learning initiatives. 

• We Purchased supplies for the Literacy Block Party and competitions. 

• We Provided funds for out-of-state conferences. 

• We Provided extended day and extended year experiences for remediation and enrichment, including 
competitions. 

• We implemented, in conjunction with the City of Orange Township, a Page Turners initiative to increase 
independent reading for adults and students. The goal, which was reached, was 2,000,000 pages. 

• Purchased Clever to create a single sign-on for students utilizing online programs for blended/personalized 
learning. 

MATHEMATICS 

• We continued the implementation of Math in Focus, Rlustrative Mathematics, and Eureka Mathematics, 
and Go Math. Materials and professional development were purchased. 

• We continued tiered math classes in grades 7-11 to address the needs of all students. Continued the 
implementation of Agile Mind Intensive for Algebra I and II Tier III classes; and Agile Mind in Tier I - II 
classes in Geometry and Algebra II, based on the success of the implementation. Agile Minds addresses 
all strands, using an inquiry-based approach. Additionally, the online portion provides differentiated 
lessons based on pretests. Teachers received intensive professional development. 

• iReady (k- 8) and Aleks (9-12) were implemented as blended/ personalized learning, based on benchmark 
assessments and NJASK scores. Professional development and job-embedded coaching was provided for 
teachers utilizing the program. 

• We extended the purchase ofGo.math for all Self-contained PARCC and Dynamic Learning Map (DLM). 

• The focus of professional development was the content knowledge. 

• Blended learning models was piloted in targeted classes and grades, including online programs. 
Professional development and supplemental materials to support blended learning was purchased. 
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MATHEMATICS- Cont'd 

We purchased technology devices to ensure practice for PARCC and PARCC assessments. 

• We Purchased online platform (Edulastic) and North West Evaluation Association (NWEA) for diagnostic 
and proficiency assessments. 

• We Purchased supplies for Family Math Nights and competitions. 

• We Provided extended day and extended year experiences for remediation and enrichment. 

• We Provided funding for out-of-state conferences. 

SOCIAL STUDIES 

• Based on student assessment analysis, we provided professional development for the Document Based 
Questions (DBQ) Project and the 5 C's. 

• We continued to implement all social studies series and provide professional development for teachers. 

• We began the implementation of Sociology and AP World History. We Provided materials and 
professional development. 

• We Purchased technology devices to ensure practice for PARCC and PARCC assessments. 

• We Provided extended day and extended experiences for remediation and enrichment. 

• We Provided financing for competitions, field trips, and conferences. 

SCIENCE 

• We continued work on the Hydroponics Green House and the Green House at Forest Street School. 

• We continued implementing Readorium for science related informational text. 

• We Implemented the Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) in science curriculum guides and 
assessments, including professional development and curriculum alignment. 

• We Purchased consumable replacements for classrooms. 

• We continued the implementation of Discovery Education Online Science Program aligned to the NGSS. 

• We expanded the implementation of STC science kits for additional lab activities. 

• We continued the implementation of Robotics and plan increased STEMIPL TW /CS programs at the 
elementary and secondary levels, purchased lab aides to support instruction. 

• New technology devices were purchased to ensure practice for P ARCC and P ARCC assessments. 

• Expanded the engineering offerings at the high school and elementary levels. 

• Provided extended day and extended experiences for remediation and enrichment. 

• Provided funding for Science Fairs and STEM nights. 
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STEM 

• We expanded the STEM Innovation Academy ofthe Oranges programming for grades 9 & 10. 

• We completed the 2nd phase of renovations ofthe STEM building, including furniture, Smart Boards, lab 

equipment, and materials. 

• We also provided professional development for PTLW, Gifted and Talented Education, Project-Based 

Learning, and best practices in engineering. 

• We expanded STEM Academy Partnerships (e.g. TEALS, PICOTECH, etc.) 

• We introduced the Scholars MS and Scholars HS programs 

21st CENTURY SKILLS: 

• We implemented the revision of curriculum guides. 

• We continued the implementation of Career Ready Practices, NJSLS, and CCSS for Science and 

Technical subjects. 

• Students were provided with opportunities to belong to service learning organizations (HOSA). 

VISUAL AND PERFORMING ARTS 

• We provided extended day and year experiences for enrichment. 

• We provided professional development in differentiated instruction by subject area. 

• Funding was provided for uniforms, instruments, costumes, set designs, props, bussing, and materials. 

HEALTH AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION 

• We continued the implementation ofModel Curriculum and Best Practices 

• We provided supplemental health and PE materials to address NJSLS and Social Emotional Learning 

WORLD LANGUAGES 

• We continued the implementation of learning stations for K-2 

• We continued the implementation of the STAMP test for second language speakers 

• We continued the implementation of AP Spanish and AP French 

TECHNOLOGY 

• We continued Blended learning and increased number of devices, moving towards 1-to-1 for students 

• Project-based learning opportunities was increased, with video software and Adobe Creative 

• Software and Online Program utilization: Read 180, System 44, Math 180, Agile Minds, Cognitive Tutor, 

Educere, Edulastic, learning.com, Snap and Read assistive technology, iRead, Readorium, Spelling 

Vocabulary City, receive professional development in PARCC, parenting skills, content for each grade 

level, and program expectations. 
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ASSESSMENTSffESTING 

The following assessments and testing platforms were utilized: 

• Edulastic - Platform for creating online assessments. 

• NWEA 

• iReady - Online assessment 

• Stamp Assessment: Foreign language proficiency assessment for second language learners to exempt them 

from world language requirements. 

• PSAT: All 9th and lOth grade students take the PSAT. It is an allowable alternative to demonstrate 

proficiency as a graduation requirement. Additionally, it is utilized to determine students' academic 

strengths, weaknesses, and interests. 

PROFESSfONAL DEVELOPMENT (PD) 

District PD Days - by department, discipline, and school through surveys and evaluations of Professional 
Development needs has been conducted and PD experiences to maintain all new initiatives as well as 
Technology needs. 

Job-embedded Staff Development- classrooms are set up that become instructional models for the district 
wherein the teachers and/or outside consultants' model best practices. A Collaborative school site has been 
established and is presently being used as model classrooms for district staff members. 

Professional Learning Communities - implementation of this model of staff development wherein staff 
members become part of a Professional Development committee. This is a collaborative, collegial model of 
PD. 

Virtual Professional Academy: PD experiences for staff that include webinars, videos, podcasting, jings and 
videoing of our in-district workshops for sharing through Frontline. 

Summer Institutes: During July and August 2018, the district provided PLC opportunities, AP Training, and 
Engineering training to support pedagogy and content in subject areas and programs of study. 

County Roundtables: Essex County Special Services Roundtable, Essex County Curriculum Roundtable, 
and the Essex County Superintendents Roundtable provided professional development to district leaders. 

Professional Organizations and Conferences: Administrators received professional development through 
organizations that include but are not limited to Association for Supervisors and Curriculum Development, 
National Council of Teachers of English, National Council of Mathematics Teachers, NJ Council for Social 
Studies, International Reading Association, and International Technology Education 
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (PD)- Cont'd 

Partnerships with Universities and Providers: 

Montclair State University - PRISM- District was in partnership with the Learning Center at Montclair State 
University specifically addressing our Mathematics content through seminars and job-embedded professional 
development for content specific mathematics topics, pedagogy and science topics. Woodrow Wilson 
Scholars, Community Schools, 21st Century Grant 

Seton Hall University- We partnered with the School of Education addressing pedagogy and internships and 
the School of Business for the Junior MBA Program 

Rutgers University: We are in partnership with Rutgers University on STEM initiatives and project-based 
learning for STEM teachers; Health Sciences partnership 

NJIT: We partnered with NJIT to provide college classroom experiences for our students wherein they are 
earning credit for outside classroom work. Additionally, Real World Connections (RWC) worked with grades 
8-12. Swing space for STEM was provided. 

Partnerships with Outsourced Consultant Experts: 

State ofNew Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE)- NJDOE representative conducts full day workshops 
in addition to job-embedded staff development for Language Arts teachers and Master Teachers. 

Houghton Mifflin Harcourt: Professional development was provided for Go Math and Math in Focus 
teachers for implementation of the programs with fidelity. Math 180, Read 180, iRead and System 44 must 
be implemented with fidelity for success. Scholastic will provide initial training for teachers and 
administrators, as well as job-embedded professional development for successful implementation. (Single 
Source) 

NJAHPERD: Professional development for physical education/health teachers, including alignment to NJ 
standards and mandatory training. 

Genesis: We conducted professional development on student database training for administrators and school 
secretaries. 

Frontline: We conducted Professional Development for Reflect online training and Learn component. 

Professional development was conducted for administrators and teachers for implementing an on-line 
professional development request and tracking program, aligned with professional improvement plans and 
NJDOE requirements. 

Luna Stage Company, Inc.: Professional development was conducted for drama teachers for staging, 
projecting, and critiquing. 

Arts Unbound: Professional development was conducted for art teachers for project-based learning 

Lifesavers, Inc.: We conducted mandatory CPR training. 
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (PD)- Cont'd 

American Red Cross of Fairfield: We conducted professional development for one teacher to attain CPR 
Instructor Training to alleviate the need to hire outside consultants. 

Newark Beth Israel Medical Center: Helped to conduct mandatory CPR training to certain staff. 

NJ Performing Arts Center: Rendered professional development for VP A teachers regarding the MANY 
program, which provides instrumental instruction at NJPAC after school and on Saturdays. 

NJ Center for Teaching and Learning: Conducted Mathematics PD in mathematics content. 

FEA: Rendered professional development for the Human Resource Specialist and legal training for 
administrators. 

Language and Literacy Association: WIDA training for the new mandated online ACCESS assessment. 

Douglas Farrand: Conducted professional development for instrumental teachers in the El Sistema method 

Tricia Tunstall: Conducted professional development in the El Sistema methodology for VP A teachers. She 
is the author of the seminal guide for this program. 

David Fryling: Conducted professional development in Choral best practices for vocal music teachers. 

A+ Education and Performing Arts: Conducted professional development for instrumental teachers and 
marching band advisors. 

Glassroots: Conducted professional development for art teachers to expand their repertoires and address 
another facet of the NJCCCS. 

OTHER INITIATIVES 

Diagnostic and Benchmark Assessment Tools: 

• Unit Assessments 

• Authentic (project-based) Assessments 

Individual Student Portfolios - Established criteria for a student portfolio program that will track skills and 
include artifacts. Individual Student Portfolio Plan- presented guidelines for portfolios to be established for 
all core subject areas from grades 1-12 in an effort to track student progress and differentiate instruction based 
on the data. Kindergarten will begin Work Sampling, which includes anecdotal records. 
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5. INTERNAL CONTROL 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control designed to ensure 
that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting 
data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP). Internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) 
the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and 
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District is also responsible for ensuring 
adequate internal control is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those 
programs. Internal control is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management. 

As part ofthe District's single audit described earlier, assessments are made to determine the adequacy of internal 
control, including that portion related to federal and state fmancial assistance programs, as well as to determine 
if the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations. 

6. BUDGETARY CONTROLS 

In addition to internal control, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary 
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved 
by the District's Board and the Board of School Estimate. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the 
general fund and the special revenue fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital 
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal 
year is reflected in the financial section. 

The budget serves as the basis for the district's financial planning and control. Funds transfer are subject to 
Board approval, budget transfers exceeding certain threshold require prior approval by the State's 
department of education through the county office. 

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item 
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of the fund 
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as fund balance, assigned 
to other purposes at June 30, 2018. 

7. DEFERRAL OF JUNE STATE AID PAYMENTS 

For the 2017-2018 fiscal year, the Office ofthe Governor ofNew Jersey announced that due to the extreme 
economic hardship facing the State, the June 2018 State aid payment to school districts will be delayed until 
next fiscal year. In accordance with the directives from the NJDOE, all school districts are required to record 
both June payments as revenue in their budgetary schedules in the 2017-2018 school year but for the GAAP 
statements, these payments will be recognized and reported as revenue in the subsequent fiscal year. 
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8. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

The District changed its board from type I to type II, and issued a bond for $3,744,000 to finance certain 
capital projects, which includes installation of new Playground and Play Equipment, Parking lots repaving, 
Boilers and HVAC replacement, Properties acquisition etc. The investment in capital Project will address 
current needs and anticipated increase in students' population, modernize and improve the safety of outdated 
educational facilities. 

The District adheres to the policy guidelines established by the New Jersey State legislature and the New 
Jersey Department of Education. The State legislature enacted senate bill S-1701in December 2004, one of 
the objectives was to provide statewide property tax relief. S-1701 reduced the amount of unreserved I 
undesignated surplus funds a school district may retain. Any surplus funds in excess of this amount must be 
used for tax relief, in the case of Abbott School districts whose tax levies were frozen will be used to reduce 
state funding. 

Other efforts the District used in reducing expenditures include assessment of infrastructure projects that fall 
under New Jersey School Development Authority (given the district's former status as an Abbott district), 

green solution initiatives that lower facility energy usages, best practices and efficiencies in central office, 
management of custodial and security operations, maintaining a competitive edge in procurement of goods and 
services, cooperative pricing etc. 

9. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS 

The District's financial statements are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
in the United States of America, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
The accounting system ofthe District is organized on the basis of funds and a government-wide presentation 
is also included. These funds are explained in "Notes to the Basic Financial Statements," Note 1. 

lO.AWARDS 

The Association of School Business Officials International (ASBO) awarded a Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the District for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014. The District was awarded the prestigious award of certificate of excellence in Years 
ended June 30, 2009, 2010, 2012 and 2013. The Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting Program 
was designed by ASBO International to enable school business officials to achieve a high standard of financial 
reporting. 

By preparing and presenting a CAFR, the City of Orange Township Public Schools has validated the 
credibility of its school system's operations, measured the integrity and technical competence ofthe business 
office staff, assisted in strengthening our presentations for bond requests, and provided professional 
recognition. 
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SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

550 BROAD STREET, 11TH FLOOR 

NEWARK, NJ 07102-9969 

PHONE (973) 624-6100 

FAX (973) 624-6101 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

City of Orange Township School District 
County of Essex 
Orange, New Jersey 07050 

Report on the Financial Statements 

36 WEST MAIN STREET, SUITE 303 

FREEHOLD, NJ 07728-2291 

PHONE (732) 780-2600 

FAX (732) 780-1030 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Orange Township 
School District in the County of Essex, State of New Jersey, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 
the related Notes to Financial Statements, which collectively comprise the School's basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of 
Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

MEMBERS AMERICAN lt-,~STITUTE O F CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

www.samuelklein-cpa-rma.com 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Orange Township School District, as of June 30, 2018, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management 
Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information and schedule of the District's proportionate 
share of the net pension liability - PERS, schedule of District contributions, schedule of the state's 
proportionate share of net pension liability associated with the District - TPAF, the District's proportionate 
share of the net OPEB Liability - PERS and TPAF and budgetary comparison information as identified in the 
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Orange Township School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying 
supplementary information, which consists of the combining and related major fund supporting financial 
statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis, as 
required by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and are not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and 
State Financial Assistance are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Audits, and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of 
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid and the other information such as the introductory and statistical 
sections are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The accompanying Combining .and Individual Fund Financial Statements and the Schedules of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying Combining 
and Individual Fund Financial Statements and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State 
Financial Assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

The other information identified above has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
it. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 25, 2019, 
on our consideration of the City of Orange Township School District's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Orange Township School District's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Newark, New Jersey 
February 25, 2019 

WALTER RYGLICKI 
Licensed Public School Accountant #845 

~fv~ 
SAMUEL KLEIN AND co~U.NYQ 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION- PART I 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 

It is a privilege to present to you the financial condition of the City of Orange Township Public 
Schools ("the District"). This discussion and analysis of the Orange Board of Education's 
financial performance provides an overall review of the Orange Board of Education's financial 
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to 
examine the Orange Board of Education's financial performance as a whole. The readers of this 
document should also review the transmittal letter, the basic financial statements and the notes to 
the basic financial statements to enhance their understanding of the District's financial 
performance. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the Required 
Supplementary Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standard Board's 
(GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and 
Analysis - for States and Local Governments. Certain comparative information between the 
current year and the prior year is required to be presented in the MD&A. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic 
financial statements. The basic financial statements consist ofthree components: 1) government­
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. 
In addition, this document also contains required and other supplementary information that will 
enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition ofthe District. 

Long Term Financial Planning 

The School District continues its effort to provide world class opportunities for the children of 
City of Orange Township through innovation, sound fiscal management, and choices that align 
with the Districts priorities and values. Presently the School District is discussing several capital 
projects and the costs before presenting to the voters for comments, prior to holding a special 
school election whereby voter approval would be sought. 

General Obligation Bond 
On October 11, 2018, the School District issued School Bonds (Series 20 18) in the amount of 
$3,744,000 to permanent finance the current projects. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of the District's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
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The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District's assets plus deferred 
outflows of resources and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources with the difference 
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may 
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the net position of the District 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenue and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods. 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30,2018 

UNDERSTANDING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Financial Section of the CAFR includes a series of Basic Financial Statements and the notes 
thereto. The financial statements are grouped under related categories and are presented so the 
reader can obtain an understanding of the financial condition of the District as a whole 
(Government-wide Financial Statements, Exhibit A), its funds (Fund Financial Statements, 
Exhibit B) along with its fiduciary responsibility. 

Figure I depict the inter-relationship of the various elements presented in the Financial Section of 
this CAFR. You will notice it shows the names of the Basic Financial statements under the 
Government-wide Financial Statements, but it does not list the names of the statements and 
schedules under the listing of Fund Financial Statements and Supplementary Information. 
Instead, it shows the names of various funds and schedules. 

FIGURE I- Inter-Relationship of Financial Statements Presented in the Financial Section 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 

Financial Highlights 

Key financial highlights for the District for the fiscal year 2018, as reflected in the Basic 
Financial Statements, are as follows: 

l. There was a overall decrease of 17.3% or $23,252,926 in the revenue as reported in the 
Statement of Activities (Table III). The decrease in total revenue was mainly due to a 
decrease in federal and state aid not restricted revenue of $22,109,060 and a decrease in 
miscellaneous revenue of $3,140,300. 

2. There was a deferral of the last State Aid payment of $8,528,027 for 2017 to fiscal year 2018. 

3. There was an overall decrease of about 13.2% in total liabilities of the District in fiscal year 
2018 from fiscal year 2017 mainly due to GASB 68. 

The total revenues from governmental activities of $107,594,499 came from two major sources, 
the general revenue, consisting principally of Federal awards and State financial assistance, 
property and other taxes, and program specific revenue, such as operating grants and 
contributions. General revenue for the fiscal year amounted to $82,076,662 or 76.3% of total 
revenues, and program specific revenues from charges for services, grants, and contributions 
amounted to $25,517,837 or 25.7% of total revenues (Table III). 

The revenues received during fiscal year 2018 were used to pay expenses of $111,097,431 
in governmental activities. General revenues, primarily taxes and state grants and entitlements, 
were sufficient to provide for the program expenses, resulting in a decrease in net position of 
$3,502,932 for the fiscal year 2018 (Table III). 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR) OUTLINE 

The annual report consists of two distinct sets of financial statements, namely, the government­
wide and fund financial statements. The government-wide statements are designed to show the 
District's overall economic activity in the Statement ofNet position and Statement of Activities. 
These statements also provide information about governmental and business type activities of the 
whole District while presenting an aggregate and long term view of the District finances. 

The fund financial statements provide the next level of details and consist of Governmental 
Funds, Proprietary Fund and Fiduciary Funds. These statements present the District's most 
significant funds, i.e., the General, Special Revenue and Capital Project Funds. Governmental 
Funds statements present how services were financed in the short-term, as well as the funds 
remaining for future spending in the Proprietary Fund statements. 

REPORTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (GOVERNMENT-WIDE REPORTING) 

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities- (Exhibits A-1, A-2) 

The view of the District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and ask the questions, "Are 
we in a better financial position this year compared to last year?" and "Why?" or "Why not?" 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities provide the basis for answering 
these questions. The statements include all assets plus deferred outflows of resources and all 
liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the 
basis of accounting used by most private sector companies. This basis of accounting takes into 
consideration all the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or 
paid. 

These two statements report the District's net position and any changes in those positions. The 
change in net position is very important because it tells the reader whether the financial position 
for the District as a whole has improved or diminished. The cause of this change may be due to 
many factors, including factors that are not under the district's control, such as the City of 
Orange Township's property tax base, State ofNew Jersey schools funding formula, and Federal 
funds available for schools. 

The Statement ofNet Position and Statement of Activities are divided into two distinct kinds of 
activities. 

Governmental Activities -Most of the District's programs and services reported here include 
instructions, support services, operation and maintenance of plan, pupil transportation, school 
business administration, and interest costs. 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 

REPORTING THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (GOVERNMENT-WIDE REPORTING) 
-CONTINUED 

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities- (Exhibits A-1, A-2)- Continued 

Business-Type Activities - These services are provided on a charge for goods or services basis to 
recover all or a significant portion of the expenses of the goods or services provided. The District 
food service activities are reported as business activities. 

REPORTING THE DISTRICT'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS FUND LEVEL 
REPORTING 

The District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

The analysis of the District's major funds begins on Exhibit B-1. Fund level financial reports 
provide detailed information about the District's major funds. New Jersey school districts are 
required to treat all governmental and enterprise funds as major funds because of the importance 
placed on these funds by users of these financial statements, as well as, state and federal 
requirements. 

Governmental Funds (Exhibit Bl,B2) - Most of the District's activities are reported in the 
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the 
balances left at year-end available for spending in future periods. These funds are reported using 
the accounting method called Modified Accrual Accounting. This method of accounting 
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted into cash. The 
governmental fund statements provide a detail short-term view of the District's general 
government operations and the basic services it provides. 

Governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources as well as balances available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating government's near-term financing requirements, particularly relating to 
educational programs. The relationship or differences between governmental activities reported 
at the government-wide level and those reported at the Fund Level are reconciled in the financial 
statements of the governmental funds. 

The District maintains three separate governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balance for the general fund, special revenue fund and the 
capital projects fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 

REPORTING THE DISTRICT'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS FUND LEVEL 
REPORTING- CONTINUED 

TABLE I -Schedule of(Deficit) Fund Balance for Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-1) 

2018 

Special Capital Debt 

General Revenue Projects Service Government 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

\ssets $ 2,068,031 $ 1,756,392 $ 3,687,629 $ $ 7,512,052 

~iabilities 1,278,292 2,251,226 572,670 23,044 4,125,232 

(Deficit) Fund Balance $ 789,739 $ (494, 834) $ 3 114 959 $ {23,044) $ 3,386,820 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30,2018 

REPORTING THE DISTRICT'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS FUND LEVEL 
REPORTING- CONTINUED 

Proprietary Fund (Exhibit B3-B5)- Food Service Fund has historically operated as Enterprise 
Fund using the same basis of accounting as business-type activities. These statements will 
essentially match the information provided in the basic financial statements for the District as a 
whole. 

Fiduciary Funds (Exhibit B6, B7) - The Board acts as a Fiduciary or Trustee for these funds. 
Activities of these funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements because 
the resources of those funds are not available to support the District's own programs. 

The District uses agency funds to account for resources held for student activities and groups and 
payroll related liabilities. 

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole 

Changes in Net Position (Tables II & III) 

Table I shows the changes in net position for the fiscal year 2018 in comparison with the fiscal 
year 2017. There has been a decrease of 3. 7% in the total net position in comparison with the last 
fiscal year, primarily attributable to GASB 68 and the establishment of Debt Service Fund. 

Table III shows the comparative summary of Statements of Activities for the fiscal years 2018 
and 2017, respectively. Miscellaneous decreased by 83.9%, operating grants and contributions 
increased by 6.7% and Federal and State Aid (unrestricted) exhibited an increase of 2.0%. An 
overall increase of 17.3% was shown in the total revenue. There was an overall decrease in 
charges for Service of 18.8%. For the fiscal year 2018, the District experienced an overall 
increase of 14.8% for expenditures. The dependence upon general revenues for governmental 
activities is apparent. Over 64.4% of total governmental activities are supported by unrestricted 
State aid, property taxes and operating grants and contributions. 

Changes in Net Cost of Service (Table III) 

The Statement of Activities (Exhibit A-2) also shows the net cost of program services and the 
charges for these services and offsetting grants. Net Cost of Service is the financial burden 
placed on taxpayers. Table III illustrates the net cost of service in a comparative summary for 
fiscal years 2018 and 2017. Net Cost of Service exhibited an overall decrease of 15.4%. 
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ASSETS 
Current and other assets $ 
Capital Assets, net 

1 otal Assets $ 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions $ 

$ 

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
Liabilities: 

Current and Other Liabilities: 
Due Within One Year $ 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Net Pension Liability 
Compensated Absences 

Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pensions 

Net Position: 
Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted for: 

Other purposes 
Unrestricted ( Deficit) 

Total Net Position 
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Table II - The District As A Whole 

Comparative Summary of Statement of Net Position 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017 

Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities 

7,512,052 $ 604,451 $ 8,116,503 $ 8,361,620 $ 886,916 
132,467,607 15,083 132,482,690 133,184,391 33,370 
139,9 79,059 $ 5I9,m $ !il0,599,193 $ !i11,5~5.01 I $ 920,285 

7,767.678 $ 7.767.678 $ 9,366,875 

147,747,337 $ 619,534 $ 148,366,871 $ 150,912,886 $ 920,286 

5,063,115 $ 543,164 $ 5,606,279 $ 4,624,875 $ 708,223 

22,610,585 22,610,585 27,361,731 
1,532,321 1,532,321 1,575,252 

2~.206,021 543,164 2~. 74~,185 33,561,858 708,223 

4,448.704 4.448.704 

132,467,607 15,083 132,482,690 134,184,391 33,370 

3,114,959 3,114,959 2,550,000 
(21,489,954) 61,287 f21 ,428,667) (18,383,363) 145,323 
114,0~2.6 12 76,370 14. 1Ks.9s2 l.IKJ.~ I.~s 178,6~3 
147,747,337 $ 619,534 $ 148,366,871 $ 151,912,886 $ 886,916 

Percentage Change From 
Total 2016 to2017 

$ 9,248,536 -12.2% 
133,217,761 -0.6% 

$ 1~2.~55,297 - .J 0 

$ 9.366,875 -171% 

$ 151,833,172 -18.4% 

$ 5,333,098 5.1% 

27,361,731 -17.4% 
1,575,252 -2 .7% 

34,270,081 -13.2% 

#DIV/0! 

134,217,761 -1.3% 

2,550,000 22.2% 
(18,238,040) 17.5% 
118,m.?21 -l?% 

$ 152,799,802 -2 ,9% 

The 2016-2017 Governmental Activities has been restated to conform to the 2017-2018 presentation as a result of GASB #75 related 
to post-retirement benefits other than pension. 
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REVENUES 

Operating Grants and Contributions 

General Revenues: 

Property Taxes 

Federal and State Aid not Restricted 

Charges for Services 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Program Expenses 

Instructional Services 

Tuition 

Student and Instruction Related Services 

General Administration Services 

School Administative Services 

Plant Operation and Maintenance 

Pupil Transportation 

Special Schools 

Charter Schools 

Food Service 
Total Expenses 

Change in Net Position 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Table III - The District As A Whole 

Comparative Summary of Statement of Activities 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017 

Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities 

$ 25,517,837 $ 3,145,620 $ 28,663,457 $ 23,914,633 $ 2,957,290 

12,164,664 12,164,664 11,926,140 

69,308,872 69,308,872 91,417,932 

145,535 145,535 179,159 
603,126 - 603,126 3,743,426 

I 07,594,499 3,291,155 110,885,654 131,002,131 3,136,449 

53,015,747 53,015,747 67,293,961 

6,237,658 6,237,658 5,601,755 

23,301,976 23,301,976 28,253,104 

5,349,521 5,349,521 6,348,332 

7,197,821 7,197,821 7,909,268 

9,344,016 9,344,016 9,210,265 

3,313,774 3,313,774 3,234,073 

156,035 156,035 284,028 

3,180,883 3,180,883 3,111,861 

3,393,478 3,393,478 3,203,591 
111,097,431 3,393,478 114,490,909 131,246,647 3,203,591 

$ (3,502,932) $ (102,323) $ (3,605,2:~5) $ (244,516) $ (67,142) 

Percentage 
Change from 

Total 2016 to 2017 

$ 26,871,923 6.7% 

11,926,140 2.0% 

91,417,932 -24.2% 

179,159 -18.8% 
3,743,426 -83.9% 

134,138,580 -17.3% 

67,293,961 -21.2% 

5,601,755 11.4% 

28,253,104 -17.5% 

6,348,332 -15.7% 

7,909,268 -9.0% 

9,210,265 1.5% 

3,234,073 2.5% 

284,028 -45.1% 

3,111,861 2.2% 

3,203,591 5.9% 
134,450,238 -1 4.8% 

$ (311,658) 1056.8% 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Table III- The District As A Whole- Continued 
Comparative Summary of Statement of Activities 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

FIGURE II -Revenues by Source- Governmental activities (2018) 

D Operating Grants and 
Contributions 

23.7% 

• Property Taxes 11.3% 

D Others, 0.6% 

Total Governmental Revenues= $107,594(in thousands) 

13 Federal and State Aid 
Not Restricted 

64.4% 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Table III - The District As A Whole- Continued 
Comparative Summary of Statement of Activities 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

FIGURE Ill -Expenses by Function- Governmental activities (2018) 

1!1 Pupil Transportation 
3.0% 

• Plant Operations and 
Maintenance 8.4% 

• School Administrative 
Services 

6.5% 

Cl General Administration 
4.8% 

• Special Schools 0.1% 

• Student & Instructional 
Related Services 

21.0% 

• Transfer to Charter 
Schools 2.9% 

Total Governmental Expenses= $111,097 (in thousands) 

1i:1 Instructional Services 
47.7% 



CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Table IV- The District as a Whole 

Comparison of Cost of Service for Governmental Activities 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Percentage Change 

Functions I Programs 2018 2017 from 2017 to 2018 
Instruction: 

Regular program $ 53,015,747 $ 67,293,961 -21.2% 

Undistributed -Current: 
Tuition 6,237,658 5,601,755 11.4% 
Student and Instructional Services 23,301,976 28,253,104 -17.5% 
General Administration 5,349,521 6,348,332 -15.7% 
School Administrative Services 7,197,821 7,909,268 -9.0% 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 

Services 9,344,016 9,210,265 1.5% 
Pupil transportation 3,313,774 3,234,073 2.5% 
Transfers to charter schools 3,180,883 3,111,861 2.2% 

Special schools 156,035 284,028 -45.1% 
Total Governmental Expenses $ 111,097,431 $ 131,246,647 -15.4% 

ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION 

As of June 30, 2018, the City of Orange Township Public Schools had total assets of 
$148,366,871 with 5.1% or $7,512,052 ofthose assets as current assets, 5.2% or 7,7767,678 as 
deferred outflows, and 89.3% or $132,467,607 being the net value of Capital Assets (Table II). 

Business-Type Activities 

Business-type activities consist of food service operation. This program had revenues of 
$3,291,155 and expenses of $3,393,478 for fiscal year 2018. Over 95.5% of those program 
revenues were from federal and state food nutrition programs. The District participates in the 
USDA commodities program. 

36 



CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 3 0, 2018 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION- CONTINUED 

The District's Governmental Funds 

The District's governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. All governmental funds had total revenues of $116,814,725 and expenditures of 
$118,096,633. 

General Ftmd Budgeting Highlights 

The District's budget is prepared according to the State ofNew Jersey budget law and is based 
on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrance system. The most significant 
budgeted funds are the General Fund and the Special Revenue Fund. 

During the fiscal year 2018, the District amended its general fund budget. The amendment was 
due to changes in expenditure priorities of the District and additional state aid revenues. The 
State of New Jersey Budget guidelines provide flexibilities for Districts to amend budget line 
items upon the Board's approval. 

At June 30, 2018, the District had fund balance committed to year end assigned for other 
purposes (encumbrances) of $3,004,793 restricted - excess surplus of $779,312, restricted 
excess surplus for subsequent years expenditures of $2,600,000, unassigned fund deficit of 
$(6,112,244) and restricted -capital projects of $3,114,959 in the Governmental Funds. The 
deficit was primarily due to the deferral of last state aid payment of $8,528,027 to fiscal year 
2019, resulting in an under-funding of the 2017/2018 budget. 
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

At June 30, 2018. The district had $132.4 million invested m different categories net of 
accumulated depreciation, as shown in the table below. 

Categories 2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease) 

Land $ 1,511,880 $ 1,511,880 $ 0.0% 
Construrction in Progress 1,809,259 1,809,259 100 .. 0% 
Site lmprovenments and 0 

Buildings 124,540,518 127,481 '189 -2,940,671 -2.3% 
Machinery and Equipment 4,605,950 4,191,322 414,628 9.9% 

Total $ 132,467,607 $ 133,184,391 $ (716,784) -0.5% 

Detail information reflecting the District's capital asset balances and activity for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2018 is provided in Note 5 to the Financial Statements. 

Business Type Activities 

At the end of the fiscal year 2018, the District had Capital Assets net of accumulation 
depreciation of $15,083. Refer to notes to financial statements (Note 5) for more detailed 
information 
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Debt Administration this has to be amended based upon bond counsel and board developed 
wording 

As of June 30, 2018 the District does not have any outstanding bond issues; however the 
Municipality has authorized District Debt on behalf of the School District of $3,477,000 .. 

Categories 

Compensated Absences 
Payable 

Net Pension Liability 

Total :ji 

CHANGES IN LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
At June 30, 2018 and 2017 

Differences 

Increase 
2018 2017 (Decrease) 

1,532,321 1,575,252 (42,931) 
22,610,585 27,361,731 (4,751 '146) 

£4, 14£,!:1Uti :ji £~,!:J::lti,!:J~::l :jj (4,{!:14,0 (f) 

Percentage Change 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

-2.7% 
-17.4% 

-1ti.ti% 

Detail information relating to changes in long-term liabilities for fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018 is provide for in Note 6 to the Financial Statements 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION- CONTINUED 

District's Financial Management Contact 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers and creditors with a general 
overview of the City of Orange Township School District's finances and to show the district's 
accountability the funding it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional 
financial information you can contact Adekunle James, School Business Administrator/Board 
Secretary at City of Orange Township Board of Education, 451 Lincoln Avenue, Orange, New 
Jersey 07050. 
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A. DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2018 

Governmental 
Activities 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,302,098 
Receivables, Net 3,209,954 
lnterfunds Receivable 
Inventory 
Capital Assets, Net (Note 5): 

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated (Land) 3,321 '139 
Capital Assets Being Depreciated 

( Site Improvements, Machinery and Equipment) 129,146,468 

Total Assets 139,979,659 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Pensions (Note 8) 7,767,678 

$ 147.747.337 

LIABILITIES 
Cash Overdraft $ 23,044 
Accounts Payable 3,162,840 
Payable to State Government 6,892 
Payable to Federal Government 28,056 
Loans Payable 
Payable to Local Government 718 
Unearned Revenue 1,841,565 
Noncurrent Liabilities: 

Net Pension Liability (Note 6 and 8) 22,610,585 
Compensated Absences (Note 6) 1,532,321 

Total Liabilities 29,206,021 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Pensions $ 4,448,704 

NET POSITION 
Investment in Capital Assets 132,467,607 
Restricted for: 

Capital Projects 3,114,959 
Other Purposes 
Unrestricted (Deficit) (21 ,489,954) 

Total Net Position $ 114.092,612 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Exhibit A-1 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

$ 34,330 $ 4,336,428 
534,828 3,744,782 

35,293 35,293 

3,321,139 

15,083 129,161,551 

619,534 140,599,193 

7,767,678 

~-6 1 9 .534 $ 148,366,871 

$ $ 23,044 
543,164 3,706,004 

6,892 
28,056 

718 
1,841,565 

22,610,585 
1,532,321 

543,164 29,749,185 

$ 4,448,704 

15,083 132,482,690 

3,114,959 

61,287 (21 ,428,667) 

$ 76,370 ~ 114,168,982 
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Functions/Programs 

Governmental Activities: 
Instruction: 

Regular 
Special Education 
Other Special Instruction 
Other Instruction 
Support Services: 

Tuition 
Student and Instruction Related Services 
School Administrative Services 
General Administrative Services 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 
Pupil Transportation 
Special Schools 

Charter Schools 
Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Food Service 

Total Business-Type Activities 

Total Primary Government 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property Taxes, Levied for General 
Purposes, Net 

Federal and State Aid Not Restricted 
Miscellaneous Income and Adjustment 

Total General Revenues, Special Items, 
Extraordinary Items and Transfers 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning 

Net Position - Ending 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Expenses 

$ 39,958,921 
8,872,597 
3,240,567 

943,662 

6,237,658 
23,301,976 

7,197,821 
5,349,521 
9,344,016 
3,313,774 

156,035 
3,180,883 

111,097,431 

3,393,478 
3.393.478 

$ 114.490.909 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

$ 

Program Revenues 
Operating 

Charges for Grants and 
Services Contributions 

145,535 
145,535 

$ 10,663,463 
1,765,289 

645,708 

11,533,915 
839,489 
69,974 

25.517.837 

3,145,620 
3,145,620 

$ 145,535 $ 28 663.457 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ (29,295,459) 
(7,107,308) 
(2,594,859) 

(943,662) 

(6,237,658) 
(11,768,061) 

(6,358,332) 
(5,279,547) 
(9,344,016) 
(3,313,774) 

(156,035) 
(3, 180,883) 

(85,579,594) 

$ (85.579,594) 

$ 12,164,664 
69,308,872 

603,126 

82,076,662 

(3,502,932) 

117,595,544 

$ 114.092.612 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 

(102,323) 
(102,323) 

$ (102.323) 

$ 

(102,323) 

178,693 

$ 76,370 

Exhibit A-2 

Total 

$ (29,295,459) 
(7, 107,308) 
(2,594,859) 

(943,662) 

(6,237,658) 
(11 ,768,061) 

(6,358,332) 
(5,279,547) 
(9,344,016) 
(3,313,774) 

(156,035) 
(3, 180,883) 

(85,579,594) 

(102,323) 
. (102,323) 

$ (85.681 .917) 

$ 12,164,664 
69,308,872 

603,126 

82 ,076.662 

(3,605,255) 

117,774,237 

$ 114,168,982 
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable: 

State 
Federal 
Local 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities: 

Cash Overdraft 
Accounts Payable 
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable: 

State 
Federal 
Other 

Unearned Revenue 
Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Restricted: 

Assigned for Other Purposes 
Capital Projects 
Excess Surplus - Designated for 

Subsequent Year's Expenditures 
Excess Surplus 

Unassigned (Deficit) 
Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Total Fund Balance Above 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position (A-1) are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 
fund. The cost of the assets is $171,568,775 and the 
accumulated depreciation is $39,101,168 (See Note 5). 

Certain Liabilities are not due and payable in the current 
period, and therefore are not reported in the funds. 
Accrued Pension is a current liability that will be paid from 
general fund attributed to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 

Long-Term Liabilities - Compensated Absences payable 
are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds (See Note 6). 

Net Pension Liability is a Long-Term liability and is not due and 
payable in e current period and therefore is not reported as 
a liability in the funds (See Note 6) 

Net Position of Governmental Activities (A-1) 

JUNE 30, 2018 

Special 
General Revenue 

Fund ....£.!!..!!.!! 

$ 1,340,056 $ 419,483 

653,625 2,888 
1,272,627 

74,350 61,394 

.$ 2,068,031 51 .756,3.92 

$ $ 
1,277,574 374,713 

6,892 
28,056 

718 
1,841,565 

1.278,292 2,251,226 

3,004,793 

2,600,000 
779,312 

!5,594,366) !494,834) 
789,739 (494,834) 

~ 2 068,031 s 1 756·39;1 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund 

$ 2,542,559 

1,145,070 

s 3.687 629 

$ 
572,670 

572 670 

3,114,959 

3,114,959 

s 3 687.629 

Debt 
Service 

Fund 

$ 

$ 

$23,044.00 

23 044 

(23,044) 
(23,044) 

$ 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 4,302,098 

656,513 
1,272,627 
1,280,814 

$ 7 512,052 

$ 23,044 
2,224,957 

6,892 
28,056 

718 
1,841,565 
4 125 232 

3,004,793 
3,114,959 

2,600,000 
779,312 

(6, 112.244) 
3,386,820 

$ 7512052 

$ 3,386,820 

132,467,607 

2,381,091 

(1 ,532,321) 

(22,61 0,585) 

s 114.092612· 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

B-2 

Special Capital Debt Total 
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental 

Fund -.£.!!!!.!L -.£.!!!!.!L Fund Funds 

REVENUES 
Local Sources: 

Local Tax Levy $ 12,164,664 $ $ $ $ 12,164,664 
Tuition Charges 61,439 61,439 
Miscellaneous 541,667 541,687 
Other Local Sources 293,202 1,194,000 1,487,202 

Total - Local Sources 12,767,790 293,202 1,194,000 14,254,992 
State Sources 67,651,966 10,180,666 97,632,B54 
Federal Sources 126,619 4,596,060 4,726,879 
Total Revenues 100,546,595 15,072,13_0 1,194,000 116,B14,725 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

Regular Instruction 24,406,532 4,073,068 26,461,620 
Special Education Instruction 6,041,697 6,041 ,697 
Other Special Instruction 2,239,701 2,239,701 
Other Instruction 790,61 9 790,619 
Support Services and Undistributed Costs: 

Tuition 6,237,656 6,237,656 
Student and Instruction Related Services 9,457,702 9,396,062 1B,653,764 
School Administrative Services 5,072,635 5,072,635 
Other Administrative Services 4,310,024 4,310,024 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 7,960,233 7,960,233 
Pupil Transportation 3,206,922 3,206,922 
Employee Benefits 2B,01B,615 28,016,615 

Debt Service: 
Interest 23,044 23,044 

Special Schools 67,305 87,305 
Transfer to Charter School 3,160,663 3,1BO,B83 
Capital Outlay 2,929,0B2 33,770 629,041 3,591,693 
Total Expenditures 103,941,608 13,502,940 629,041 23 044 118,096,633 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) 
Expenditures (3,393,013) 1,569,190 564 959 (23,044) (1 ,261 ,906) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES} 
Transfer- Contribution to School-Based Budget 1,584,631 (1 ,584,B31) 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,5B4,B31 (1,584,631) 

Net Change in Fund Balances (1 ,BOB, 182) (15,641) 564,959 (23,044) (1 ,261 ,908) 

Fund Balance - July 1 2,597,922 (479,193) 2,550,000 4,668,729 

Fund Balance- June 30 $ 789,739 $ (494,834) $3,114,959 (23,044) $ 3,386,821 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances -Governmental Funds (from B-2) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (A-2) 
are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in 
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
depreciation expense exceeded capital outlays in the period. 

Depreciation Expense 
Capital Outlays 

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated 
absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In 
the governmental funds, however, expenditures exceed the paid amount, the 
difference is reduction in the reconciliation(-); when the paid amount exceeds 
the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation(+). 

Net pension obligation related to PERS and ERFEC which is attributable to 
June 30, 2017 not reported in governmental funds; however, it is reported 
in the statement of activities. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

$ (3,155,084) 
3,180,883 

$ (1,281,908) 

25,799 

42,931 

(2,289,754) 

$ (3,502,932) 

49 



PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
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ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
JUNE 30, 2018 

Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable: 
State 
Federal 
Inventories 
Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 

Investment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Enterprise Fund 
Food 

Service 

$ 34,330 

7,393 
527,435 
35,293 

604,451 

672,004 
656,921 

15,083 

$ 619,534 

$ 543,164 
543,164 

15,083 
61,287 

$ 76,370 

51 



CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Enterprise Fund 
Food 

Service 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for Services: 

Daily Sales - Nonreimbursable Programs $ 99,993 
Special Functions 45,542 

Total Operating Revenues 145,535 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Cost of Sales - Reimbursable Programs 1 ,079,120 
Cost of Sales - Nonreimbursable Programs 50,078 
Salaries 990,259 
Employee Benefits 236,370 
Insurance 86,097 
General Supplies 676,900 
Management Fee 40,700 
Administration Fee 83,000 
Purchased Property Services 132,667 
Depreciation 18,287 

Total Operating Expenses 3,393,478 

NONOPERATING REVENUE (Expenses) (3,247,943) 

State Sources: 
State School Lunch Program 42,181 

Federal Sources: 
National School Breakfast Program 669,022 
National School Lunch Program 1,809,044 
National School Lunch Program (HHFKA) 65,137 
School Snack Program 43,028 
U.S.D.A. Commodities Program 283,501 
Fruits and Vegetables Program 58,605 
Child and Adult Food Program 175,102 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 3,145,620 

Change in Net Position (1 02,323) 

Total Net Position- Beginning 178,693 

Total Net Position- Ending $ 76,370 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from Customers 
Payments to Suppliers 
Payments for Management Fee and Administrative Fee 

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

State Sources 
Federal Sources 

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Balances- Beginning of Year 

Balances- End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 

Operating Loss 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 

Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities: 
Depreciation and Net Amortization: 

Increase in Depreciation 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Inventory 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Enterprise Fund 
Food 

Service 

$ 145,535 

$ 

(3,439,539) 
·(123,700) 

(3,417,704} 

37,594 
2,795,677 
2,833,271 

(584,433) 

618,763 

34,330 

$ (3,247,943) 

18,287 
(22,989) 

(165,059) 
(169,761) 

$ (3,417,704) 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
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ASSETS: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable: 

Local 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts Payable 
Payable to Student Groups 
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION: 
Held in Tnust for Unemployment 

Claims and Other Purposes 
Reserved for Scholarships 

Total Net Position 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Trust 
Private 

Unemployment Purpose 
Compensation Scholarship 

Trust Fund Total 

$ 458,355 $162,086 $620,441 

s 458 355 s 162,086 $620,441 

$ 20,873 $ $ 20,873 

s 20.873 $ s 20,873 

$ 437,482 $ $437,482 
162.086 162,086 

s 437,482 $ 162,086 $599,568 

B-7 

Aaenc;r: Fund 
Student Payroll 

Activities Agency 
Fund Fund I2!!! 

$119,373 $ 3,594,401 $ 3,713,774 

718 718 

$119,373 s 3,595,119 s 3,714.492 

$ $ $ 
119,373 119,373 

3,595,1 19 3,595,119 

$119,373 s 3,595,119 s 3,714,492 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

B-8 

Trust 
Private 

Unemployment Purpose 
Compensation Scholarship 

Trust Fund Total 

ADDITIONS: 
Contributions: 

Plan Member $ 114,990 $ $ 114,990 
Board Contribution 100,000 100,000 
Scholarship Donations 4,072 4,072 
Total Contributions 214,990 4,072 219,062 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Unemployment Claims 216,382 216,382 
Scholarships Awarded 4 ,100 4,100 

Total Deductions 216,382 4 ,100 220,482 

Change in Net Position (1 ,392) (28) (1 ,420) 

Net Position- Beginning of the Year 438,874 162,114 600,988 

Net Position- End of the Year $ 437,482 $ 162,086 $ 599,568 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY 

As of November 2017, the voters of the City of Orange Township School District (the "District") located in 
the County of Essex, State of New Jersey approved the change from a Type I to a Type II District. As a 
Type II District, the District functions independently through a Board of Education (the "Board). The 
Board is comprised of nine (9) members elected to three-year staggered terms. The purpose of the 
District is to educate students in grades K-12. The District had an approximate enrollment at June 30, 
2018 of 5,108 students. 

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that 
are included to insure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary 
government consists of all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are not legally separate from 
the District. For the District, this includes general operations, food service, and student related activities 
of the District. 

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 
2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is 
whether: 

The organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name) 
The District holds the corporate powers of the organization 
The District appoints a voting majority of the organization's board 
The District is able to impose its will on the organization 
The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District 
There is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles the most significant of the 
District's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Basis of Presentation 

The District's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a 
statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements that provide 
a more detailed level of financial information. 

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the 
District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary 
government, except for fiduciary funds. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

A. Ba~sis of Presentation (Continued) 

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued) 

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental activities 
of the District at year-end. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements. The statement of activities presents a comparison 
between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the 
District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically 
associated with a service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a 
particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods 
or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues which are not 
classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the District, with 
certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues 
identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from 
the general revenues of the District. The financial statements have been prepared in 
conformity with GAAP and GASB. 

2. Fund Financial Statements 

During the year, District segregates transactions related to certain District functions or 
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal 
compliance. 

Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the District at 
this more detailed level. The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major 
funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. 

B. Fund Accounting 

The District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. A fund is defined 
as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. 

1. Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are 
financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of 
current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental 
funds according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are 
assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental 
fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the District's 
major governmental funds: 

General Fund- The General Fund is the General Operating Fund of the District. It 
is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted 
for in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable 
instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified in the Capital Outlay 
subfund. 

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes 
budgeted Capital Outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles in 
the United States of America (GAAP) as they pertain to governmental entities state 
that General Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for 
long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived 
exclusively from unrestricted revenues. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

B. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

1. Governmental Funds (Continued) 

General Fund (Continued) 

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of 
New Jersey Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are 
those that result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land, existing 
buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or 
remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources 
can be transferred from and to Current Expense by board resolution. 

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the 
proceeds of specific revenue from State and Federal Government, (other than 
major capital projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local 
appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all 
financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital 
facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The financial resources 
are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by 
the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or 
at a special election. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the 
accumulation of resources for, and payment of principal and interest on bonds 
issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and improvement 
programs 

2. Proprietary Fund Tvee 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, financial 
position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those 
similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Fund 
of the District: 

Enterprise Fund- The Enterprise Fund is utilized to account for operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where 
the intent of the District is that the costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and 
indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis 
be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the District has 
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or 
net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management 
control, accountability or other purposes. 

The District's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

B. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

2. Proprietary Fund Tvpe (Continued) 

Enterprise Fund (Continued) 

All Proprietary Funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital 
maintenance" measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities, 
whether current or noncurrent, associated with their activity are included on their 
balance sheets. Their reported fund equity (net position) is segregated into 
contributed capital and retained earnings, if applicable. Proprietary Fund type 
operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in 
net total position. 

Depreciation of all exhaustive capital assets used by Proprietary Funds is charged 
as an expense against their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on 
Proprietary Fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the 
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives in 
the operation of the Enterprise Funds are approximately 10 years. 

3. Fiduciary Funds 

Trust and Agency Funds - The Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for 
assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, 
private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. The Funds are 
reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Private Purpose Scholarship Funds 

Expendable Trust Fund - An Expendable Trust Fund is accounted for in 
essentially the same manner as the governmental fund types using the 
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Expendable Trust Funds 
account for assets where both the principal and interest may be spent The 
Expendable Trust Fund includes the Unemployment Compensation 
Insurance Fund and Scholarship Funds. 

Unemployment Insurance Trust- The SUI Fund is an employee benefit trust fund 
which accounts for resources held and administered while acting in a fiduciary 
capacity for individuals or other government agencies. Assets are held in trust for 
members of the defined contribution plan. 

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are used to account for the assets that the District 
holds on behalf of others as their agent. These funds are custodial in nature and 
do not involve measurement of results of operations. Agency Funds include payroll 
and student activities funds. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

B. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

4. Long-Term Debt 

Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from Governmental Funds are accounted for 
in the government-wide statements, not in the governmental funds. This includes serial 
bonds outstanding that are expected to be financed from Governmental Funds, the 
outstanding principal balance on capital leases, lease-purchase agreements, compensated 
absences and the outstanding principal on outstanding bonds. When the District became a 
Type II District, all serial bonds are now issued by District 

C. Measurement Focus 

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are prepared and conform with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States applicable to state and local 
governmental units as well as using the economic resources measurement focus. All 
assets, plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources 
associated with the operation of the School District are included on the Statement of Net 
Position. 

2. Fund Financial Statements 

All Governmental Funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current 
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and 
other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current 
financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental 
activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund 
financial statements therefore include reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify 
the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for 
governmental funds. 

All Proprietary Funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement 
focus. With this measurement, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of 
these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total position) is 
segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund­
type operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., 
expenses) in net total position. 

Fiduciary Funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. 

D. Basis of Accounting 

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results of all 
governmental fund types, Trust Funds and Agency Funds. Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and available. "Measurable" means 
the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. State equalization 
monies are recognized as revenue during the period in which they are appropriated. A one-year 
availability period is used for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. 
Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, except for 
principal and interest on general long-term debt which are recorded when due. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. 13asis of Accounting (Continued) 

Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual and under New Jersey State Statute a 
municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted 
upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy 
as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and 
available. The District is entitled to receive moneys under the established payment schedule and the 
unpaid amount is considered to be an "accounts receivable" . 

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results of 
proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds. Under this method, revenues are recognized 
in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized when they are 
incurred. 

E. Budqets!Budqetar v Control 

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the winter of each year for the general, special revenue 
and debt service funds. In accordance with P. L. 2011, c.202, which became effective January 17, 
2012, the district elected to move the annual School Board election to the November general election 
thereby eliminating the vote on the annual base budget. The budgets are approved by the District, 
submitted to the County Office for review and approval and if determined to be within the tax levy cap 
and within the allowable appropriation cap, become effective upon holding of a public hearing and 
final adoption by the District. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
except for the Special Revenue Fund as described later. The legal level of budgetary control is 
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest 
(most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in 
N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)1. Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any 
time during the fiscal year subject to the limitations of N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-2.3 (et seq.). 

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control 
device during the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the 
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP) with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid 
payment for budgetary purposes only and the Special Revenue Fund as noted below. Encumbrance 
accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund 
types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. 

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Fund are maintained on the grant accounting 
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant 
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the 
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained 
to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports. 

The over-expenditures related to on-behalf payments in the General Fund are due to the inclusion of 
the non-budgeted on-behalf payments made by the State of New Jersey as District expenditures. 
There amounts are offset by related revenues and as such do not represent budgetary over­
expenditures. 

The following presents a reconciliation of the General Fund Revenue and Special Revenue Fund 
Revenue from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the Combined Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General, Special 
Revenue and Debt Service Funds to the GAAP basis of accounting as presented in the Combined 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund 
Types. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued) 

Explanation of Differences Between Budgetary Inflows 
and Outflows and GAAP Revenue and ExQenditures 

Special 
General Revenue 

Fund Fund 
Sources/Inflows of Resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary) "revenues" from the 

budgetary comparison schedules. $ 100,661,592 $15,035,493 

Difference - Budget to GAAP: 
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP 

in that encumbrances are recognized as expenditures 
and the related revenue is recognized. 52,278 

State aid payment recognized per GAAP standards in the 
. current year previously recognized for budgetary purposes. 7,369,030 1,030,359 

The last State aid payment is recognized as revenue for 
budgetary purposes and differs from GAAP which does 
not recognize this revenue until the subsequent year 
when the State recognizes the related expense 
(GASB 33). (7,482,027) (1 ,046,000) 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - govern-
mental funds. $ 100,548,595 $15,072,130 

Uses/Outflows of Resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" 

from the budgetary comparison schedule. $ 103,941,608 $ 15,035,493 

Difference - Budget to GAAP: 
The district budgets for claims and compensated 

absences only to the extent expected to be paid, 
rather than on the not modified accrual basis. 305,111 

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered 
but not received are reported in the year the order 
is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year 
the supplies are received for financial reporting 
purposes. (252,833) 

Transfer to and from other funds are presented as 
outflows of budgetary resources but are not 
expenditures for financial reporting purposes. 

Net transfers (outflows) to general fund. (1,584,831) 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement 
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances - governmental funds. $ 103,941,608 $13,502,940 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

F. Encumbrances 

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the 
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open 
encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the Special Revenue Fund, are reported as 
reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities, 
but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services. 

Open encumbrances in the Special Revenue Fund, for which the District has received advances, are 
reflected in the balance sheet as deferred outflow of resources at fiscal year end. 

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made 
at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget 
by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end. 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity 

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly 
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are 
stated at cost plus accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of 
deposit with maturities of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All other 
investments are stated at fair value. 

New Jersey school districts are limited to the types of investments and types of financial 
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey Statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible 
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts. 

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit 
public funds in public depositories protected from loss under provisions of the Governmental 
Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect 
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New 
Jersey. 

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of 
governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds 
in a public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public 
depositories include savings and loan institutions, banks, (both state and national banks) and 
savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must 
pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily 
balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of governmental units. If a public 
depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public 
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units. 

2. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses 

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in 
the Enterprise Fund, are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase. 

Inventories in the Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the 
first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the Enterprise Fund represent payments 
made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2018. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equitv (Continued) 

3. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 

No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded as all amounts are considered 
collectible. 

4. Tuition Receivable 

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The 
charges are subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined. 

5. Tuition Payable 

Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2016-17 and 2017-18 were based on rates established by 
the receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been 
determined. 

6. Short-Term lnterfund Receivab/es/Payab/es 

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than 
charges for goods or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are 
due within one year. 

7. Capital Assets 

General capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are 
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net 
position but are not reported in the fund financial statements. 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for 
additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their 
acquisition value as of the date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of 
$2,000.00. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that 
do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not. 

All reported capital assets except for land are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated 
over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using 
the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

Asset Class 

School Buildings 
Building Improvements 
Vehicles 
Furniture and Equipment 
Food Service Equipment 

Estimated 
Lives 

50 years 
20 years 

6- 8 years 
5- 15 years 
7-20 years 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

8. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) 
until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies 
to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time. 

9. Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as 
vacation, sick leave and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are 
attributable to services already rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that 
is outside the control of the District and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the 
rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are 
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are 
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take 
place. 

The entire sick leave and vacation leave liabilities are reported on the government-wide 
financial statements. 

For Governmental Fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated 
absences is in the amount expected to be paid using expendable available resources. These 
amounts are recorded in the account "compensated absences payable" in the fund from 
which the employees who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The noncurrent portion 
of the liability is not reported. 

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense 
and liability of the fund that will pay for them. 

10. Accrued Liabilities and Noncurrent Obligations 

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government­
wide financial statements. 

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner 
and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the governmental 
funds. However, the noncurrent portion of capital leases, compensated absences and loans 
payable that will be paid from Governmental Funds are reported as a liability in the fund 
financial statements only to the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with 
expendable, available financial resources. 

11. Net Position 

The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred 
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This statement 
defines net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of financial 
position. It is the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. This Statement provides guidance for reporting 
net position within a framework that includes deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources, in addition to assets and liabilities. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

11. Net Position (Continued) 

The District has implemented GASB No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities. This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that 
reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items 
that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of 
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and 
liabilities. 

A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net position by the District that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net 
position by the District that is applicable to a future reporting period. 

Net position is displayed in three components - net investment in capital assets; restricted 
and unrestricted. 

The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt also would be 
included in this component of net position. 

The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. 

The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows 
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the 
determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position. 

12. Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue in all funds represents cash that has been received but not yet earned. 
Unearned revenue in the Special Revenue Fund represents funds collected for future 
programs. 

13. Fund Balances 

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions 
("GASB 54") established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based 
primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon 
the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. Under GASB 54, fund balances in 
the governmental funds financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting and classified into the following five (5) categories, as defined below: 

a. Nonspendable - Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) 
not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
Assets included in this fund balance category include prepaid assets, inventories, 
noncurrent receivables and corpus of any permanent funds. 

b. Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes 
stipulated by constitution, external resource providers or through enabling legislation. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Eguitv (Continued) 

13. Fund Balances (Continued) 

c. Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes 
imposed by a formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making 
authority. The District's highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of 
Education (the "Board") and formal action is taken by resolution of the Board at 
publicly held meetings. Once committed, amounts cannot be used for other 
purposes unless the Board revised or changes the specified use by taking the same 
action (resolution) taken to originally commit these funds. 

d. Assigned - amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but 
do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Interest is 
expressed by the Business Administrator, to whom the Board has delegated the 
authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes, including the 
encumbering of funds. 

e. Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other 
classifications in the general fund. This classification represents fund balance that 
has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or 
assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the only 
fund that reports a position unassigned fund balance amount. In the other 
governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the 
amounts restricted, committed or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary 
to report a negative unassigned fund balance. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy 
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. For the 
unrestricted fund balance, the District first spends committed funds, then assigned funds, and 
finally, unassigned funds. 

14. Proprietary Funds Revenues and Expenses 

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with 
a Proprietary Fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
School District Enterprise Fund, (the Food Service) are charges to customers for sales of 
food service. Operating expenses for Enterprise Funds include the cost of sales, services, 
administrative expense and depreciation on Capital Assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

15. Rebatable Arbitrage 

Rebatable arbitrage results from investing the proceeds of borrowed funds either directly or 
indirectly into investments that are higher in yield than the bond yield incurred on the 
borrowed funds. In accordance with GASB 34, rebatable arbitrage is treated like a claim or 
judgment. All interest income is reported as revenue of the Capital Projects Fund. The 
liability, if any, is recorded in the "Statement of Net Position". 

16. Non-Monetary Transactions 

Commodities received under the Federal Food Distribution Program are received by the 
District and are recorded as nonoperating revenue when received in the Food Service 
Enterprise Fund at market value. The use of the commodities is included in cost of sales. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

17. On-Behalf Payments 

Revenues and expenditures of the general fund include payments made by the State of New 
Jersey social security and post-retirement medical pension contributions for the certified 
teachers and other members of the New Jersey Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. The 
amounts are not required to be included in the District's annual budget. 

18. Allocation of Expenses 

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct 
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Employee benefits, including 
the employer's share of social security, worker's compensation and medical and dental 
benefits, were allocated based on salaries of that program. Depreciation expense, where 
practicable, is specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense column 
of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed to a specific 
function is reported separately on the Statement of Activities. No expenses were allocated as 
"Indirect Expenses". 

19. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions 

In fiscal year 2015, the district implemented GASB 68. This Statement amends GASB 
Statement No. 27. It improves accounting and financial reporting by state and local 
governments for pensions. It also improves information provided by state and local 
government employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. 
This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing 
standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision 
useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and 
creating additional transparency. This Statement replaces the requirement of Statement No. 
27, Accounting for Pension by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the 
requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are 
provided through pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet 
certain criteria. The requirements of Statements 27 and 50 remain applicable for pensions 
that are not covered by the scope of this Statement. 

The District has also implemented GASB Statement 71, Pension Transition for Contributions 
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment to GASB No. 68. The 
objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition 
provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue 
relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government 
employer or nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the 
measurement date of the government's beginning net pension liability. 

Statement 68 requires a state or local government employer (or nonemployer contributing 
entity in a special funding situation) to recognize a net pension liability measured as of a date 
(the measurement date) no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal year. If a state or local 
government employer or nonemployer contributing entity makes a contribution to a defined 
benefit pension plan between the measurement date of the reported net pension liability and 
the end of the government's reporting period, Statement 68 requires that the government 
recognize its contribution as a deferred outflow of resources. 

In addition, Statement 68 requires recognition of deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources for changes in the net pension liability of a state or local government 
employer or nonemployer contributing entity that arise from other types of events. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

20. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Other Post-Retirement Benefits (" OPEB") 

In 2018 the District implemented GASB # 75 which addresses accounting and financial 
reporting for OPES that is provided to the employees of state and local governmental 
employers. This Statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, 
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, revenues and 
expense/expenditures .This Statement GASB # 45 supersedes Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits with other than Pension. 

The participating local education employer allocations included in the supplemental Schedule 
of special funding amounts by employer are provided as each local education employer is 
required to record in their financial statements, a an expense and corresponding revenue, 
their respective amount of total OPES expense attributable to the State of New Jersey under 
the special funding situation and to include their respective amount of total OPES liability in 
their notes to their financial statements 

21. Management Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

22. Extraordinary and Special Items 

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in 
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of 
management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these 
types of transactions occurred during the fiscal year. 

H. Other Accounting Standards 

The District is currently reviewing the following for applicability and potential impact on the financial 
statement: 

• GASB Statement No. 83. Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This Statement 
addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations 
(AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a 
tangible capital asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset 
retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based 
on the guidance in this Statement. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2018. The District does not expect this Statement to impact its 
financial statements. 

• GASB Statement No. 84. Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to 
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and 
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported . This Statement 
establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. 
The focus of the criteria generally is on ( 1) whether a government is controlling the assets 
of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. 
Separate criteria are included to identify component units and postemployment benefit 
arrangements that are fiduciary activities. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2018. The District does not expect this Statement to 71 
impact its financial statements. 



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

H. Other Accounting Standards (Continued) 

• . GASB Statement No. 87. Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the 
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial 
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of 
governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as 
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the 
contract. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is encouraged 

GASB Statement No. 88. Certain Disclosure Related to Debt, including Direct 
Borrowings and Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve 
the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to 
debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities 
governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2018. The District does not expect this Statement to impact its 
financial statements. 

• GASB Statement No. 89. Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are ( 1) to enhance the relevance 
and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a 
reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of 
a construction period. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is encourage. The requirements 
of this Statement should be applied prospectively. The District does not expect this 
Statement to impact its financial statements. 

• GASB Statement No. 90. Majority Equity Interests - an Amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve 
the consistency and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in 
a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement 
information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies 
that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an 
investment if a government's holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an 
investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should 
be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a special purpose government 
engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including 
permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those governments and funds 
should measure the majority equity interest at fair value. 

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. The 
requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the provisions related to (1) 
reporting a majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a component 
unit if the government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be 
applied on a prospective basis. The District does not expect this Statement to impact its 
financial statements. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

I. Subsequent Events 

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions from June 30, 2018 through 
February 25, 2019, the date that the financial statements are issued for possible disclosure and 
recognition in the financial statements, and one item had come to the attention of the District that 
would require disclosure. 

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents includes petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market. The District classifies certificates of deposit 
which have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from the date 
of purchase, as investments. The District is in compliance with GASB Statement No. 3 as amended by 
GASB Statement No. 40. 

A. Deposits 

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in New 
Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the 
United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School districts are also permitted to 
deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund. 

New Jersey Statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that 
exceed depository insurance limits as follows: 

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of 
collected public funds on deposit. 

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital 
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to 
100% of the amount exceeding 75%. 

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank 
of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York or a banking institution that is a member of the 
Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000. 

As of June 30, 2018, cash and cash equivalents (Deposits) of the District consisted of the following: 

Reconciliation by Fund: 
Governmental Fund 
Proprietary Fund 
Fiduciary Fund 

Allocation of Cash and Cash 
Equivalents: 

Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents 

$4,279,054 
34,330 

4,334,215 

$8,647,599 

$1 ,770,825 
6,876,774 

$8,647,599 

Risk Analysis -All of the balances were covered by either federal depository insurance or Governmental Unit 
Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA") as of June 30, 2018 and are considered to have minimal custodial risk. 73 



3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued 

B. Investments 

New Jersey Statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities: 

Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the 
United States of America. This includes instruments such as Treasury bills, notes and bonds. 

Government money market mutual funds. 

Any federal agency or instrumentality obligation authorized by Congress that matures within 
397 days from the date of purchase, and has a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any 
index or external factors. 

Bonds or other obligations of the school district or local unit of which the school district is a 
part. 

Any other obligations with maturities not exceeding 397 days, as permitted by the Division of 
Investments, New Jersey State Department of Treasury. 

Local government investment pools. 

New Jersey State Cash Management Fund. 

Repurchase agreements of fully collateralized securities, subject to special conditions. 

The District had no securities as of June 30, 2018 that would be considered investments as defined 
by GASB No. 3 as amended by GASB No. 40. 
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4. INTERGOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable at June 30, 2018 consisted of Federal source, State source, and 
other revenue. All receivables are considered collectible in full. A summary of the principal items of 
intergovernmental receivables follows: 

General Fund: 
Local Aid: 

Tuition 
District Taxes 

State Aid: 
Extraordinary Aid 
TPAF FICA Reimbursement 

Special Revenue Fund: 
Local Source 

State Source 

Federal Source 

Capital Projects Fund: 
Local Source 

Proprietary Fund: 
Enterprise Fund: 

State Source 

Federal Source 

Governmental 
Fund Financial 

Statements 

$ 12,459 
61,891 

$ 74,350 

$ 513,839 
139,786 

$ 653,625 

$ 61,394 

$ 2,888 

$ 1.272,627 

$ 1.145,070 

Business­
Type 

Activities 

$ 7,393 

$ 527,435 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital Asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
June 30, 2017 Additions Retirements June 30, 2018 

Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets Not Being 

Depreciated: 
Land $ 1,511,880 $ $ $ 1,511,880 
Construction-in-Progress 1,809,259 1,809,259 

1,511,880 1,511,880 3,321 '139 
Capital Assets Being 

Depreciated: 
Site Improvements and 

Buildings 160,864,762 160,864,762 
Machinery and Equipment 6,753,833 629,041 7,382,874 

Total Historical Cost 167,618,595 629,041 168,247,636 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
for Site Improvements 

and Buildings (33, 383, 573) (2,940,671) (36,324,244) 
Machinery and 

Equipment (2,562,511) (214,413) (2, 776,924) 
Total Accumulated Depreciation (35,946,084) (3, 155,084) (39, 101, 168) 

Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated, Net of 
Accumulated Depreciation 131,672,511 {2,526,043) 129,146,468 

Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets, Net $ 133,184,391 $ (2, 526, 043) $ $ 132,467,607 

Business-T~(2e Activities 
Machinery and Equipment $ 672,004 $ 672,004 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
for Machinery and 
Equipment (638,634) (18,287) (656,921) 

Business-Type Activities 
Capital Assets, Net $ 33,370 $ (18,287) $ $ 15,083 

Detail of Additions: 
Governmental Activities: 

General Fund $ 2,929,082 
Special Revenue Fund 33,770 
Capital Projects Fund 629,041 

3,591,893 
Less: Rent Expense (1,153,593) 

$ 2,438,300 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Regular Instruction 
Special Education Instruction 
Support Services and Undistributed Cost: 

Student and Instruction Related Services 
School Administrative Services 
Plant Opertions and Maintenance 
Pupil Transportation 

6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES AND DEBT 

$1,262,034 
94,653 

315,508 
220,856 

1,198,932 
63,101 

$3,155,084 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the following changes occurred in liabilities: 

Beginning Ending Due 
Balance Increase Decrease Balance One Year 

Governmental 

Activities 

General 

Compensated 

Absences Payable $ 1,575,252 $ 25,354 $ 68,285 $ 1,532,321 $ 
Net Pension 

Liability PERS 

and ERFEC 27,361,731 4,751,146 22,610,585 

$ 28,936,983 $ 25,354 $ 4,819,431 $ 24,142,906 $ 

Bonds and Notes Payable Currently Outstanding are Summarized as Follows 

Long-Term 

Portion 

$ 1,532,321 

22,610,585 

$ 24,142,906 

As of General Education November of 2017, City of Orange Township became a Type II School District. 
Therefore, there are School Notes Payable outstanding of$ 3,744,000 that were issued for the School 
District by the Municipality that are due December 7, 2018. 

A. Debt Service Requirements 

As of June 30, 2018, there were Notes Payable outstanding that would require an interest payable of 
$93,600 in the 2018-2019 School Year. 

B. Bonds Authorized but Not Issued 

There are no Bonds Authorized but Not Issued as of June 30, 2018. 

C. Notes Issued 

As of June 30, 2018, there was a Note issued dated December 7, 2018 by the Municipality in the 
amount of $3,744,000 for the School District. 
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES AND DEBT (Continued) 

The Bonds are general obligations of the Board and are secured by a pledge of the full faith and 
credit of the Board for the payment of the principal thereof and the interest thereon and, unless paid 
from other sources, the Bonds are payable from ad valorem taxes to be levied on all taxable real 
property in the school district, without limitation as to rate or amount. The Bonds are additionally 
secured by the provisions of the New Jersey School Bond Reserve Act. 

The District, in conjunction with the issuance of the Bonds, has agreed to undertake and provide 
certain information to Bondholders on a continuing basis. The Securities and Exchange Commission 
("SEC") Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) "Continuing Disclosure" requirements, which the District has adopted, 
requires that various financial information about the District and the Municipality be provided annually 
to various information repositories. The requirement effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 
has been complied with. 

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the Municipality through 
referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. 
Bonds issued by the Board are general obligation bonds. 

7. OPERATING LEASES 

The District is leasing several school buildings. The unit prices of all individual items lease purchased are 
less than the capitalization threshold for fixed assets or do not qualify as capital assets and as a result, 
are classified as operating leases. The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments 
under the operating leases and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2018: 

School 
Year Buildings Total 

2017 
2019 $ 807,606 $ 807,606 
2020 756,515 756,515 
2021 756,515 756,515 
2022 759,711 759,711 

3,080,347 3,080,347 

Future Obligations 14,415,529 14,415,529 

Total Net Minimum Present 
Value Lease Payments $ 17,495,876 $ 17,495,876 
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8. PENSION PLANS 

Description of Plan 

All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees' Retirement System or 
the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute and are 
administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State of 
New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both systems will be assumed by the State of New 
Jersey should the systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees' 
Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. 

Teachers' Pension and Annuit y Fund (TPAFJ 

The State of New Jersey, Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) is a cost sharing multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan with a special-funding situation, by which the State of New Jersey 
(the State) is responsible to fund 100% of the employer contribution, excluding any local employer early 
retirement incentive (ERI) contributions. TPAF is administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of 
Pensions and Benefits (the Division). For additional information about TPAF, please refer to Division's 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at 
www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/anorprts.shtml. 

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66, TPAF provides retirement, death and 
disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 
25 years of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their 
own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned 
on the contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full 
interest credited to the members' accounts. 

The following represents the membership tiers for TPAF: 

Tier Definition 

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to 

November 2, 2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to 

May 22, 2010 
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 

28, 2011 
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011 

Service retirement benefits of 1/551
h of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to 

tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service 
reti rement benefits of 1/601

h of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 
members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are 
available to tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 with 25 or more years of service 
credit before age 62, and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or more years of service credit. Benefits are 
reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the retirement age for 
his/her respective tier. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service 
credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier 

Public Employees ' Retirement System (PERS) 

The State of New Jersey, Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and 
Benefits (the Division). For additional information about PFRS, please refer to Division's Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at www.state.nLus/treasury/penslons/annrprts.shtml. 
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Public Employees ' Retirement System (PERS) (Con tinued) 

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43: 15A. PERS provides retirement, death and 
disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 
25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. 

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS: 

Tier Definition 

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to 

November 2, 2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to 

May 22, 2010 
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 

28,2011 
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011 

Service retirement benefits of 1/551
h of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to 

tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service 
retirement benefits of 1/601

h of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 
members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are 
available to tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 with 25 or more years of service 
credit before age 62, and tier 5 before age 65 with 30 or more years of service credit. Benefits are 
reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a 
member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members 
can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. 
Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 1 0 years of service credit and have not 
reached the service retirement age for the respective tier. 

Funding Policy - The contribution policy is set by New Jersey Statutes and contributions are required by 
active members and contributing members. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended 
by State of New Jersey legislation. Under the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, employee contribution 
rates for TPAF and PERS increased from 5.5% to 6.5% of employees' annual compensation. An 
additional increase is to be phased in over the next seven years that will bring the total pension 
contribution rate to 7.5% of employees' annual compensation. Employers are required to contribute at an 
actuarially determined rate in both the TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes 
funding for cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement medical 
premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF. 

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the State 
in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are considered to 
be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a non­
employer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly (except for 
employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to 
report in the financial statements of the local participating employers. However, the notes to the financial 
statements of the local participating employers must disclose the portion of the non-employer contributing 
entities total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local participating 
employer. 
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Employee Pension Fund of Essex County 

The Employee Pension Fund of Essex County was established under N.J.S.A. 18A:66-94 et seq. for 
board of education employees of first-class counties which has been a closed Pension System since 
1980. The law does the following: 

1) Contributions by the members at 3% the salary contributions from members of the Board of 
Education Employees' Pension Fund of Essex County. 

2) Interest charged for loans are 4% to members of the fund, however loans granted are not to 
exceed 50% of a member's accumulated contributions. 

3) Allows a member with an outstanding loan from the retirement system upon retirement to repay 
the balance by deductions from the member's pension not exceeding 20% of each periodic 
benefit payment. 

4) Increases the value, for the purpose of calculating most pensions under the fund, of each year 
of service credited in the fund from one-fiftieth of the average annual compensation received in 
any three years of creditable service providing the largest possible benefit to one-forty-fifth of 
such average annual compensation. This change applies to pensions payable upon retirement 
for service, age or ordinary disability, deferred retirement, and early retirement. 

Funding Policy 

Three- Year Trend Information for PERS 

Annual Percentage Net 
Year Pension ofAPC Cost to 

Ending Cost (APC) Contributed District 

June 30, 2018 $ 931,984 100% $ 931,984 
June 30, 2017 843,968 100% 843,968 
June 30, 2016 1,102,012 100% 1,102,012 

Three- Year Trend Information for TPAF 
(Paid On-Behalf of the District) 

Post-
Annual Percentage Long-Term Retirement 

Year Pension ofAPC Disability Medical 
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Insurance Benefits 

June 30, 2018 $5,582,517 100% $ 14,063 $3,605,629 
June 30, 2017 4,171,520 100% 17,360 3,475,826 
June 30, 2016 3,058,805 100% 3,642,192 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the State of New Jersey contributed $5,582,517 to the TPAF 
for pension, $14,063 for long-term disability insurance and $3,605,629 for post-retirement medical 
benefits On-Behalf of the District. Also in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66, the State of New Jersey 
reimbursed the District $2,846,458 during the year ended June 30, 2018 for the employer's share of 
social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries. This amount has 
been included in the basic financial statements, and the combining and individual fund and account group 
statements and schedules as a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB 24. 
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

Public Employees' Retirement Svstem (PERS) 

The information for PERS was abstracted from State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement 
System Schedules of Employer Allocations and Schedules of Pension Amounts by Employer as of June 
30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 Independent Auditor's Report dated April 27, 2018 and April 6, 2017, 
respectively. 

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of $22,162,965 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 (the Measurement Date), 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of 
the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all participating school districts, actuarially determined. 

June 30, 

District Proportionate Share 0.095208277% 0.091109975% 

Difference- lncrease/(Decrease) 0.004098302% 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERSJ 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension income of $6,254,391. At June 30, 
2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
PERS from the following sources: 

Change in Assumption 
Difference Between Expected and Actual 

Experience 
Changes in Proportion 
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual 

Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 
District Contributions Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date 

Total 

Analysis of Deferred Outflow of Resources 
PERS 
Employee Pension Fund of Essex County 

Deferred 
Outflow of 
Resources 

$4,465,074 

521,861 
1,676,033 

150,915 

882,083 

$7,695,966 

$7,695,966 
71,712 

$7,767,678 

Deferred 
Inflow of 

Resources 

$4,448,704 

$4,448.704 
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

The reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school district 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2018, the 
plan measurement date is June 30, 2017) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in 
the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Additional Information: 

Year Ended 
June 30 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

Collective balances are as follows: 

Collective Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Collective Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Collective Net Pension Liability 
Collective Total Pension Expenses 

Actuarial Assumptions 

Amount 

$ 521,737.69 
787,314.82 
477,072.53 

(634,507.69) 
(462,471.40) 

June 30, 2017 

$ 6,424,455,842 
5,700,625,981 

23,278,401,588 
1,694,305,613 

June 30, 2016 

$ 8,685,338,380 
870,131,595 

29,617,131,759 
2,830, 763,540 

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2016, which rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the 
following assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement. 

Inflation 
Salary Increases: 

Through 2026 
Thereafter 

Investment Rate of Return 

Mortality Rates 

2.25 Percent 

1.65-4.15 Percent (based on age) 
2.65-5.15 Percent (based on age) 

7.00 Percent 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Preretirement Mortality Table for 
male and female active participants. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males 
and 7 years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base 
year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection 
scale. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female 
Mortality Tables (set back 1 year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of 
former members and a one-year static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, 
the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members provide for future improvements in 
mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified 
MP-2014 projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the 
RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward 1 year for females). 
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014. It is likely that future experience will not 
exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these 
assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience 
deviates; the larger the impact on future financial statements. 

Long-Term Rate of Return 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at 
June 30, 2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division 
of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long­
term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges 
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each 
major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the 
following table: 

Asset Class 

Absolute Return/Risk Mitigation 
Cash Equivalents 
U.S. Treasuries 
Investment Grade Credit 
Public High Yield 
Global Diversified Credit 
Credit Oriented Hedge Funds 
Debt Related Private Equity 
Debt Related Real Estate 
Private Real Asset 
Equity Related Real Estate 
U.S. Equity 
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 
Emerging Market Equities 
BuyoutsNenture Capital 

Discount Rate 

Target 
Allocation 

5.00% 
5.50 
3.00 

10.00 
2.50 
5.00 
1.00 
2.00 
1.00 
2.50 
6.25 

30.00 
11.50 
6.50 
8.25 

100.00% 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

5.51% 
1.00 
1.87 
3.78 
6.82 
7.10 
6.60 

10.63 
6.61 

11.83 
9.23 
8.19 
9.00 

11.64 
13.08 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30, 2017. This single 
blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 
7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond 
Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average 
rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that 
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. 
The local employers contributed 1 00% of their actuarially determined contributions. Based on those 
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members through 2040. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2040 and the municip bond 
rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability. 
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Oiscount Rate 

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of June 30, 
2017 [measurement dates] respectively, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as 
what the collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -
percentage point lower or 1- percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

District's Proportionate Share 
of the Pension liability 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

1% 
Decrease 

4.00% 

$ 27,494,662 

June 30, 2017 
At Current 1% 

Discount Rate Increase 
5.00% 6.00% 

$ 22,162,965 $ 17,721,001 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) or by visiting 
their website at www.state. nj. us/treasury/pensions/pers1. 

Teachers' Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) 

Data for the TPAF was abstracted from the State of New Jersey Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 
Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations and Schedules of Pension Amounts by Employer 
and Nonemployer as of June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 Independent Auditor's Reports dated June 13, 
2018 and July 13, 2017, respectively. 

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the State 
in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are considered to be 
in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a 
nonemployer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the 
plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or deferred outflows 
or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local participating employers. However, the notes to 
the financial statements of the local participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer 
contributing entities' total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local 
participating employer. 

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District recognized at June 30, 
2017 was as follows: 

Net Pension Liability: 
State's Proportionate Share Associated 
with the District $ 250,051,681 
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Teachers' Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued) 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2016. The net 
pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts 
and the State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016, the proportion of the TPAF 
net pension liability associated with the District is as follows. 

District Proportionate Share 

Difference- Increase 

June 30, 

0.3708666684% 

-0.0111788576% 

0.3820455260% 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense and revenue of 
$17,322,314 for contributions provided by the State. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary Increases: 

2012-2021 
Thereafter 

Investment Rate of Return 

2.25% 

Varies based on experience 
Varies based on experience 
7.00% 

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the experience of TPAF 
members reflecting mortality improvement on a generational basis based on a 60-year average of Social 
Security data from 1953 to 2013. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2015. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at 
June 30, 2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division 
of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long­
term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges 
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each 
major asset class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the 
table as follows: 
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Teachers' Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued) 

Absolute Return/Risk Mitigation 
Cash Equivalents 
U.S. Treasuries 
Investment Grade Credit 
Public High Yield 
Global Diversified Credit 
Credit Oriented Hedge Funds 
Debt Related Private Equity 
Debt Related Real Estate 
Private Real Asset 
Equity Related Real Estate 
U.S. Equity 
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 
Emerging Markets Equity 
BuyoutsNenture Capital 

Discount Rate 

Target 
Allocation 

5.00% 
5.50 
3.00 

10.00 
2.50 
5.00 
1.00 
2.00 
1.00 
2.50 
6.25 

30.00 
11.50 
6.50 
8.25 

100.00 % 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

5.51% 
1.00 
1.87 
3.78 
6.82 
7.10 
6.60 

10.63 
6.61 

11.83 
9.23 
8.19 
9.00 

11.64 
13.08 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.25% as of June 30, 2017. This 
single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017, based on the Bond 
Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal 
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the 
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member 
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the most recent fiscal 
year. The state contributed 40% of the actuarially determined contributions. Based on those 
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members through 2036. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2036, and the 
municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total 
pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District as of 
June 30, 2018 (measurement date June 30, 2017) calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above 
as well as what the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentgae-point 
higher than the current rate: 

State's Proportionate Share of the 
Net Pension Liability Associated 
with the District 

1% 
Decrease 

3.25% 

$298,155,778 

At Current 
Discount Rate 

4.25% 

$250,966,250 

1% 
Increase 
5.25% 

$212,091,313 
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Teachers' Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAFJ (Continued) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
TPAF financial report. 

Additional Information 

Collective balances of the Local Group are as follows: 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Net Pension Liability 
Total Expenses- Non-employer 

Emplovee Pension Fund of Essex County 

2017 

$14,251,854,934 
11,807,238,433 
67,423,605,859 

4,682,493,081 

June 30, 
2016 

$17,440,003,201 
195,027,919 

78,666,367,052 
5,915,082,656 

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of $447,620 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the date the District's 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to projected contribution of all participating school district 
actuarially determined. As of June 30, 2018, the District's proportionate share was 1.4243377%. The 
Deferred Outflows of Resources was reported as $71,712 and required pension income was $186.147. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

Cost-of-living adjustments 

4.50% 

6.50%, net of pension plan investment 
Expense, including inflation 

2.00% 

For active members, inactive members and healthy retirees, mortality rates were based on the RP- 2000 
separate annuitant and nonannuitant tables with static projections using Scale AA through the valuation 
year plus 7 years for annuitants and the valuation year plus 15 years for nonannuitants. For disabled 
retirees, mortality rates are based on the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table, set forward 10 years. 

The actuarial assumptions are the same as the assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 funding actuarial 
valuation. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of 
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset 
allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table: 
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Employee Pension Fund of Essex County (Continued) 

Long-Term 
Expected 

Target Real Rate 
Asset Class Allocation of Return* 

U.S. Large Cap Equity 50% 6.71% 

U.S. Small Cap Equity 10% 6.71% 

U.S. Fixed Income 40% 2.11% 

Total 100% 

*Net of 2. 0% inflation assumption. Expected rates are presented as arithmetic means. 

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.50% as of June 30, 
2017. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will 
be made at the actuarially determined amount, including the reimbursement of administrative 
expenses and COLA payments. Based on those assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net 
pension liability of the school districts calculated using the discount rate of 6.50%, as well as what the 
school districts' net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one 
percentage point lower (5.50%) or one percentage point higher (7.50%) than the current rate: 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Discount Increase 
(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%) 

District's Proportionate Share of 
the Net Pension Liability $ 569,136 $ 407,078 $ 265,991 

9. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PROGRAM 

Description of System 

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) was established on July 1, 2007 for certain public 
employees under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007. The program 
provides eligible members, with a minimum base salary of $1,500.00 or more, with a tax-sheltered, 
defined contribution retirement benefit, in addition to life insurance and disability coverage. The DCRP is 
jointly administered by the Division of Pensions and Benefits and Prudential Financial. 

If the eligible elected or appointed official will earn less than $5,000.00 annually, the official may choose 
to waive participation in the DCRP for that office or position. This waiver is irrevocable. 

As of May 21, 2010, the minimum base salary required for eligibility in the DCRP was increased to 
$5,000.00. 
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9. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PROGRAM (Continued) 

De$cription of System (Continued) 

This retirement program is a new pension system where the value of the pension is based on the amount 
of the contribution made by the employee and employer and through investment earnings. It is similar to 
a Deferred Compensation Program where the employee has a portion of tax deferred salary placed into 
an account that the employee manages through investment options provided by the employer. 

The law required that three classes of employees enroll in the DCRP, detailed as follows: 

All elected officials taking office on or after July 1, 2007, except that a person who is reelected 
to an elected office held prior to that date without a break in service may remain in the Public 
Employees' Retirement System (PERS). 

A Governor appointee with the advice and consent of the Legislature or who serves at the 
pleasure of the Governor only during that Governor's term of office. 

Employees enrolled in the PERS on or after July 1, 2007 who earn salary in excess of 
established "maximum compensation" limits. 

Employees otherwise eligible to enroll in the PERS on or after November 2, 2008 who do not 
earn the minimum salary for PERS Tier 3, but who earn salary of at least $5,000.00. 

Employees otherwise eligible to enroll in the PERS after May 21, 2010, who do not work the 
minimum number of hours per week required for PERS Tier 4 or Tier 5 enrollment (32 hours 
per week) but who earn salary of at least $5,000.00 annually. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing requirement, other employees who hold a professional license or certificate 
or meet other exceptions are permitted to remain to join or remain in PERS. 

10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS ("OPEB'J 

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required TPAF and PERS, 
respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after 
accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P. L. 2007, c.1 03 amended the law 
to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created 
separate funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical 
benefits for retired State employees and retired educational employees. The cost of these benefits is 
funded through contributions by the State in accordance with Chapter 62, P.L. 1994. Funding of post­
retirement medical premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in 
fiscal year 1994. 

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to Chapter 126, P.L. 1992, which provides free 
health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of 
education or county college with 25 years of service. The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired 
Employees Plan is a multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan that is administered on a pay-as-you­
go basis. 

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes 
Annotated, Title 52, Article 17.25 et. seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the 
program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. 

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75. 

Employees (statewide) covered by benefit terms. At June 30, 2017 the following employees were 
covered by the benefit terms: 

TPAF Participant Retirees -There were 112,966 retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits 
and the State contributed $1.39 billion on their behalf. 90 



10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS ("OPEB'J 

PERS Participant Retirees -The State paid $238.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 20,913 
eligible retired members in fiscal year 2017 

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF Medical (Paid On-Behalf of the District) 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30. 

2018 
2017 
2016 

Post-Retirement Medical 

$ 3,605,629.00 
3,475,826.00 
3,642,192.00 

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make 
employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The District's 
proportionate share percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 
75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective net OPEB 
liability on the Statement of Net Position. The District is required to record in their financial statements, as 
an expense and corresponding revenue, their respective amount of total OPEB expense attributable to 
the State of New Jersey under the special funding situation. Accordingly, the following OPEB liability note 
information is derived from reports provided by the State of New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits 
and is reported at the board of education level. Note that actual numbers are published in the NJ State's 
CAFR: (https://www.nj.gov/treasury/omb/publications/archives.shtml). 

The portion of the PERS and TPAF OPEB Liability that was associated with the District recognized at 
June 30, 2017 was as follows: 

Net OPEB Liability: 
State's Proportionate Share Associated 
with the District $ 147,685,817.00 

The proportion of the PERS and TPAF Net OPEB Liability associated with the District's liability is as 
follows: 

2016 

0.27532858391% 0.2729507852% 

Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability 

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
June 30, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan 
member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation used the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement: 

Inflation Rate 

Salary Increases: 
Through 2026 

Thereafter 

2.50% 

TPAFIABP 
(Based on Years of Service) 

1.55-4.55% 

2.00-5.45% 

PERS 
(Based on Age) 

2.15-4.15% 

3.15-5.15% 
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10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS ("OPEB") (CONTINUED) 

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee 
Male/Female mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central 
year using the MP-2017 scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount­
Weighted Healthy Annuitant Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement projections 
from the central year using the MP-2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2014 
Headcount-Weighted Disabled Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement 
projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale. 

Health Care Trend Assumptions 

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 5.9% and 
decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical 
benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. For health maintenance organization (HMO) medical benefits, the trend 
rate is initially 5.9% and decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine years. For prescription drug 
benefits, the initial trend rate is 10.5% decreasing to a 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5% 
and will continue in all future years. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate for June 30, 2017 was 3.58%. This represents the municipal bond return rate as 
chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes 
tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. 

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following represents the total nonemployer OPEB liability associated with the District as of June 30, 
2017, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB 
liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage 
point higher than the current rate: 

June 30, 2017 
At 1% At Discount At 1% 

Decrease Rate Increase 
(2 .58%) (3.58%) (4.58%) 

$ 175,313,720 $ 147,685,817 $125,771,102 

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Trend Rate 

The following represents the total nonemployer OPEB associated with the District liability as of June 30, 
2017, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB 
liability would be if it was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate: 

1% Decrease 

$121,457,308 

June 30, 2017 
Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rate 

$ 147,685,817 

1% Increase 

$ 182,516,969 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016. 
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10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS ("OPEB") (CONTINUED) 

Shown below are details regarding the Total OPEB Liability for the measurement period from June 30, 
2016 to June 30, 2017: 

Balance as of June 30, 2016 Measurement Date 

Changes Recognized for the Fiscal Year: 
Service Cost 
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 
Changes of Assumptions 
Gross Benefit Payments 
Contributions from the Member 

Net Changes 

Balance as of June 30, 2017 Measurement Date 

Total OPEB 
Liability 

$ 157,852,309 

9,098,628 
4,711,481 

(20,681 ,843) 
(3,420,717) 

125,959 
(10,166,492) 

$ 147,685.817 

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.85% as of June 30, 
2016 to 3.58% as of June 30, 2017. 

The components of the Net OPEB Liability associated with the District as of June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Total OPEB Liability 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Net OPEB Liability 
Net Position as a Percentage of OPEB Liability 
OPEB Expense 

[Measurement Date] 
June 30. 2017 

$147,685,817 
None 

$147,685,817 
0.00% 

$ 11,859,688 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the board of education recognized OPEB expense of $11,859,688 
determined by the State as the total OPEB liability for benefits provided through a defined benefit OPEB 
plan that is not administered through a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBS No. 75 and 
in which there is a special funding situation. 

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the District proportionate share of school retirees OPEB is zero, there 
is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources. At June 30, 2017, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to retired school employee's OPEB from the following sources: 

The following table illustrates the Deferred Inflows and Outflows as of June 30, 2017 under GASB 75 
prior to any reduction due to the Fiscal Year 2018 amortizations. 

Assumption Changes 
Changes in Proportion 
Sub-Total 
Contributions Made in Fiscal Year Ending 2018 
After June 30, 2017 Measurement Date 

Total 

Deferred 
Outflows 

$ 
1,086,591 
1,086,591 

N/A 

$ 1,086,591 

Deferred 
Inflows 

$ (17,466,209) 

(17,466,209) 

N/A 

$ {17,466,209) 
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10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS ("OPEB") (CONTINUED) 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB (Continued) 

Amount recognized in the deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in the OPEB (revenue) expense as follows: 

Measurement Period Ending June 30, 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

Total Thereafter 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

$ (2,045,224) 
(2,045,224) 
(2,045,224) 
(2, 045,224) 
(2, 045,224) 
(7,240,092) 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
TPAF financial report. 

Add itional Information 

Collective balances of the Local Education Group are as follows: 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Net OPEB Liability 
Total Expenses - Non-employer 

June 30, 

$ 99,843,255 
(6,443,612,287) 
53,639,841 ,858 
3,348,490,523 

$ 

2016 

57,831,784,184 
4,450,317,484 

The total nonemployer OPEB liability does not include certain other postemployment benefit obligations 
that are provided by the local education employers. The reporting of these benefits are the responsibility 
of the individual local education employers. 

11. COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. , unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated 
Absences". A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not 
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as 
employees earn the rights to the benefits. 

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the 
District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The District's 
policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to 
subsequent years. Upon retirement employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in 
accordance with the District's agreements with the various employee unions. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the Governmental Fund types is recorded in the 
Statement of Net Position. The current portion of the compensated absence balance of the 
Governmental Funds is not considered material to the applicable funds total liabilities, and therefore is not 
shown separately from the long-term liability balance of compensated absences. 
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11. COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued) 

The liability for vested compensated absences for proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds as 
the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2018, no liability existed for compensated absences in 
the proprietary fund types 

12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

The District offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance 
with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the Great American 
Plan Administrators, permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts 
deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or 
unforeseeable emergency. 

13. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Settled claims resulting from 
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Property and Liabilitv Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, 
liability and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical 
Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

New Jersev Unemplovment Compensation Insurance- The District has elected to fund its New Jersey 
Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under this plan, 
the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to former 
employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to 
the State. 

Medica/Insurance 

The district has opted for the traditional monthly per employee premium plan for its health benefits 
coverage. The cost to the School District is the billed amount less employee required contributions. 

14. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

There were interfund balances on the balance sheet as at June 30, 2018: 

General Fund: 
Due to Agency Fund 

Agency Fund: 
Due from General Fund 

lnterfunds 
Receivable 

$ 

718 

$ 718 

lnterfunds 
Payable 

$ 718 

$ 718 

The amount of transfers identified above are considered routine and are inconsistent with activities of the 
Funds since the amount was a reimbursement for employee reimbursements 

15. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT 

The District did not maintain a Capital Reserve Account as of June 30, 2018. 
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16. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES 

GENERAL FUND 

The District has a deficit fund balance of $5,594,366 in the General Fund as of June 30, 2018 as reported 
in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). P.L. 2003, c.97 provides that in the event a state school 
aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record the last state aid 
payment as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The bill provides legal 
authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For intergovernmental 
transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) 
should be in symmetry, i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a 
liability. Since the State is recording the last state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the school 
district cannot recognize the last state aid payments on the GAAP financial statements until the year the 
State records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the last state aid payments, General 
Fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the District is facing financial difficulties. 

Pursuant to P.L. 2003, c. 97 any negative unreserved, undesignated General Fund balance that is 
reported as a direct result from a delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year is not 
considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The District 
deficit in the GAAP funds statements of $5,594.366 is less than the last state aid payments. 

The District was in compliance with the budget regulations of the State of New Jersey since revenues and 
expenditures for TPAF are not required to be anticipated and budgeted in the final budget as recorded on 
the Budgetary Comparison Schedule (C-1). 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

The District has a deficit fund balance of $494,834 in the Special Revenue Fund as of June 30, 2018 as 
reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event 
a state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record the 
last state aid payment as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The bill 
provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For 
intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, 
asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the other government 
recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the last two (2) state aid payments in the subsequent 
fiscal year, the school district cannot recognize the last state aid payment on the GAAP financial 
statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the last 
state aid payment, the Special Revenue Fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the district is 
facing financial difficulties. 

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unreserved, undesignated general fund balance that is 
reported as a direct result from a delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not 
considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The District 
deficit in the GAAP funds statements of $494,834 in the Special Revenue Fund is less than last state aid 
payment in the Special Revenue Fund. 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

The District has a deficit fund balance of $23,044 in the Debt Service Fund as of June 30, 2018 as 
reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). This a result of the General Election in 
November 2017 whereby the voters approved the School District the changing from a Type I to a Type II 
which resulted in the School District assuming the interest cost. In the 2018-2019 School District Budget 
the School District has raised the deficit and provide for the 2018-2019 debt service requirement. 
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17. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED 

General Fund - Under the GAAP Basis the District has a General Fund balance in the amount of 
$789,739 at June 30, 2018. If the District was able to realize the 19th and 20th state payments, the District 
would have the following, $3,004,793 is assigned for other purposes (encumbrances); $2,600,000 is 
restricted as excess surplus (from 2017-201 8); $779,312 is restricted- excess surplus a designated for 
subsequent years expenditures and, $1, 887,661 is unassigned. The District received the 19th and 20th 
state aid payments in July 2017. 

18. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

A. Grant Programs - The school district participates in federally and state assisted grant programs. 
These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their 
representatives. The school district is potentially liable for expenditures which may be disallowed 
pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware of any material items 
of noncompliance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures. 

B. Litigation - The Board Attorney's letter did not indicate any litigation, claims or contingent 
liabilities that are either not covered by the Board's insurance carrier or would have a material 
financial impact on the Board. 

19. NET POSITION 

Enterprise Fund 

Operations of the Food Service Fund resulted in a net loss of $102,323 in fiscal year 2018. This loss 
resulted in a decrease to the net position of $76,370 as of June 30, 2018. 

20. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS 

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, the designation for Restricted Fund Balance- Excess Surplus is a 
required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing 
Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at 
the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund 
balance in their subsequent years' budget. There was an excess fund balance of$ 779,312 at June 30, 
2018. 

21. RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE- GENERAL FUND 

The Surpluses are presented on a GAAP Basis and a 
Reconciliation from the Budget Basis to the GAAP 
Basis is as follows: 

Balance on a Budget Basis on the General Fund 
Budgetary Basis Comparison 

Less: Allocation of State Aid Payment Not 
Recognized on a GAAP Basis 

Balances on a GAAP Basis on the Governmental Fund 
Balance Sheet 

Unassigned 

$ 8,271,766 

7,482,027 

$ 789,739 
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22. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state governments. A 
significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, could have an effect on the District's 
programs and activities. 

23. TAX ABATEMENTS 

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an agreement 
between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to forgo tax 
revenues and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to 
economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. However, the county or 
municipality in which the school district is situated may have entered into tax abatement agreements, and 
that potential must be disclosed in these financial statements. If the county or municipality entered into 
tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect the school district's local tax revenue 
because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must effectively be 
recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the school district. 

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise their 
minimum tax levy using the required local share provision at N.J.S.A.18A:7F-5(b), the loss of revenue 
resulting from the municipality or county having entered into a tax abatement agreement is indeterminate 
due to the complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the New Jersey 
Department of Education based upon district property value and wealth. 

The City of Orange Township has one long-term tax exemption, as authorized by New Jersey State 
Statutes. N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. sets forth the criteria and mechanism by which property taxes can 
and are abated. The latest user friendly budget indicates that there were no property abatements. For the 
prior year, the property was assessed at $717,100.00 with the amount of taxes being $34,277.38. 

24. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On October 11, 2018, the School District of the City of Orange Township held a Bond Sale (Series 2018) 
of $3,744,000 for the authorized debt with principal payment each September 1 starting in 2020 and 
interest payments ever February 15 and August 15 each year beginning September 1, 2019. 
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C-1 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT Sheet#1 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Variance 
Original Budget Final Final to 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual 

REVENUES: 
Local Sources: 

Local Tax Levy $ 12,164,664 $ $ 12,164,664 $ 12,164,664 $ 
Tuition 140,000 140,000 61,439 (78,561) 
Miscellaneous 170 000 170 000 541 667 371 687 

Total- Local Sources 12A74,664 12,474,664 12,767 790 293 126 

State Sources: 
Extraordinary Aid 432,340 432,340 513,839 81,499 
Consolidated Aid 7,152,931 7,152,931 7,152,931 
Categortcal Special Education 2,919,794 2,919,794 2,919,794 
Equalization Aid 61,067,087 1,177,789 62,244,876 62,244,876 
Categortcal Securtty Aid 1,858,563 1,858,563 1,858,563 
Categortcal Transportation Aid 568,151 568,151 568,151 
Under Adequacy Aid 265,589 265,589 265,589 
PARCC Readiness Aid 49,800 49,800 49,800 
Per Pupil Growth Aid 49,800 49,800 49,800 
Professional Learning Community Aid 52,570 52,570 52,570 
Host Distrtct Support Aid 40,403 40,403 40,403 
TPAF Pension (On-Behalf- Nonbudgeted) 5,582,517 5,582,517 
TPAF Medical (On-Behalf- Nonbudgeted) 3,605,629 3,605,629 
TPAF Long-Tenn Disability Insurance (On-Behalf- Nonbudgeted) 14,063 14,063 
TPAF Social Securtty (Reimbursed- Nonbudgeted) 2,846,458 2 846 458 

Total State Sources 74,457,028 1,177,789 75,634 ,617 87 ,764.963 12,130,1 66 

Federal Sources: 
Medical Assistance Program 145 436 145 436 128 819 (16,617) 

Total- Federal Sources 145 436 145 436 128 819 (16,617) 

Total Revenues 87,077,128 1,177,789 88,254,917 100,661,592 12,406,675 

EXPENDITURES 
Current Expense: 

Regular Programs • Instruction: 
Preschool- Sa lanes of Teachers 469,000 (152,592) 316,408 316,408 
Kindergarten- Sa lanes of Teachers 1,356,899 (13,883) 1,343,016 1,337,893 5,123 
Grades 1-5- Salartes of Teachers 7,910,832 (61,604) 7,849,228 7,845,721 3,507 
Grades 6-8- Salartes of Teachers 5,738,391 (49,939) 5,688,452 5,684,295 4,157 
Grades 9-12- Salartes of Teachers 5,888,991 (464,819) 5,424,172 5,367,518 56,654 

Regular Programs -Home Instruction: 
Salartes of Teachers 50,000 50,000 47,533 2,467 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 100,000 17,894 117,894 37,828 80,066 

Regular Programs ·Undistributed Instruction: 
Other Salartes for Instruction 539,370 (15,565) 523,805 520,877 2,928 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 1,286,032 768,184 2,054,216 1,618,034 436,182 
Purchased Technical Services 193,039 140,383 333,422 205,665 127,757 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Sertes) 94,816 16,372 111,188 74,841 36,347 
General Supplies 1,147,124 26,111 1,173,235 1,047,206 126,029 
Textbooks 339,936 (72,368) 267,568 260,966 6,602 
Other Objects 51 855 6 960 60 815 43 747 17 068 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 25,166,285 14-7 13"4 25,313,419 24,408,532 904,887 

SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 
Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salartes of Teachers 745,252 (12,806) 732,446 730,046 2,400 
Other Sa lanes for Instruction 259,850 (3,286) 256,564 252,142 4,422 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 1,000 1,000 370 630 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Sertes) 6,200 6,200 5,156 1,044 
General Supplies 27,945 (1,406) 26,539 24,471 2,068 
Textbooks 10,900 (3,000) 7,900 5,723 2,177 
Other Objects 4 500 4 500 3 697 803 

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 1,055,647 (20,496) 1 ,035,149 1,021,605 13,544 

Behavioral Disabilities: 
Salartes of Teachers 60,132 (3,938) 56,194 55,545 649 
Other Salartes for Instruction 27,936 590 28,526 27,343 1,183 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Sertes) 2,000 2,000 2,000 
General Supplies 10 500 10 500 10 395 105 

Total Behavioral Disabilities 107,068 (3,348) 103,720 100,062 3,658 
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
GENERAL FUND 
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Variance 
Original Budget Final Final to 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual 

EXPENDITURES 
Multiple Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers $ 520,233 $ (12,096) $ 508,137 $ 504,900 $ 3,237 
Other Salaries for Instruction 391 ,689 4,958 396,647 393,791 2,856 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 
Purchased Technical Services 5,000 5,000 5,000 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 5,000 120 5,120 3,956 1,164 
General Supplies 22,552 22,552 20,212 2,340 
Textbooks 4,000 4,000 2,440 1,560 
Other Objects 365 365 365 

Total Multiple Disabilities 948,839 (7,018) 941,821 930,664 11,157 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 
Salaries of Teachers 2,905,862 (41,469) 2,864,393 2,856,410 7,983 
Other Salaries for Instruction 379,442 28,329 407,771 407,491 280 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 7,250 49,026 56,276 4,517 51.759 
Purchased Technical Services 3,000 3,000 3,000 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 11,000 11,000 10,961 39 
General Supplies 51,199 (8,758) 42,441 39,544 2,897 
Textbooks 8,500 (3,500) 5,000 4,965 35 
Other Objects 6 000 6 000 6 000 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 3,372,253 23,628 3,395,881 3,332,888 62,993 

Autism: 
Salaries of Teachers 389,738 (32,740) 356,998 356,921 77 
Other Salaries for Instruction 253,752 22,680 276,432 276,152 280 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 2,000 2,000 2,000 
General Supplies 10.480 (1,334) 9 146 7726 1420 

Total Autism 657,470 (11,394) 646,076 643,547 2,529 

Preschool Disabilities- Full-Time: 
Purchased Technical Services 2,500 2,500 2,500 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 9,250 270 9,520 9,365 155 

Other Objects 1 066 1 066 1 066 
Total Preschool Disabilities- Full-Time 12,816 270 13,086 12,931 155 

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 6,154,093 (18,360) 6,135,733 6,041,697 94,036 

Bilingual Education -Instruction: 
Salaries of Teachers 2,090,733 (11,419) 2,079,314 2,069,458 9,856 
Other Salaries for Instruction 123,695 1,347 125,042 119,455 5,587 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 1,200 1,200 122 1,078 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 10,700 (4,200) 6,500 6,474 26 
General Supplies 44,589 (8,336) 36,253 33,264 2,989 
Textbooks 14 200 (11,000) 3 200 3 200 

Total Bilingual Education -Instruction 2,294,345 (33,608) 2,260,737 2,239,701 21,036 

School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities -Instruction: 
Salaries 204,239 15,821 220,060 205,475 14,585 
Purchased Services (300-500 Series) 40,322 (18,009) 22,313 20,663 1,650 
Supplies and Materials 120,000 13 088 133,088 119734 13 354 

Total School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities -Instruction 364,561 11,351 375,912 346,148 29,764 

School-Sponsored Athletics - Instruction: 
Salaries 161,800 161,800 157,867 3,933 
Other Purchased Services 6,160 (122) 6,038 6,038 
Supplies and Materials 206,137 34,142 240,279 219,452 20,827 
Other Objects 35 618 (22,703) 12 915 6 022 6 893 

TQtal School-Sponsored Athletics -Instruction 409,715 11,317 421,032 389,379 31,653 

Community Service Programs- Operations: 
Purchased Services (300-500 Series) 32,500 15,644 48,144 7,966 40,178 
Supplies and Materials 45,300 5,770 51,070 47,126 3,944 

Total Community Service Programs- Operations 77,800 21,414 99,214 55,092 44,122 

Total Instruction 34,466,799 139,248 34,606,047 33,480,549 1,125,498 
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EXPENDITURES 
Undistributed Expenditures -Instruction: 

Tuition to Other LEA's Within the State- Regular $ 700,000 $ (311,331) $ 388,669 $ 388,668 $ 
Tuition to County Vocational School - Regular 949,778 19,201 968,979 949,360 19,619 
Tuition to County Vocational School- Special 36,425 344,613 381,038 282,811 98,227 
Tuition to CSSD and Regional Day Schools 600,000 (600,000) 
Tuition to Private Schools for the Handicapped- Within State 4,293,896 408,897 4,702,793 4,594,266 108,527 
Tuition- State Facilities 22 553 22 553 22 553 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Instruction 6,602,652 (138,620) 6,464,032 6,237,658 226,374 
Undistributed Expenditures -Attendants and Social Work: 

Salaries 364,370 (31,467) 332,903 332,510 393 
Salaries of Family Liaisons/Community Parent Involvement Specialists 176,444 176,444 176,242 202 
Supplies and Materials 7199 72 7 271 4 673 2 598 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Attendants and Social Work 548,013 (31,395) 516,618 513,425 3,193 
Undistributed Expenditures -Health Services: 

Salaries 816,996 (7,653) 809,343 806,220 3,123 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 3,350 3,350 2,392 958 
Supplies and Materials 28,710 (1,668) 27,042 22,806 4,236 
Other Objects 165 165 165 

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Health Services 849,221 (9,321) 839,900 831,583 8,317 
Undist. Expend. -Other Supp. Serv. Students -Related Serv.: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 738,986 738,986 738,076 910 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 26,000 17,000 43,000 41,413 1,587 
Supplies and Materials 15,882 227 16.109 15,935 174 

Total Undist. Expend. -Other Supp. Serv. Students -Related Serv. 780,868 17,227 798,095 795,424 2,671 
Undistributed Expenditures- Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 50,467 300 50,767 50,712 55 
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services 200 200 200 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 300 300 300 
Supplies and Materials 28 477 2 700 31177 24 239 6 938 

Total Undistributed Expend.- Guidance 79,144 3,300 82,444 75,251 7,193 
Undist. Expend. -Other Supp. Serv. Students -Special Services: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 2,280,958 13,483 2,294,441 2,293,656 785 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 180,410 (3,000) 177,410 177,410 
Other Salaries 85,000 (51,415) 33,585 33,584 1 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series Other than Residual Costs) 475,370 475,370 322,499 152,871 
Supplies and Materials 55 049 55 049 47177 7 872 

Total Undist. Expend.- Other Supp. Serv. Students -Special Services 3,076,7~7 (40,932) 3,,035,855 2,874,326 161,529 
Undistributed Expenditures -Improvement of Ins!. Serv.: 

Salaries of Supervisor of Instruction 2,195,839 (265,349) 1,930,490 1,930,324 166 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 257,043 (1,228) 255,815 255,785 30 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 212,151 212,151 211,785 366 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 14,300 14,300 13,486 814 
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services 2,500 2,500 1,900 600 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 4,500 1,250 5,750 5,514 236 
Supplies and Materials 239,966 (19,833) 220,133 200,448 19,685 
Other Objects 13 000 13 000 12 956 44 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Improvement of lnst. Serv. 2,939,299 (285,160) 2,654,139 2,632,198 21,941 
Undistributed Expenditures - Edu. Media Serv.ISch. Library: 

Salaries 512,029 (25,900) 486,129 484,075 2,054 
Salaries of Technology Coordinators 792,738 (10,187) 782,551 782,446 105 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 121,746 (31,591) 90,155 89,147 1,008 
Supplies and Materials 184,000 (1,366) 182,634 178,053 4,581 
Other Objects 31 466 (5,700) 25 766 25 214 552 

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Edu. Media Serv.ISch. Library 1,641,979 (74,744) 1,567,235 1,558,935 8,300 
Undistributed Expenditures -Instructional Staff Training Serv.: 

Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 33,462 33,462 32,941 521 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 129,246 (13,745) 115,501 111,276 4,225 
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services 12,200 1,500 13,700 13,450 250 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 5,100 74 5,174 5,074 100 
Supplies and Materials 10,228 10,228 10,228 
Other Objects 4 900 4 900 3 591 1 309 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Instructional Staff Training Serv. 195,136 (12,171) 182,965 176,560 6,405 
Undistributed Expenditures- Supp. Serv.- General Admin.: 

Salaries 662,435 (85,934) 576,501 566,164 10,337 
Legal Services 307,335 5,000 312,335 265,811 46,524 
Architectural/Engineering Services 25,000 40,876 65,876 44,337 21,539 
Other Purchased Professional Services 146,000 32,891 178,891 154,801 24,090 
CommunicationsfTelephone 282,103 282,103 254,584 27,519 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 31,500 34,000 65,500 64,500 1,000 
Supplies and Materials 42,106 716 42,822 35,875 6,947 
Judgments Against the School District 10,000 (5,000) 5,000 533 4,467 
Miscellaneous Expenditures 6,229 6,924 13,153 12,424 729 

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Supp. Serv.- General Admin. 1,512,708 29,473 1,542,181 1,399,029 143,152 
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CllY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

EXPENDITURES 
Undistributed Expenditures- Support Serv.- School Admin.: 

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals $ 2,641,429 $ (24,036) 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 2,600 (1,560) 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 1,006,742 (7.004) 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 7,750 (1,700) 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 3,800 
Supplies and Materials 66,273 863 
Other Objects 1 303 (100) 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Support Serv. -School Admin. 3,729,897 (33,537) 
Undistributed Expenditures -Central Services: 

Salaries 1,422,350 (24,199) 
Purchased Professional Services 46,000 115,899 
Purchased Technical Services 28,518 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 963,975 31,264 
Supplies and Materials 86,975 (3,781) 
Miscellaneous Expenditures 90,000 108,000 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Central Services 2,637,818 227,183 
Undistributed Expenditures -Admin. Info. Tech.: 

Salaries 176,465 
Purchased Professional Services 895,000 153,874 
Purchased Technical Services 355,000 5,000 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 6,000 (5,000) 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Admin. Info. Tech. 1,432,465 153,874 
Undistributed Expenditures -Required Maintenance for School Facilities: 
Undist. Expend.- Required Maintenance of School Facilities: 

Salaries 6,000 
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 920,836 452,303 
General Supplies 96.602 (11,~52) 

Total Undist. Expend. -Required Maintenance of School Facilities 1,023,438 440,851 
Undistributed Expenditures -Custodial Services: 

Salaries of Noninstructional Aides 26,293 
Salaries 356,817 (13,004) 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 3,000,500 (72,610) 
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 513,000 119,099 
Insurance 350,000 96,526 
General Supplies 5,000 (2,595) 
Energy (Natural Gas) 850,221 (99,891) 
Energy (Energy and Electricity) 1 135 925 28 542 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Custodial Services 6,237,756 56,067 
Undistributed Expenditures -Security: 

Salaries 217,119 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 881,313 
General Supplies 2 016 498 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Security 1,100,448 498 
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Oper. and Maint. of Plant 8,361,642 497.416 
Undistributed Expenditures -Student Transportation Services: 

Salaries for Pupil Transportation (Between Home and School)- Sp Ed 33,881 14,700 
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 10,000 (6,621) 
Contractual Services - (Between Home and School) - Vendors 52,000 5,876 
Contraclual Services (Other than Between Home and School)- Vendors 27,000 (7,588) 
Contractual Services (Special Ed Students)- Vendors 651,923 133,241 
Contractual Services (Special Ed Students)- ESC's and CTSA's 2,450,000 169,457 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Student Transportation Services 3,224,804 309,065 
UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 

Group Insurance 5,266,192 (2,000) 
Social Security Contributions 850,000 (10,000) 
Other Retirement Contributions - Regular 850,000 161,600 
Unemployment Compensation 740,000 (640,000) 
Workmen's Compensation 400,000 39,300 
Health Benefits 8,470,740 (70,803) 
Tuition Reimbursement 110,000 (73,190) 

TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 16,686,932 (595.093) 
On-Behalf TPAF Pension Contributions (Non budgeted) 
On-Behalf TPAF Medical Contributions (Non budgeted) 
On-BehalfTPAF Long-Term Disability Insurance Contributions (Nonbudgeted) 
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions (Non budgeted) 

TOTAL ON-BEHALF CONTRIBUTIONS 

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 16,686,932 (595.093) 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 54.299,365 16,565 

TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 88,766.164 155,813 

Final 
Budget Actual 

$ 2,617,393 $ 2,610,450 
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Variance 
Original Budget Final Final to 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 
Equipment: 

Regular Programs -Instruction: 
Grades 9-12 $ 8.750 s (2.000) $ 6 750 $ 6 750 $ 

Total Equipment 8,750 (2,000) 6,750 6,750 
Special Education - Non instructional Equipment: 

Undistributed Expend~ures - School Administration 305 273 305,273 305,273 
Total Noninstructional Equipment 305,273 305,273 305,273 
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services: 

Architectural/Engineering Services 15,000 15,000 15,000 
Land and Improvements 803,900 644,566 1,448,466 1,446,466 
Building Other than Lease Purchase Agreements 972,668 162,955 1,155,643 1,153,593 2,050 

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services 1,791,568 627,521 2,619,109 2,617,059 2,050 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,105,611 825,521 2,931,132 2,929,082 2,050 

SPECIAL SCHOOLS 
Summer School -Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers 150,000 150,000 86,107 63,893 
General Supplies 5 200 46 800 52 000 1198 50 802 

Total Summer School -Instruction 155,200 46,800 202,000 87,305 114,695 

Total Summer School 155,200 46,800 202,000 87,305 114,695 

TOTAL SPECIAL SCHOOLS 155,200 46,800 202,000 87,305 114,695 

Transfer of Funds to Charter Schools 3,234,799 338,686 3,573,485 3,180,883 392,602 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 94 261,774 1,366,820 95,628,594 103,941,608 (8,313,014) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures (7,184 ,646) (189,031) (7,373,677) (3.21.10,016) 4,093,661 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfer In: 

Contribution to School-Based Budgets - General Fund 50,356,074 169,031 50,167,043 49,639,969 (527,054) 
Contribution to School-Based Budgets -Special Revenue Fund 1,415,000 (189,031) 1,604,031 1,584,831 (19,200) 

Operating Transfer Out: 
Contribution to Whole School Reform (50,356,074) 189,031 (50, 167,043) (49,639,989) 527,054 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,415,000 189,031 t ;6o4,031 1,584.831 (19,200) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Over/(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (Uses) (5,769,646) (5,769,646) (1 ,695,165) 4,074,461 

Fund Balance, July 1 9,966,952 9,966,952 9,966,952 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ 4,197,306 $ $ 4,197,306 $ 8,271,766 $ 4,074,461 

Recapitulation of Fund Balance: 
Restricted Fund Balance: 

Reserve for Encumbrances $ 3,004,793 
Excess Surplus -Designated for 
Subsequent Years' Expenditures (18/19) 2,600,000 

Reserved for Excess Surplus (19/20) 779,312 
Unassigned Fund Balance 1,887,661 

8,271,766 
Reconciliation to Governmental Funds Statements (GAAP): 

Last State Aid Payment Not Recognized on GAAP Basis (7.462,027) 

Fund Balance per Governmental Funds (GAAP) $ 789,739 
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PurrNwod Pn!!ft~a~Ml ·E'dlr~• l C..Nt.nl ""-"""',..d -liOII•!OO tonqj 
General Supplies 
Taxtboob 

fotaiS.N:v\oon l tlicuWIIt1..a 

MultlplaDiaabllilias: 
S.larin ofTaadMHs 
Olhar Sale rift for lrwtruction 
Putu..d T~S.,.._ 
Olh.r F~•'od t.Mon (~OO.SOO s.riot) 
OenaRI SUppMw 
To.-u 
OlwObl-

Total MYttlple Db.lbaides 

0 
0) 

ORJOINAL BUDGET 

"-""' B'-ndd 
Fund Ret.e~urc. 

f!!.!!!!1.:.!L_ ---f!!!!!!.!!_ 

$12,1&4,884,00 • 1-40,000 
170000 

124746&4 

-412.~0 
7,1S2,11l1 
2,Ut1,7N 

1!1,087,017 
1,858,583 

5&1,151 ....... 
",800 
-48,800 
52.,570 ... ""' 

74457028 

1-45438 
14S4le 

17077128 

.... 000 
1,356,PO 

215,000 7,885,832 
75,750 5,852,&41 

1,081,aao -4,787,111 

50,000 
100,000 

SJU,J70 
1,0S4,808 231,224 

1,500 181,538 
72,000 22.,818 

257,110 87i,314 
118,000 151,1l8 

~ 
3 585 748 ~ 

745,252 ....... 
1,11110 
6,21111 

27,845 
10,100 

~ 
~ 

80,112 
27,8l8 

:1,500 
2,000 

10,500 

~ . ~ 
520~ 
:JP1,eea 

5,000 
5,000 

22,552 
4,000 ,.. 

8488JD 

CITY 01' ORANOE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL lHSTRICT 
COMBINING BUDGETARY COMPARiSON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FJIICAL YEAR ENDED JUNE :SO, 2011 

BUDGET TRANSFER 
T ... l "-""" Blend.d To<al 

Ganarai Fund -"" 0.00 ... 

~ Fund11·U ----f!..!!.!1.! ~ 

112,1&4,8&4 • s • 140,000 

~ 
12<474184 

-4J2,lo40 
7,152,831 
2,118,7Uo4 

1!1,067,01!7 1.177,71!1 1,1n,1aa 
1,a58,563 

51!8,151 ....... ...... ...... 
52.570 
40,40:1 

744570ia 117niD 1 1ftta8 

~ 
~ 

87 077128 11nns 1177788 

.... ooo (152,502) (152,5112) 
1,351!,8Q9 (13,aaJ) (13,183) 
7,810,Sl2 ($5,917) (5,oan (!11,00o4) 
5,738,191 (-48,838) (-49,131) 
5,aaa,ta1 (451,000) (13,J18) (4&4,818) 

50,000 

100~ 17,""' f'T,IM 

Sl8,370 (15,555) (15,58.51 
1,210,1132 ....... 185,840 788,1&4 

un,olD (1,DOO) 141,31!3 140,)13 
14,818 15,700 072 18,372 

1,147,124 82.1!71! (38,71!5) 28,111 
3>11,11>8 (45,000) 177.>011 cn.>OII 
~ _.!.!!!!!... ~ 

2518&2&5 f2!"'1Sl ~ ~ 

7"'5.252 (12,1081 (1~0081 ....... (3,218) (3,218) 
1,11110 
6,21111 

27»45 (1,406) (1,40ts) 
10,800 (l,OOO) (3,000) 

~ 
(20488} (20~181 10$5847 

eo,1u (3,831) (l,na) 
27,1138 500 ... 
3,500 
2,000 

10,500 
__M'!!!.., 
~ (3:1<48) ""'' 

520~ (1~11001 (12,0Do5) 
381,1U 4 .... 4,058 

5,000 
5,000 12D 1211 

22,552 ..... 
3115 

0<18311 {70181 {70111 

C-1o 
li!llll.!1 

~LG~El ACTUAL 
Operaling B!.nckd T ... l o.,.ratMa Blended TIILII 

Fund 

··~ 
O..!Wiral fund Ra~ru Gtnual 

...f!!!!!!..ll. ---f!!!!!!.!!_ ~ Fund 11·13 ----f!!..!!!!.. ~ 

$ 12,1&4,164 I $ 12,1&4,8&4 $ 12,1&4,684 • s 12,1&4,t64 
1<40,000 140,000 61,<4311 t1,-4Ji 

_____!1Q&2Q_ ~ ~ ~ 
12474 8&4 ~ 1271!7780 12.767710 

432,Jo40 432,:1<40 513,&39 513,639 
7,152,831 7,152,831 7,152,831 7,152,8:11 
2,a1i,7N 2,111,784 2,9111,784 2,819,71M 

1!2,244,1!78 82,2<44,878 82,244,876 1!2,244,878 
1,!Sa,583 1,858,563 1,856,583 1,151,563 

SN,151 568,151 568,151 568,151 ,.. .... ....... 285,51!9 285,588 
41,800 41,800 48,1100 -48,1!00 
<49,800 ",800 49,800 41,800 
52,570 52,570 52,570 52,570 
"MOl 40,403 40,403 40,"'03 

5,582,517 5,582,517 
3,00S,0211 ),805,8N 

14,01!l 14,083 

~ ~ :::::mEm: 75alo4817 87.JIUM3 ~ 

~ ~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ 128,1!1& 

~ U2So4i117 10001!1 582 10001!1 592 

316,408 319,408 3111, .. 08 311!,408 
1,343,011! 1,343.018 1,337,883 1,)37,1!83 

158,043 7,8DO,U5 7,&48.228 15&,082 7,81!1!,1!39 7,&4s,n1 
75,750 5,612,702 5.oa&,452. 75,000 5,80i,:zt5 5,.184,285 

1!40,880 4,71P,2a2 5,424,172 OOO,OS7 4,701!,881 5,:s87,518 

50,000 50,000 <7,533 47,533 
117,ea4 117,8N 37,528 37,828 

523,0115 523.805 520,877 520,8n 
1,137,352 "'11!,8&4 2,054,211! 1,l84,310 25l, ... 1,1!18,UJ.4 

500 3:12,022 133,422 :zos,ees 205,005 
87,700 23, ... 111,1N 85,019 0,122 7 .. ,1141 

:130 .... IW:Z.S48 1,173,2).5 241,357 7N,849 1,047,206 
143,000 124,5e8 207,510 1"'2,400 118,5M ....... 
~ ---.!W!.. _____!!,ill_ ~ 

l55e 253 21754111 ~ , ...... 21 l511!188 24 41)8 532 

132,«<1 132.«<1 730 .... 7l0,04e ... .... 250,504 252,142 252,1"'2 
1,11110 1,000 >70 >70 
6,21111 8,200 5,158 5,151! ,...,, 28,530 24,471 24,<471 
7,000 7,11110 5,723 5,723 

~ ~ ______l!!L ----..!!!L 
~ ~ ~ ~ 

58,1Uo4 58,114 55,545 55,545 
21,5211 28,520 27,:1<43 27,lo4:l 

3,500 3,500 2,7211 2,720 
2,000 2,000 2,1100 2,000 

10,500 10,500 10,)85 1U,l85 

~ ~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ 

508,137 508,137 ....... 504,000 
l88,847 3N,S47 l8:S,781 ~3.781 

5,000 5.000 5,000 5,000 
5,120 5,120 ..... ,, ... 

22,552 22,552 20.212 20.212 
4,000 4,000 2,-440 2,440 

)85 3115 ,.. 
"'' 1411!21 1-61 ,1!2 1 ...... 030 ... 



~ 
Rt&aurc. RoomiRuaun:• C.nl.lr: 

S.l•"- afTeachen 
Otlllf'S.I•rlelforlnstrucllon 
Plln;bMd Prot.dun•l.fdiii:JIIkwltl t...w. ... 
~-dT•dlnit::al~ 
oth:ar Pw'fi'-HI ~[4QO.-So00 ~ 
GIMflll Supplln 
T-
Olhw-

ToiAI Ruoun:e Rallm/RnOliRII C.nltt 

Autlam: 
&.Iarin ofT•ac:hen 
Olhlr&tllarlaforlnstructkln 
Other Purdined SeMc:n (400-500 Sari~&) 
G•nar.l&upp!IM 
r.-

Toi.IIA.utlun 

Pruchool DisabiliU•s • FuD-Tml: 
Purchi!Md TKtri::1116el'tllcn 
OChltf~ s.Mcn (400..S00 SIMI) 

Olho<-Tot.al Pr-sc:haal Ob.lbtl1tiiH- Ful&-nm. 

TOTAL IPECIAL EDUCATlON ·IN!oTRUCTlON 

Bilingual Educallon -ln•tructlon! 
s.biria ofT•adwl,. 
otheriSalailft forlnatrudlon 
Purchued ProfnaloMI-Educatlan.~l S.Mc:IH 
Purdlaud Ttchnlcal SeMces 
oth•r Pun::n.s.d SeMen (400-500 61riel) 
Genen~l Supplin 
T"""""'a 
OU..rOb!lecb 

l~&~tal Dlr.,liiJliAI E.t:htot.~llan •ln•tfJid6n 
6chocoi=BJ)onl4fld ClocLrtric:uiu Ac.Ov'li ~'l • batNC•Ion: 

S.lerin 
p~ BerkM; (300-500 Selin) 
SU~anc:IMalerlall 
otherOblec::l:l 

To .. I lc:hool-5ponsor.c:l Coc:urrlclllar Adlvk'll• ·lnslnu:t+on 

khool-5ponsor.d Alh .. lks ·lnaln.Jclkln: ........ 
PurcNMc:l SeMen (300.500 a.Ms) 
Suppin INid Malln.ls 
Olho<ot>l-

Tolll9chooi-Spon.orwd AUdetka -ln.UUcllon 

CcrmmunltyS.Mu Progrwms • Oplr11lon1: 
Pun:t!aMd s.Mca ~ S.W.) 
S~IIIICIMitedllll 

Tolal Conwnuntry hr.<~ Progf11111• • Opo~ratlon• 

Tot.allnslnlcUon 

0 
-..,J 

ORtGIHAL BUDGET 
Oper.~tlna Blendld 

'""' fttllllUU 

~ ~ 

• $ 2,805,M2 
378,442 
7~ 
3,000 

11,000 
51,189 

8,500 

~ 
~ 

318,731 
253,752 

2,1100 
10,410 

~ 
~ 

2,500 

·~ _!.!!!!... 
~ 
~ 

2,0Q0,733 
123,885 

1,200 
1,500 

10,700 
44,51111 
1<,200 

~ 
~ 

20<,2311 
<0,322 

00,000 011,000 ..... 304.5!1 

181,100 
8,1110 

205,627 500 
35111 

409215 ... 
25,500 7,000 
25000 _____1!!.!!!!.. 
50,50!1 ~ 

4.105,483 lO 381336 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL [MITRICT 
COMDrNmG 8\.IDOETII.RV cotiPAJmON BC:Hmoi..E 

GEHERALFUND 
flSCAL YEAR END EO JUNE lO, 2011 

BUDGET TRANSFER 
Talal OpeN~ II B•M•d T"'l 

Glint rill '""' Res01.1rc• GtMrlll 

----f!!.!!.!L.. ~ ~ Fund 

s 2,ll05,882 J • (41,4esl) • (41,4611) 
378,4-42 21,l29 28,3211 
7~ .. ,11211 ~8,028 
3,000 

11,000 
51,189 (1,758) (1,751) 

8,500 (3,500) {3,500) 
--l!.!!Q!!_ 
~ 23,5211 22828 

388,731 (l2,740) (12,740, 
253,752 22,080 22,080 

2,1100 
10,4&0 (1,>J<) (1,33<) 

~ 
____!!Llli_ (11394) ~ 

2,500 

·~ 270 270 
___!.!!!.. 
______!!.!!!_ 270 270 

81SHie3 ----'!!.l!Ql ~ 

2,080,733 (11,41lil) (11,·H&) 
123,00S 1,347 1,>47 

1,200 
1,500 

10,700 (4,200) (4,2(10) ...... (a,>JO) (1,328) 
1<,200 (11,000) (11,000) 

____121!_ 
22Q43ol5 - ______!B!!!l pli!OIIl 

204,2311 20,Illll (4,712) 15,121 
<0,322 (18,009) (18,008) 

120,000 12,11>11 450 1l,OII8 
451 <51 

:10<501 -rui1 (21Bll01 11 )51 

181,100 
B,t60 (122) (122) 

208,137 34,1-iZ :W,142 

~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ _____!!.!!L 

32,500 15 .... 15,8+1 

~ ~ 750 ______mg_ 
~ ~ 750 -....1.!..!1!.. 

3-4488789 ~ ~ ~ 

C.11 
~ 

FINAL 8UDOET ACTUAL 
O"riUIJIIJ Biancl•d ToW Opera!lng e•nded T<Gt.l 

Fund RIIOUf'CII G•n•n~l Fund RIIOIJ~ O.nu111 

....f!!.!!.!!.. ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

• $ 2,8&4,3113 • 2.M4,38l • $ 2,156,410 $ 2,156.~10 
407,771 407,771 407,491 407,481 

58,276 58,278 4,517 4,517 
3,000 2,1100 3,000 3,000 

11,000 11,000 10,8111 10,881 
42,441 42,4-41 38,54<1 18,544 

5,000 5,1100 ..... 4,1i185 

~ -------W!.. ______!.Q!!!!_ ~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ 

"' .... lSI!, ... l56,R21 l56,ll21 
278,432 276,4]2 2711,152 278,152 

2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 
9,148 111,146 7,72ll 7,720 

~ ~ "' "' ~ ____!!!Q!!_ 643547 eos-47 

2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 ..... 1,520 ,,., li,MS 
____!.!!L _____!21!!_ ~ ~ 
~ ~ ______!b!!L _____!m1_ 
~ e tl57ll ~ ~ 

2,079,314 2,079,314 2,0811,4511 2,01Si,45a 
125,042 125,CWZ 118,455 118,455 

1,200 1,200 122 122 
1,500 1,500 
6,500 8,500 6,47-4 8,-47-4 

36,253 30,2$3 ,,.. ,,.. 
3,200 3,200 3,200 3,200 

~ 1no _____m!,_ ~ 
~ 22!!0737 ~ ~ 

20,803 198,457 220,1180 20,603 1ac.en 205,475 
22,313 22,313 20,803 20,803 

n,m ...... 1l3,ca& &5,151 ...... 118,7l4 
451 '" 270 ___ 2_70_ 

ll3'241 2121171 --nmz 55791 2110l57 ~ 

181,100 181,100 157,867 157,1187 
8,0:J8 '·"" 0,031 6,03& 

m,m 500 240,271 218,M2 500 218,452 

~ ~ ~ ~ 
~ 500 ~ ------1!!.!!!.. ~ ---1!!.ill.... 

41,144 7,000 48,144 1,0011 ..... 7,000 
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
_____L1..!!!_ ~ ~ _J"Q!L _____lll!L ~ 
~ 30481157 34 601!10.7 ~ 2ii211131 ll4eD 54ll 



~ 
Undliltribut.d EXpilndltur.r. -ln•lrucUon: 

Tuition to otMr LEA 'I Mhln the Sbt•- Regular 
Tuition to CountvVoc:.llon.ll Sdlooi-Regular 
Tuition lD County Voe~~tionol 6c:hool· Spodal 
Tuition lo CSSD and Reglooal Day Schoolll 
Tuition to PrMhl Sehooll for the Handlc:app8d • 'Nithln Sl.lte 
~-·11'-l~Fidli:ln 

T111lll U"ndilltritlbiKI ~Panlfiiuuu •ln111'Uo t\loB; 
Undi"I I,U.(If.-d' E":tpo~l'lil flllir._l • Ait.nlfnita 1M! ilocbl l Woittl .... "" &II Iarin or Femllv &tlpport Tnma 

SUpplln •nd Mllorials 
Total Undhltrlbut.d EICpilndlturu -AH•ndanl5 and lloclal Worlc 
Undl1trlbut.d Exp!lndlturu- H•alth Bervfcn: ....... 
i'~IM4Pn;~f•~l rwdTtKhiJbllk._,n 
Supplln and Mllterlatl -·"-Total Undlslribut•d EXpilndltures- Health Servlc•s 

Undistributed Expenditures· Other St.lpport S.rvice lltu!Mntl • Rtllat.d &ervkea: 
SN.IIofl ot DO'Iu f'f.afnlian~ L 4UIT 
P~Pl"'P~I-e~~ 
&tlpptln.andMiterlall 

Total Undistributed Expt~ndltures -Other Support S.rvku Students~ Reklt•d Servlcas 
Undt.tributad Eli!Mnditure• - Guldan~: 

&d.IIMII a.fOihiH'Pn)l~lli:DWI 
Olllll~.i.BMIPIIl~loi:IIJTedv.lc:IJ5tnbN 
othttr Purchased S.Mca (400-500 &aria) 
6upplln end Mllt.r!M 

Tota 1 Und(.mb'u!•dbpt~nC I"II.IJ'I'.I•C.II!lda.ncll 

Undb:f;.rltJU.t•d IE:Iip•lll:di.uJII'-·C't.rTid !lll'dv .T•:~m~ 
&&Iarin o(Othef Prorealonal Staff 
S.lllrin of SecqtaJilll 1nd cterlcal Aallbonls 
other Sat.ria 
Other Purchaud Pfofealonal 1nd Technical SeMen 
SUpplin and Maten.ll 

Tolal Undlltribut.d E.l:pilndKur111- Child Study- T••ms 
Undl1lribut.d Expenditures -Improvement of lnstructlorwrl S.rvkn: 

Sal aria of Bt.I!M~I of lnslrudirm 
Sa Iarin of other Pruf.alonal staff 
li.Alt~r.lueof~~!Jirb l lltldCII"tlcal~ 
f'~fn:~feaJan•l-!:d~ o.Mc:M 
Oth.rPurchat.ed Pto r~l llnd Tlfd!N!:II ::kr\i:ln 
OIMr Purcna.d &I·~ (~lli).!D(t B«iee) 
5uppiiM and Materia~~ 
01hw-

Toll! I Undlstribullld E.I!MndHures -lmpravementOfll\&tludfQI!Il &a~~ 1 
Undl1tribut.d Expenditures- Educational Madia S.rvtce/School Ubrary: .. ,. ... 

Salaries of Tedmology Coordinator~ 
Pwdlaud Prm.r~~~~~·~ Te.::nr.ical BukM 
Supplies 1nd MIIIMWI 
Olh&rOblecb 

Tot.. I Undbtrlbut.d ExpendituriS- EduRUon•l Media Servlcer.ichool Ubrery 
On.&lrlbul•.cl &MndJrvn• ·1"'1.Jul:tJ•,_•I:i:Wft'ra1plng e.rvkt~~•• 

B&iariu !l'fGtti)Cir..hinoft!UIIhi~ 
Purd!awod Pi'ar~&a.Eif"ucMan.il ria~ 

=~=z~r~~ 
SUppljeaandMoterillla 
othorObjedl 

Tot• I Undistributed Expenditurn -Instructional Sterr Tn~lnlag S.rvkas 
Undistributed EICpilndlturu- Bupport Stlrvkn- Genaral AdmlnlsllaUon: -l.egll~ ArdtilactunaiJEngin••rlng F&n , 

01:1-,:rPI.in:IRrnlld Pn!l~l ;s.,.q, 
CommuniclllionsiT~ne 
oth•r Purmued Servlcn (400-500 Serin) 
6upplles1ndMaleriall 
Judgm•nls AQalnlt 1he School Dlllrid 
~llanootnl Ezpendlurn 

Tolal Undlstribulad EX!Mndlturu • Supp, &.rvlcas • O•neral Admlnlltrallon 

...... 
0 
(X) 

ORIGINAL BUDGET 
Openatlng e•nd•d 

Fund R•sourca 
Fund11-1J ~ 

• 700,000 • !M9,778 
l6,425 

000,000 
4,293,888 

22553 
6602652 

40,000 l24,370 
178,444 

-...1.1!!... •oooo ~ 
816,886 

2,000 1.350 
13,600 15,110 

105 
15800 1133021 

73S,D88 
20,000 8,000 

~ 
20000 ~ 

50,487 
200 

211177 300 
28177 50007 

2,280,858 
180,410 

05,000 
475,370 ..... 

l07117117 

2,170,849 ...... 
257,043 
212,151 

11,500 2.000 
~500 ..... 

230,023 U43 
13000 

2Q01 5158 >77>J 

512,029 
792,738 

115,075 8,871 
184,000 

~ 
115075 ~ 

ll,o102 
128,248 

12.200 
5,100 

10.228 

~-
~ 
______!.!!!!!.. 

1142,435 
l07,»5 

25,000 
148,000 I 
282,10l 

:11,500 
42,101!1 
10,000 
8,m 

1512 708 

an' OF CFtANGE TllW~SHIP oli:C.IfDOL DfSTRJCl 
CO,..iiiNir'D B~UDIOIETART C"OMPARilot' liCHE!JUL..E 

GENERAL FUND 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

BUDGET TRANSFER 
Total Opilr.atlng Bhlnd•d Total 

O.nenal Fund Ruource O.nllf'al 

~ Fund 11-13 ~ Fund 

$ 700,000 • (311,331) ' s (311,331) 
;.49,n8 19,201 19,201 

J6,425 U4,813 344,813 
600,000 (BOO,OOO) (800.000) 

4,2Ql,88tl 408,887 408,8i7 

~ 
0002052 f13U2oT ~ 

3&4,370 (20,000) (1,&07) (31,487) 
176,444 

~ 
~ 

72 72 

~ (1735) p1 :WSl 

818,89e (7,653) (7,653) 
3,>50 

28,710 (1,888) (1,888) 
185 

8.49.221 @l21l ------'!.B1l. 

1'38~ 
28,000 17,000 17,000 

~ 227 227 

~ 17000 227 __u..m_ 

50,467 300 300 
200 

300 300 
____]!£l_ __1.!!!!!.. _.m!!l. ~ 
~ __1.!!!!!.. ___ 300_ ~ 

2,280,958 13,483 13.<03 
180,410 (3,000) 13.0001 
85,000 (51,415) (51,415) 

475,370 

~ 
307117117 (40832t (408l2) 

2,185,139 (251 .... ) (0.000) (205,>40) 
257,043 (1~) (1~) 
212,151 

1<,300 
2.500 
•.soo 1,230 1,230 

2:10 .... (1li,Bll) (19,Ul) 

~ 
~ (278500) ~ 12!5100! 

512,028 (2S,OOQ) (25,000) 
782,738 (10,187) (10,187) 
121,748 (31,581) (31,581) 
184,000 (1,:100) (1.:>86) 

~ 
------pr;5iU 
~ ~ 

~ ~ ~ 

ll,ol02 
129,246 (13,745) (1l,745) 

12.200 1,500 1,500 
5,100 7< 7< 

10,228 

~ 
~ (12171) (12171) 

1!02."5 (15..,..) (15,834) 
l07,335 5,000 5,000 

25,000 40,87fi 40,876 
146,000 32,11i1 32,001 
282,103 

31,500 34,000 14,000 
42,106 710 716 
10,000 (5,000) (5,000) 

~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ _1!ill._ 

C-1• 
~ 

FINAL BUDGET ACT1J41. 
Oper•tlng Bltlndod Tatal ~·rii'"G lUin~lli , .... 

Fund R•source Gtmenll Fu~d R•sou~• G•n~~ral 

Fund11-fJ ~ ----l!!!!!...- Fund11-U ~ ----f!!.!!.!... 

• m,see • • 388,669 • 318,688 • • ,.., ... 
988,979 988,879 8ot9,380 ~9.l&O 

381,038 381,038 282,811 282,811 

4,702,79l 4,702,79] 4,594,266 4.5~.266 

~ ___E.ill... ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ 

10,340 322,583 3l2,1Kl3 10,339 322,171 l32,510 
176,444 178,444 178,242 178,242 

~ _____LID_ 
10339 

_____m!_ ~ 
10l<O ~ ~ ~ ~ ... .,., 809,343 006,220 806.220 

2,000 1,>50 3,350 1 ..... ... 2,192 
13,eoo 13,442 27,042 10,456 1~350 22,808 

10S 185 185 185 
15800 02<300 839900 12 ... 1119143 831 583 

738,988 738,988 738,078 738,078 
37,000 8,000 41,000 l5,413 ..... 41,413 

~ ~ ~ ~ 
37000 ~ ~ l5413 ~ ~ 

50,757 50,787 50,712 50,712 
200 200 
300 300 300 :100 

_____1.1ill_ 
512e7 

____llJ]L _____Maill... ~ 
_____1.1ill_ ~ _____Maill... 51012 ~ 

2,284,441 2~.441 2,2i3,ese 2,29l,85e 
177,410 177,410 177,410 177,410 
33,585 l3,S85 33,584 33,584 

475,370 475,370 322,499 322,499 

~ ~ _____Q,j]L _____£JJ1_ 
~ ~ ~ ~ 

1,112.,180 18,330 1,9l0,41Kl 1,812,015 18,300 1,9:10,324 
255,815 255,815 255,785 255,785 
212,151 212,151 211,785 211,715 

11,500 ~000 14,300 1o,n5 2,711 13,486 
2,500 2,500 1,900 1,000 
5,750 5,750 5,514 5,514 

210,180 ,..., 220,1:U 182,200 02 .. 200,448 

~ ______ll.!!QQ_ ~ ~ 
~ 31073 ~ ~ 2'0200 ~ 

488,129 488,129 484,075 484,075 
7112,SS1 782,.551 7112,448 782,446 

83,454 6,671 110,155 83,4114 5,803 119,147 
102.113' 102.113o1 178,053 178,053 

~ ~ ~ ~ OJ- ~ ~ 11:1484 ~ ~ 

J3,o102 ll,o102 12,841 32.~1 
115,501 115,501 111,276 111,278 

13,700 13,700 13,450 13,450 
5,174 5,174 5 ,074 5,074 

10,2211 10,228 10.,228 10,22.11 

~ ~ _.!ill_ ~ 
178 065 ~ ~ 1nGS9 --~'="~1 ~ 

578,501 578,501 568,1&4 5e6,184 
312,33S 312,335 2115.811 2115,1111 

85.876 85,1176 44,ll7 44,337 
178,891 178,1191 154.801 154,801 
2112,103 2112,103 254, ... 254,5&4 

65,500 85,500 ...... 84,500 
42,822 42,1122 35,875 )5,875 

5,000 5,000 SJ3 533 
_Jlm_ ~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ 



~ 
Undltitribu\ed E1pendituru ·Support S.rvkll• .s,-n.ol Admlni.J.tntlon: 

SaJ&n.. or Prlnc:lpUJAuiltanl Prindpals 
~ ol Othar Prorea!Dnal Staff 
So!! I aria or Secqbltilll and o.ricll Aai~Unta 
PIRhnad~lllld TKb~~ 
01.1\ar Purdlaod Bel\'icR (.400-500 l&eriea) 
Stipplin and Mllt.rlala 
Olho<Objocb 

ToLII Undistributed EJ:pendkun~s-lupport a.rvkea .a,hool Admlnt.tralion 

Undistributed E.1penditur.s • Cenl1111la.rvkoea: ........ 
~P11!f~l&tHcta. 
Purdiaed TIChnlcal SeMen 
~I\RUIIPllrd\'WMd~f.tOO.W&trlnl .. .,... ............. 
~BIQU.I~~n 

ToLl! Undbtribul.d Expendlturu • C.ntr&l S.rvlcu 

Ueli&Uilu1:H EJ;potnclrturu • AdJnlftlll(illtl•n Info TIIChnolo!Jr. 
S.lartM 
P'urdleMd T..:tlrb!Sefvic.s 
otho( PurdMMd Se"*- c•oo..soo SeriM) 
6upplinand~ 

Total Undtatf1butad EJ:pendKuNa ·Admlnlstn.Uon 1nro TadlnolotY 

Undberibuled Ezpenditur .. • Requln1d Malnllln;mce for khool Facllitlaa: 
Selart.. 
Cl11r*lg, R•pU" nd Malnc..nanca &a~ 
Genernl Supplia 

Toll I Undistributed E1pend. • Requlr.d Malnt.n.nc• for School Fullltlas 

Undl•lrlbulad Exp•ndltur~a • Cuatodll.l a.rvlcfll: 

li&la!WII orNonkWrudian•l Ald.a 
~Jib 
flltrbllud Pto!•looloi:l1\lll l t.nCI Tlldltllei i 64MQI 
mt~IMIII. R1e*r IWid t.Wtliennce S.Mca 

'""""""' GeMnl Supplln 
EnfiDV (N11Urwl Gu) 
ErwuuvCEiedrlc:*tl 

ToLl I Undb.!ribut.d Eapendltur.s • Q.lstodiiJ tll'-"11"-t 

Undistributed EJ:p•ndKur.s -Bicurit)': ........ 
PI.WehiMd ProriUional and TldlnJcal ~ 
Genaf&l~ 

fats) Unclhlribcnad ~pM'-"il•u•• • ~ac11rfiy 

Tot.) Und~ E.!Janditur.a • OparaUofts •nd Mllnt.nenc. ol Pllnl 

Undkotrtbutad Expendlt~ -studal1t Transport.Uon S.rvkaa: 
Sakrt..bPupiiT,.RIPDIWion(D!twtnan~Hom.~SChool) 

Clunirla,R~Md~1'41~Soro.bt. 
Conbad;IIIS-*"·~Iw._.nHoma.,ct~-V.16111'11 
Conli'KWII Slnbs . (Dibw tkao.a.twun Hom• and !ktl,gdJ .IJapdarw 
Conlnldual Se'*-·~1 Bf ~·ftlai • YIIIISGts 
ConUICtll.61 &.Matt. " fli'*'-1 Ed Uud.nt.) • E.SC'I Md CTSA'a 

Tlltsl Ut14iurlbu-hJd Ej!WI-d.ti\Utt.. :nl.llhnl Tranuanat1an a.rvk .. 

UNALLOCATED BENEms: 
Group Insurance 
Sod.!ll Security Conlributiona 
Othlf R•llrem1nl Conltlbulionl· PERS 
Un~mployment Compenulion 
Worton Compenulion 
HastthBinelb 
TI.IIQ,~nl 

TDTolll. UfiiiU:.Cc.ATED BI!NEiJlJTB 
Oo-8aholfTPAF Penakxl Conlrlbutlonl (Nonbudg11ed) 
On~fTPAF Mid AI Contrlb.JIIonl (Nonbudge1ed) 
On-Beh&lrTPAF L.ono-Tann Dil.lblltt'IM~Jranca Conlribullona (Nonbudglled) 
RMnburMd TPAF Social Securily Conltlbutiou (Nonbudg•lacfl 

TOTAL ON-8EHALF CONTRIBUTIONS 

TOTAL PERSONAL SERV\CES ·EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

WTAL. IJ:fDIStRlDIJtEO EXPB'Dff'URU 

Tl)fAL G.EN.ERAL CURRENT EXPEPI:51i 

.....>. 

0 
<D 

OfUOINA1. BUDGET 
o..-r~ttna Billnded 

Fund R•aouru 
Fund1t·U ~ 

• ' 2,&41,428 
2,6110 

82,&45 1-43,707 
7,750 
3,8110 

68,273 

~ 
82045 ~ 

1,4.l2,.350 
46,000 
28,518 

Ml,875 
86,015 ..... 

2&17818 

178,465 
105,000 
3$5,000 

0000 
102445 

..... 
020,.,. .. ~ ~ 

1 000 Ol8 ~ 

20,2113 
207,800 140,017 

3,000,000 500 
513,000 
350,000 

5,000 
850,221 

11135025 
1405i1T oooam 

217,118 
811,313 

217118 
____l.!!!!... 
~ 

7314m ~ 

33,681 
10,000 
52.000 
27,000 

581,000 .. ..., 
2450000 
3121!1000 88804 

5,2110,102 
850,000 
050,000 
740,000 
400,000 
450,000 8,020,140 
110000 

3400000 13286.832 

3400000 ~ 
l2 478 425 211Z7840 
38,531,881 ~ 

CITY 01" ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BUDOETARY COMPARJSON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
meAL YEAR EfiD£DJUNE 30, lD18 

BUDOET TRAHSFER 
T..,l Oper.ll~tQ 8611nded T ... l 

G•n•ral Fund R .. oura G•Mra! 

~ Fund11·1l ~ ~ 

s 2,841,428 I • (24,038) • (24,038) 
2,6110 (1,580) (1,5&0} 

1,006,742 (f,004) (f,004) 
7,750 (1,700) (1,700) 
3,6110 .. ~, .., .., 
~ ~ --'1!!2l. 

3mB01 ~ ____Q!.llil. 

1,422..350 (24,1ii) (24,1ii) 
40,000 115,8P9 115,589 
28,5111 

ael,075 """' >1,204 
88,975 (3,181) (3,781) 

~ ~ ~ 
~ _.B!J!L ~ 

176,465 
llliS,OOO 15J,874 153,674 
355,000 5~00 5,000 

__!.!!!!!!._ ~ ~ 
1412465 ~ ~ 

8,000 
11211,.,. 452,.303 452,303 

~ ~ ~ _____l!.Lilll 
1 D2J438 ~ ~ ~ 

2ll,2ll3 
35U17 (13,004) (13,004) 

3,000,500 (7'2,11Q) (500) (72,610) 
513,000 118,0ti 110,089 
350,000 08,520 ...... 

5,000 (2,505) 12.5115) 
IIS0,221 (DIII,Ji1) (H,891) 

1115825 _..!!ML ~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ 

211,118 
81f,l13 

_.!.!!!!... ... ... 
~ ... ... 

8l81 &42 -.!!!&!!!L ~ ~ 

, ... 1 H,700 14,700 
10,000 (8,821) (!1,8211 
52,000 Un! 5,878 
27,000 (7,000) (f,SII) 

051,11Z3 02,430 50,811 133,241 

~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ 65511 ~ 

5,2ee,102 (2,000) (2,000) 
850,000 (10,000) (10,000) 
...,,000 181,eoo 161,800 
7-40,000 (140,000) (640,000) 
400,000 ,.,,.. ,.,,.. 

8,470,140 (4,104) (66,1!9i) (70,803) 

~ _1!!!!Ql _JZ!!!!!L 
18886812 ~ (8tl898) ~8~ 

1e888n2 ~ __J!!.!!!!l. ~ 
~ ~ ------'!!Slt ~ 

117881114 ----l.!WL ~ _____ill.!.!L 

C-1o 
~ 

F1NAL BUDGET ACTUAL 
0pt11111Unu Bllnct.d Total Opentlng Btenchd T ... l ..... ~uurc:e O•n•r•l Fund Re1ourc.a Genanal 

Fund11·1l ~ __f!!!!!._.. Fund 11 -13 ~ ---f!!..!!..!L. 

• 2,017,303 • 2,817,l03 • $ 2,810,450 $ 2,810,450 
1,04<) 1,040 

S2,8o45 Olt:i,7113 QGG,738 B2,a.45 0211,132 n2,1n 
6,050 e,oso ..... ..... , .... 3,6110 1,na 3,728 

87,138 87,138 80,544 ""·"" 
--s2i45 

__....U!!L ~ 
82045 
~ ~ 

~ ~ ~ ~ 

1,lil8,151 1,188,151 1,3i5,540 1,305,5>40 
181,11st!l 181,116 151,335 151,3l5 

28,518 28,518 211,518 28,511 ... ~ ... ~. e55,&84 t$5,884 
83,18-4 ll,18ol 18,111 78,111 

____..1!!£QQ_ ~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ 

178,465 1711,4&5 175,1S2S 175,8Z5 
1,041.1174 1,048,&74 .... oos .... .,.. 

380,000 :1110,000 ,.., ... ,.., ... 
~ _____!.!!!!2... 
~ ~ 1 502 530 1502538 

8,000 0,000 5,131 5,1l8 
1,373,139 1,373,13& 1,2111,2e0 1,2e1,200 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 13~!~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

20,2ll3 ,.,,., 25,283 25,2ll3 
11o4,7D6 Ui,017 143,813 193,131 1oli,017 lol2,154 

2,1127,000 2,W,UO 2,D21,808 U2t,aoe ., ... 1132,000 505,917 505,817 .....526 ....... 446,528 441S,.52e 
2,405 2,405 1,859 1,150 

750,330 750,330 481,511 481,511 

~ ~ ~ ~ 
~ 140017 ~ ~ 14i017 ~ 

217,119 217,110 215,818 21S,i18 
881,313 881,313 ...,, ... 1110,000 

217;19 
______2lli_ ~ ____1.!!L ~ 
~ ~ 215018 _..!!!.!!!.... ~ 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

<8,561 41..511 42,1H 42,1VIJ 
3,371 3.371 1 .... 1 .... 

57,87111 57,878 57,11176 57,870 
18,412 Hl,o412 18,765 18,71115 

Mi,430 115,1J4 785,104 557,326 85,015 &42,J.41 

~ ~ ~ ~ 
~ 184115 ~ ~ 127214 ~ 

5,284,1D2 5,2&4,102 5,264,182 5,2&4,182 
840,000 640,000 8ll!l,lS3 ll6,353 

1,011,800 1,011,600 1,011,014 1,011,014 
100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 
438,300 -411,300 m,:r18 11K1,318 
445,8Qe 7,854,041 8,3aU37 375,596 7,851,205 8,328,801 

~ 
13218;33 

___1!!!P_ ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ 13.217457 1SD60 848 

5,502,517 5,582,517 
1,605,82i J,805,82t 

14.063 14,083 

~ ~ 
~ 12048887 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ •ziJ24155 211048)4 84Z837118 

36 715 701 ~ uaz:t8n 4B 1u see st seonz 877-M 318 



CAfrTAL Olffi.AY 

~ 
R•gularProgr.~-lnslrUdton: 

Gr.dn9-12 
Tot.l Equipment 
Spec .. l Educ.tlon- Non llulrud.lonel Equlpm~nl: 

UndlltriboiM ~ndil.ur•- School Admlnlil&nilion 
Total Nonln11rucUoul Equipment 

Facltk.in Acqull.ltlon and Con•tn.lclkln BlorvkH: 
Alchii.KWrai/EnQinMring 6eMca 
Land end lmpruyemenla 
Building. other than u ... Purd\aa AQI'HmiWIIa 

Tot.l FaciUlln Acqubltlon and Conatn.lcUon a.~ 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 

SPECIAL SCHOOLS 
a~rkt-1-lns~: 
SaAa.-otTe~ 
GlnlfwiSIIPC)hl 

TOUIIummet 6d!ool- "'-tructlon 

TOTAL SPECIAL SCHOOLS 

Tnrrafaraf FUndJotD ctl.•rt•rSc:beall 
TOTAL EXPENDIT\JRE6 

Excni(O.nc .. ncy) of RewnuH ov.,.I(Unct.r) EapendfWru 

Othlr Financing Soura~a(UNa): 
Open.tki.o Tr.tt~~ulnJ 

~:~~:::~ :::~:=:::::: =~~::: ::;::~~~~n•dRrH r~"d 
OperaUng TrW.nafer Out: 

Contribution to Whola School ReForm 
Tolal Olhlr Flnancklg Sourcaa(UAe) 

Excus (O.fich.ncy) or Rlvanues •nd Olhlr Fln..nclng 6ourcas 
O~ori{Undar) EK~ndkuru •nd Olhar flna.ndng Sources (Uan) 

Ft~nd Balance, July 1 

FundBalanca,JunelO 

_,_ 
_,_ 
0 

ORtoWAL BlJOGET 
o~rauna B*'dad 

Fund Resoura 
Fund11-U ~ 

$ ~ 
~ 

305273 
305273 

15,000 
803,1100 

1 ~:~m ----
20081181 - ~ 

150,000 
5200 

155~ 

155200 

32347e9 
42088748 521a:JQ28 

45008~ (52183028) 

50,l58,074 
1,415,000 

~~58074) 
(50 sse 0741 51n1o1c 

(5,347,884) (421.~ 

8545000 ~ 

• 4197308 -·---·-

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP 8CHOOL DiSTRICT 
C.Or.i8t4'1NG BUDCETARY COMI:'ARISOH_3CUEDUL.f 

GENERAL FUND 
fti.CAL YEAA iHDED JUNE .30, 101 t 

BUDGET TRANSFER 
T .... o~r"ifti BMnHd Total 

GeM nil .... ........ GerHIIral 
----E!!!!L._ ~ ~ ~ 

~ • ~ ~ 
-------L!!!L ~ ~ 

~ 
~ 

15,000 
803,800 ....... ....... 
~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ ---- -....m.HL 
~ ~ ~ ~ 

150,000 

~ ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ 

155.200 ..... .. ... 
~ ~ ---B!.!!!.. 

1M 281 774 ~ ~ 

~ _____!!!!!!!1. ~ 

50,358,074 (188,031) 1188,031) 
1,415,000 118,031 118,0l1 

(50356074) ~ ~ 
~ ----1!!l!!L ---- ~ 

(5,789,848) 

00061152 - - - - ---- ___.___ 
~ ..L...-..;.... -·---·- -·---·-'. 

C-1o 
~ 

FJNAt BUDGET ACTIJAl. 
OpenUng ....... T ... l Openlfng .~ .... ToLl I 

·~· 
Rnou~ G•nenl Fund Resoura O.nerel 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

• ~ ~ $" ~ ~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ 

~ ______!!!W!_ ~ ~ 
~ ______!!!W!_ ~ ~ 

15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 
1,441,4«1 1,448,488 1,448,4«1 1,4<41,-4ee 

~ ~ ~ ~ 
____1.!!!JQ!_ ---- ~ ~ ---- ~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

150,000 1SO,DOO 86,107 80,107 

~ ~ __!..!!!__ ______!J!!.._ 
~ ~ ~ ~ 

202 000 202 000 07305 87 305 

~ ~ ~ ~ 
4l 43.5 SIWI 521Ql026 85 828 584 52374088 51 5875l2 103141 eGII 

'.!~ IHil-48 ~ ~ 48287506 ~ ~ 

50,1157,043 50,187,04) 49,538,888 41,6li,988 
1,&04,031 1,604,031 1,584,831 1,564,8l1 

(50 167 04l) ~ (411ml89) (41531911) 
(50 1870431 51771074 ~ ~ 51.224820 ~ 

{5,2-47,014) (421,952) (5,789,848) (1,l52,453) (342,70l) (1 ,8~.185) 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

' c 197 l08 -·---·- s 4 197 301 ~ ~ $ 1271786 



REVENUES: 
Federal Sources 

Slate Sources 
Local Sources 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 

Instruction: 
Salaries ofT eachers 

Other Salaries for Instruction 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 

Purchased Professional and Educational Services 

Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff 

Other Purchased Services 

Supplies and Materials 

General Supplies 

Other Objects 

TotallnstrucUon 

Support Services: 

Salaries 

Salaries of Principals/Program Directors 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 

Salaries of Secretaries and Clerical Assistants 

Other Salaries 

Salaries of Family/Parent Liaison and Community 

Parent Involvement Specialists 

Salaries of Facilitators, Math Coaches, Literacy 

Coaches, and Master Teachers 

Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/ Retired Staff 

Employee Benefits 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Original Budget 

Sudoet Transfers 

$ 2,933,505 1,740,101 
10,758,824 135,923 

295,946 

13,692,329 2,171,970 

1,608,431 494,399 

524,719 104,389 
120,000 
250,000 

10,000 
523,799 168,120 

276,149 
75,000 20,375 
25,000 28,725 

2,766,949 1,462,157 

154,235 420,010 
119,389 
539,244 

57,152 
139,831 (34,150) 

96,660 

332,559 
10,000 1,000 

858,195 117,481 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services- Contracted Pre-K 3,952,640 1,663,200 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services - Head Start 1,663,200 (1 ,663,200) 

Purchased Professional-Educational Services 50,000 50,341 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 570,000 102,500 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 25,000 24,000 

Cleaning, Repairs and Maintenance Services 125,000 

Rentals 410,000 

Contracted Services (Field Trips) 20,000 

Travel 12,000 

Supplies and Materials 25,000 47,300 

Other Object 20,000 19,333 

Salaries of Security 34,150 

Total Support Services 9,180,105 781,965 

Facilities Acquisition and Constructton Services: 

Instructional Equipment 20,000 33,005 

Nonins\ructional Equipment 16,087 

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services 38,087 33,005 

Total Expenditures 11,983,141 2,277,127 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfer Out to School-Based Budgets (General Fund) (1,709,188) 105,157 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,709,188) 105,157 

Total Outflows 13,692,329 2,171,970 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/( Under) Expenditures 

and Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Final Variance 

Budget Actual Einal to 6clual 

$ 4,673,606 4,539,363 134,243 

10,894,747 10,206,672 688,075 

295,946 289,458 6,488 

15,864,299 15,035,493 828,806 

2,102,830 2,035,201 67,629 

629,108 629,108 

120,000 115,726 4,274 

250,000 237,404 12,596 

10,000 10,000 

691,919 592,363 99,556 

276,149 273,705 2,444 

95,375 73,247 22,128 

53,725 53,303 422 
4,229,106 4,020,057 209,049 

574,245 573,161 1,084 

119,389 119,389 
539,244 538,589 655 

57,152 54,708 2,444 

105,681 103,016 2,665 

96,660 95,435 1,225 

332,559 331,120 1,439 

11,000 10,985 15 
975,676 975,279 397 

5,615,840 5,132,937 482,903 

100,341 76,585 23,756 

672,500 668,456 4,044 

49,000 48,921 79 
125,000 124,996 4 
410,000 410,000 

20,000 11,644 8,356 

12,000 10,649 1,351 

72,300 72,048 252 
39,333 12,832 26,501 

34,150 34,149 
9,962,070 9,404,899 557,171 

53,005 25,706 27,299 

16,067 16,067 

69,092 25,706 43,366 

14,260,268 13,450,662 809,606 

(1,604,031) (1 ,584,831) (19,200) 

(1,604,031) (1 ,584,831) (19,200) 

15,864,299 15,035,493 828,806 

$ (0) (0) 
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CITY OR ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BUDGET-TO-GAAP RECONCILIATION 

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Note A- Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and 

GAAP Revenues and Expenditures 

Sources/Inflows of Resources: 

General 

Fund 

Special 

Revenue 

Fund 

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" 

from the budgetary comparison schedule. [C-1] $ 100,661,592 [C-2] $ 15,035,493 

Difference - Budget-to-GAAP: 

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that 

encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related 

revenue is recognized. 

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in current year, 
previously recognized for budgetary purposes. 

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not 

recognized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year. 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. 

Uses/Outflows of Resources: 

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) ''total outflows" from the 

budgetary comparison schedule. 

Differences - Budget-to-GAAP 

The district budgets for claims and compensated absences 

only to the extent expected to be paid, rather than on the 

modified accrual basis. 

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but 

not received are reported in the year the order is placed for 
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received 

for financial reporting purposes. 

Transfers to and from other funds are presented as outflows of 

budgetary resources but are not expenditures for financial 

reporting purposes. 

Net transfers (outflows) to general fund 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, 

expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. 

52,278 

7,369,030 1,030,359 

(7,482,027) (1 ,046,000} 

[8-2] $ 100,548,595 $ 15,072,130 

[C-1] $ 103,941 ,608 [C-2] $ 15,035,493 

305,111 

(252,833) 

(1 ,584,831) 

[B-2] $ 103,941 ,608 $ 13,502,940 
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L. SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS (GASB 68) 

Note: GASB 68 requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. The following unaudited 
information is presented utilizing information available. Data for the latest years available has 
been presented. Each year hereafter, an additional year's data will be included until ten years 
of data is presented. 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM CPERS) 
LAST FIVE (5) FISCAL YEAR * 

(Unaudited) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

District's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.095208277% 0.0911099750% 0.088543399% 0.0860858098% 

District's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability (asset) $ 22,162,965 $ 26,984,161 $ 19,856,016 $ 15,421 ,648 

State's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability (asset) associated with the District 23,278,401 ,588 29,617,131 ,759 22,447,996,119 18,722,735,003 -

$23,300,564,553 $29,644,115,920 $22,467,852,135 $18,738,156,651 

District's covered-employee payroll $ 6,585,154 $ 6,455,321 $ 6,313,234 $ 6,127,758 

District's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered-
employee payroll 2.97% 2.39% 3.18% 3.97% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 48.10% 75.92% 38.21% 52.08% 

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the fiscal year-end. 

k1 

2014 

0.0806909729% 

$ 16,117,618 

19,111,986,911 

$19,128,104,529 

$ 5,970,287 

3.70% 

48.72% 

Note: Only the last five (5) years of information are presented as GASB 68 was implemented during fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Eventually a full ten (10) years schedule 
will be compiled. 
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Contractually required contribution 

Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

District's covered-employee payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee 
payroll 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS) 

LAST FIVE (5) FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

2018 2017 

$ 882,003 $ 931,984 $ 

882,003 931 ,984 

None None 

2016 

883,913 

883,913 

None 

$6,585,154 $ 6,455,321 $6,313,234 

0.00 14.43% 14.00% 

L-2 

2015 2014 

$ 760,462 $ 709,679 

760,462 709,679 

None None 

$6,127,758 $5,907,087 

12.41% 12.01% 

Note: Only the last five (5) years of information are presented as GASB 68 was implemented during fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Eventually a full ten (10) 
year schedule will be compiled. 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
TEACHERS' PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF) 

LAST FIVE (5) FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

District's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 
(asset) 0. 3708666684% 0.368439546% 0.3684639546% 0.3788665177% 

District's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability (asset) None None None None 

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) associated with the District $67,423,605,859 $78,666,367,052 $63,204,270,305 $53,446,745,367 

Total $67,423,605,859 $78,666,367,052 $63,204,270,305 $53,446,745,367 

District's covered-employee payroll $ 38,842,357 $ 37,989,562 $ 37,062,988 $ 36,718,832 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll None None None None 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 25.41% 38.20% 28.71% 33.64% 

L-3 

2014 

0.3572028027% 

None 

__!50,539,213,484 

$50,539,213,484 

$ 37,671,360 

None 

33.76% 

Note: Only the last five (5) years of information are presented as GASB 68 was implemented during fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Eventually a full (10) year schedule 
will be compiled. 



CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
EMPLOYEE PENSION FUND OF ESSEX COUNTY 

LAST THREE (3) FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

District's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) 

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) associated with the District 

Total 

District's covered-employee payroll 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 

2018 

1.4243377% 

$ 447,620 

31 ,426,510 

$31,874,130 

$ 12,063 

2.69% 

77.36% 

2017 2016 

1.3210903% 1.2201727% 

$ 377,570 $ 469,997 

28,580,175 38,518,876 

$28,957,745 $38,988,873 

$ 12,529 $ 13,733 

3.32% 2.92% 

79.51% 76.05% 

Note: Only the last Three (3) years of information are presented as GASB 68 was implemented during fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2016. Eventually a full (10) year schedule will be compiled. 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS 
EMPLOYEE PENSION FUND OF ESSEX COUNTY 

LAST THREE (3) FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

2018 

Contractually required contribution $447,620 

Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution 447,620 

Contribution deficiency (excess) None 

District's covered-employee payroll $ 12,063 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee 
payroll 2.69% 

2017 2016 

$377,570 $469,997 

377,570 469,997 

None None 

$ 12,529 $ 13,733 

3.32% 2.92% 

Note: Only the last Three+ (3) years of information are presented as GASB 68 was implemented during the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Eventually a full ten (10) year schedule will be compiled. 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION- PART Ill 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Changes of Benefit Terms and Changes of Assumptions 

Refer to Note 8 on the Notes to Financial Statements for benefits and assumptions. 
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M. SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR 
POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS 

Note: GASB 75 requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. The following unaudited 
information is presented utilizing information available. Data for the latest years available has 
been presented. Each year hereafter, an additional year's data will be included until ten years 
of data is presented. 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT'S 
TOTAL OPES LIABILITY FOR PERS AND TPAF AND RELATED RATIOS 

Total OPEB Liability 

Service cost 
Interest 
Changes of benefit items 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 
Benefit payments 
Contributions from members 
Net changes in total OPEB liability 
Total OPEB liability- beginning 

Total OPEB liability- ending 

Covered-employee payroll (PERS and TPAF) 

LAST FISCAL YEAR * 

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 

Exhibit M-1 

2018 

$ 9,098,628 
4,711,481 

(20,681 ,843) 
{3,420,717) 

125,959 
(10,166,492) 
157,852,309 

$147,685,817 

$ 62, 146,786 

237.64% 

Note: Only the last year of information is presented as GASB 75 was implemented during the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018. Eventually a full ten (10) year schedule will be compiled. 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information: 
Benefit Changes - For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount liability is 5.9%. 
For self-insured post-65 PPO medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. For health maintenance organization (HMO) 
medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.9%. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 10.5%. 
The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5%. 

Changes of Assumptions- The discount rate utilized was 3.58% as of June 30, 2017. 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION· PART Ill 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Changes of Benefit Terms and Changes of Assumptions 

Refer to Notes 9 and 1 0 on the Notes to Financial Statements for benefits and assumptions. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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D. SCHOOL-BASED BUDGET SCHEDULES (IF APPLICABLE) 
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Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Intergovernmental Accounts 

Receivable: 
State 
Local 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 
lntergovermental Payable 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Restricted : 

Assigned for Other Purposes 
Excess Surplus - Designated 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GENERAL FUND 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET- GAAP BASIS 
JUNE 30, 2018 

Operating 
Fund 

Fund 11 - 13 

$1 ,260,807 

653,625 
74,350 

$1,988,782 

$1,277,574 
718 

1,278,292 

2,925,544 

for Subsequent Years Expenditures 2,600,000 
Excess Surplus 779,312 

(Deficit) {5,594,366) 

Total Fund Balances 710,490 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $1,988,782 

Blended Total 
Resource General 
Fund 15 Fund 

$79,249 $1,340,056 

653,625 
74,350 

$79,249 $2,068,031 

$1,277,574 
718 

1,278,292 

79,249 3,004,793 

2,600,000 
779,312 

(5,594,366) 

79,249 789,739 

$79,249 $2,068,031 
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DISTRICT-WIDE 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES 
ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Resources 
Resource 
Amount 

%of Total 
Resources 

General Fund Contribution 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

Combined General Fund Contributions and Stale Resources 

Restricted Federal Sources: 
Title I of NCLB: Improving the Academic Achievement of the 
Disadvantaged 

Title II, Part A of NCLB: Preparing Training and Recruiting 
High Quality Teachers and Principals 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Total Resources 

$50,167,043 

421 ,952 

50,588,995 

1,344,031 

260,000 

1,604,031 

$ 52,193,026 

96.93% 

2.57% 

0.50% 

3.07% 

100.00% 

Total Total Surplus/ 
Expenditures - Carryover-

%of Total %of Total 
Resources Resources 

$ 49,560,738 $ 631,955 

421,952 

49,982,691 606,304 

1,328,316 15,715 

256,515 3,485 

1,584,831 19,200 

$51,567,522 $ 625,504 
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Resources 

General Fund Contribution 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES 
ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Resource 
Amount 

%of Total 
Resources 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

$1,257,134 

124,291 

Combined General Fund Contributions and State 
Resources 

Total Resources 

1,381,425 100.00% 

$1,381,425 100.00% 

Total Total Surplus/ 
Expenditures- Carryover-

%of Total %of Total 

Resources Resources 

$ 1,212,960 $ 44,174 

124,291 

1,337,251 44,174 

$ 1,337,251 $ 44,174 
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CLEVELAND SCHOOL 

Resources 

General Fund Contribution 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES 

ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Resource 

Amount 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

$3,202,342 

399 

Combined General Fund Contributions and State Resources 

Restricted Federal Sources: 
Title I of NCLB: Improving the Academic Achievement of 
the Disadvantaged 

Title II, Part A of NCLB: Preparing, Training and 
Recruiting High Quality Teachers and Principals 

Title Ill, Part A of NCLB: English Language Acquisition, 
Language Enhancement, and Academic Achievement 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Total Resources 

3,202,741 

83,633 

26,000 

109,633 

$3,312,374 

% ofTotal 
Resources 

96.69% 

2.52% 

0.78% 

3.31% 

100.00% 

Total 
Expenditures -

%of Total 
Resources 

$ 3,108,329 

399 

3,108,728 

81,178 

25,237 

106,415 

$ 3,215,143 

Total Surplus/ 

Carryover­

%of Total 
Resources 

$ 94,013 

94,013 

2,455 

763 

3,218 

$ 97,231 
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FOREST SCHOOL 

Resources 

General Fund Contribution 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES 
ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Resource 
Amount 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

$3,223,550 

137 

Combined General Fund Contributions and State 
Resources 

Restricted Federal Sources: 
Title I of NCLB: Improving the Academic Achievement 
of the Disadvantaged 

Title II, Part A of NCLB: Preparing Training and 
Recruiting High Quality Teachers and Principals 

Title Ill, Part A of NCLB: English Language Acquisition, 
Language Enhancement, and Academic Achievement 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Total Resources 

3,223,687 

95,760 

26,000 

121 ,760 

$3,345,447 

%of Total 
Resources 

96.36% 

2.86% 

0.78% 

3.64% 

100.00% 

Total Total Surplus/ 
Expenditures -

%of Total 
Resources 

$ 3,159,692 

137 

3,159,829 

93,863 

25,485 

119,348 

$ 3,279,177 

Carryover­
% of Total 
Resources 

$ 63,858 

63,858 

1,897 

515 

2,412 

$ 66,270 
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HEYWOOD SCHOOL 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES 

ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE -ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Resources 
Resource 
Amount 

%of Total 
Resources 

General Fund Contribution 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

Combined General Fund Contributions and State Resources 

Restricted Federal Sources: 
Title I of NCLB: Improving the Academic Achievement of 
the Disadvantaged 

Title II, Part A of NCLB: Preparing Training and 
Recruiting High Quality Teachers and Principals 

Title Ill, Part A of NCLB: English Language Acquisition, 
Language Enhancement, and Academic Achievement 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Total Resources 

$3,931,658 

16,129 

3,947,787 

73,130 

31 ,200 

104,330 

$4,052,117 

97.43% 

1.80% 

0.77% 

2.57% 

100.00% 

Total 
Expenditures -

%of Total 
Resources 

$3,859,647 

16,129 

3,875,776 

71,796 

30,631 

102,427 

$3,978,203 

Total Surplus/ 
Carryover­
%of Total 
Resources 

$ 72,011 

72,011 

1,334 

569 

1,903 

$ 73,914 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES 
ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

LINCOLN AVENUE SCHOOL 

Resources 

General Fund Contribution 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

Combined General Fund Contributions and State Resources 

Restricted Federal Sources: 
Title I of NCLB: Improving the Academic Achievement of 
the Disadvantaged 

Title II, Part A of NCLB: Preparing Training and 
Recruiting High Quality Teachers and Principals 

Title Ill, Part A of NCLB: English Language Acquisition, 
Language Enhancement, and Academic Achievement 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Total Resources 

Resource 
Amount 

$ 6,488,334 

49,192 

6,537,526 

202,920 

52,000 

254,920 

$6,792,446 

%of Total 
Resources 

96.25% 

2.99% 

0.77% 

3.75% 

100.00% 

Total 
Expenditures -

%of Total 
Resources 

$ 6,416,1 30 

49,192 

6,465,322 

200,679 

51,426 

252,105 

$ 6,717,427 

Total Surplus/ 
Carryover­
%of Total 
Resources 

$ 72,204 

72,204 

2,241 

574 

2,8.15 

$ 75,019 
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OAKWOOD SCHOOL 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES 
ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Resources 
Resource 
Amount 

%of Total 
Resources 

General Fund Contribution 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

Combined General Fund Contributions and State 
Resources 

Restricted Federal Sources: 
Title I of NCLB: Improving the Academic Achievement 
of the Disadvantaged 

Title II, Part A of NCLB: Preparing Training and 
Recruiting High Quality Teachers and Principals 

Title Ill, Part A of NCLB: English Language Acquisition, 
Language Enhancement, and Academic Achievement 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Total Resources 

$2,839,914 

16,616 

2.856,530 

94.578 

23,400 

117,978 

96.03% 

3.18% 

0.79% 

3.97% 

100.00% 

Total 
Expenditures -

% ofTotal 
Resources 

$ 2,826,279 

16,616 

2,842,895 

94,127 

23,288 

117,415 

$ 2,960,310 

Total Surplus/ 
Carryover­
%of Total 
Resources 

$ 13,635 

13 635 

451 

112 

563 

$ 14198 
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PARK AVENUE SCHOOL 

Resources 

General Fund Contribution 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES 
ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Resource 
Amount 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

$4,586,700 

9,301 

Combined General Fund Contributions and State 
Resources 

Restricted Federal Sources: 
Title I of NCLB: Improving the Academic Achievement of 
the Disadvantaged 

Title II , Part A of NCLB: Preparing, Training and 
Recruiting High Quality Teachers and Principals 

Title Ill, Part A of NCLB: English Language Acquisition, 
Language Enhancement, and Academic Achievement 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Total Resources 

4,596,001 

121,980 

36,400 

158,380 

$4,754,381 

%of Total 
Resources 

96.67% 

2.57% 

0.77% 

3.33% 

100.00% 

Total 
Expenditures -

%of Total 
Resources 

$4,576,827 

9,301 

4,586.128 

121,718 

36,322 

158,040 

$4,744,168 

Total Surplus/ 
Carryover­
%of Total 
Resources 

$ 9,873 

9,873 

262 

78 

340 

$ 10,213 
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ORANGE PREP ACADEMY 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES 
ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE- ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Resource %of Total 
Resources 

General Fund Contribution 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

Combined General Fund Contributions and State 
Resources 

Restricted Federal Sources: 
Title I of NCLB: Improving the Academic Achievement of 
the Disadvantaged 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Total Resources 

Amount Resources 

$7,024,129 

189,671 

7,21 3,800 97.88% 

156,180 2.12% 

156,180 2.12% 

$7,369,980 100.00% 

Total Total Surplus/ 

Expenditures - Carryover-

% ofTotal %of Total 

Resources Resources 

$6,975,629 $ 48,500 

189,671 

7,165,300 48,500 

155,130 1,050 

155,130 1,050 

$7,320,430 $ 49,550 
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ORANGE HIGH SCHOOL 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES 
ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE TYPE -ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Resources 
Resource 
Amount 

% ofTotal 
Resources 

General Fund Contribution 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

Combined General Fund Contributions and State 
Resources 

Restricted Federal Sources: 
Title I of NCLB: Improving the Academic Achievement 
of the Disadvantaged 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Total Resources 

$9,715,945 

5,587 

9,721,532 

180,690 

180,690 

$9,902,222 

98.18% 

1.82% 

1.82% 

100.00% 

Total Total Surplus/ 

Expenditures - Carryover-
%of Total %of Total 

Resources Resources 

$ 9,634,180 $ 81,765 

5,587 

9,639,767 81,765 

179,170 1,520 

179,170 1,520 

$ 9,818,937 
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ROSA PARKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

Resources 

General Fund Contribution 

CllY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES 

ALLOCATED BY RESOURCE lYPE- ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Resource 
Amount 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

$7,897,337 

10,629 

Combined .General Fund Contributions and State 
Resources 

Restricted Federal Sources: 
Title I of NCLB: Improving the Academic Achievement of 
the Disadvantaged 

Title II, Part A of NCLB: Preparing Training and 
Recruiting High Quality Teachers and Principals 

Title Ill, Part A of NCLB: English Language Acquisition, 
Language Enhancement, and Academic Achievement 

Total Restricted Federal Resources 

Total Resources 

7,907,966 

335,160 

65,000 

400,160 

$8,308,126 

%of Total 
Resources 

95.18% 

4.03% 

0.78% 

4.82% 

100.00% 

Total 
Expenditures -

%of Total 
Resources 

$7,791,065 

10,629 

7,801 ,694 

330 656 

64,126 

394,782 

$8,196,476 

Total Surplus/ 
Carryover­
% of Total 
Resources 

$ 106,272 

106,273 

4,504 

874 

5,378 

$ 111,650 
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DISTRICT -WIDE 

REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 

Regular Programs - Instruction: 

Preschool/Kindergarten- Salaries of Teachers 

Grades 1-5- Salaries of Teachers 

Grades 6-8- Salaries of Teachers 

Grades 9-12- Salaries of Teachers 

Regular Programs -Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Salaries for Instruction 

Purchased Professional-Educational Services 

Purchased Technical Services 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 

General Supplies 

Textbooks 

Other Objects 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

$ 1,356,899 $ (13,883) $ 

7,695,832 (5,687) 

5,662,641 (49,939) 

4,797,111 (13,819) 

539,370 (15,565) 

231,224 185,640 

191,539 141 ,383 

22,816 672 

879,314 (36,765) 

151,936 (27,368) 

51 855 8,960 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS- INSTRUCTION 21,580,537 173,629 

SPECIAL EDUCATION- INSTRUCTION 

Learning and/or Language Disabllltles: 

Salaries of Teachers 745,252 (12,806) 

Other Salaries for Instruction 259,850 (3,286) 

Purchased Professional-Educational Services 1,000 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 6,200 

General Supplies 27,945 (1,406) 

Textbooks 10,900 (3,000) 

Other Objects 4,500 

Total Learning and/or Language Dlsabllltles 1,055,647 (20,498) 

Behavioral Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 60,132 (3,938) 

Other Salaries for Instruction 27,936 590 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 2,000 

General Supplies 10,500 

Total Behavioral Disabilities 107,068 (3,348) 

Final 
Budget Actual 

1,343,016 $ 1,337,893 

7,690,145 7,686,639 

5,612,702 5,609,295 

4,783,292 4,766,861 

523,805 520,877 

416,864 253,654 

332,922 205,665 

23,488 9,822 

842,549 798,849 

124,568 118,566 

60,815 43,747 

21,754,166 21,351 ,868 

732,446 730,046 

256,564 252,142 

1,000 370 

6,200 5,156 

26,539 24,471 

7,900 5,723 

4,500 3,697 

1,035,149 1,021,605 

56,194 55,545 

28,526 27,343 

2,000 2,000 

10,500 10,395 

103,720 100,062 

D-3 
Sheet #1 

Variance 
Final to Actual 

$ 5,123 

3,506 

3,407 

16,431 

2,928 

163,210 

127,257 

13,666 

43,700 

6,002 

17,068 

402,298 

2,400 

4,422 

630 

1,044 

2,068 

2,177 

803 

13,544 

649 

1.183 

105 

3,658 
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DISTRICT-WIDE 

Multiple Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 

Other Salaries for instruction 

Purchased Technical Services 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 

General Supplies 

Textbooks 

Other Objects 

Total Multiple Disabilities 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 

Salaries of Teachers 

Other Salaries for Instruction 

Purchased Professional-Educational Services 

Purchased Technical Services 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 

General Supplies 

Textbooks 

Other Objects 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 

Autism: 

Salaries of Teachers 

Other Salaries for Instruction 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 

General Supplies 

Total Autism 

Preschool Disabilities- Full-Time: 

General Supplies 

Other Objects 

Total Preschool Disabilities - Full-Time 

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

$ 520,233 $ (12,096) $ 

391,689 4,958 

5,000 

5,000 120 

22,552 

4,000 

365 

948,839 (7,018) 

2,905,862 (41,469) 

379,442 28,329 

7,250 49,026 

3,000 

11,000 

51,199 (8,758) 

8,500 (3,500) 

6,000 

3,372,253 23,628 

389,738 (32,740) 

253,752 22,680 

2,000 

10.480 (1,334) 

657.470 (11,394) 

9,250 270 

1,066 

12,816 270 

6,154.093 (18,360) 

Final Variance 
Budget Actual Final to Actual 

508,137 $ 504,900 $ 3,237 

396,647 393,791 2,856 

5,000 5,000 

5,120 3,956 1,164 

22,552 20,212 2,340 

4,000 2,440 1,560 

365 365 

941,821 930,664 11,157 

2,864,393 2,856,410 7,983 

407,771 407,491 280 

56,276 4,517 51 ,759 

3,000 3,000 

11,000 10,961 39 

42,441 39,544 2,897 

5,000 4,965 35 

6,000 6,000 

3,395,881 3,332,888 62,993 

356,998 356,921 77 

276,432 276,152 280 

2,000 2,000 

9,146 7,726 1,420 

646,076 643,547 2,529 

9,520 9,365 155 

1,066 1.066 

13,086 12,931 155 

6,135,733 6,041,697 94,036 
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DISTRICT -WIDE 

Bilingual Education -Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers 

Other Salaries for Instruction 

Purchased Professional-Educational Services 

Purchased Technical Services 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 

General Supplies 

Textbooks 

Other Objects 

Total Bilingual Education - Instruction 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

Final 
Budget 

$ 2,090,733.00 $ (11,419.00) $ 2,079,314.00 

123,695 1,347 125,042 

1,200 1,200 

1,500 1,500 

10,700 (4,200) 6 ,500 

44,589 (8,336) 36,253 

14,200 (11,000) 3,200 

7 ,728 7 ,728 

2,294,345 (33,608) 2,260,737 

School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities - Instruction: 

Salaries 204,239 (4 ,782) 199,457 

Purchased Services (300-500 Series) 40,322 (18,009) 22,313 

Supplies and Materials 60,000 450 60,450 

Other Objects 451 451 

304,561 (21,890) 282,671 

School-Sponsored Athletics - Instruction: 

Supplies and Materials 500 500 

Total School-Sponsored Athletics -Instruction 500 500 

Before/After School Programs -Instruction: 

Purchased Services (300-500 series) 7,000 7,000 

Supplies and Materials 20,300 750 21,050 

Total Before/After School Programs -Instruction 27,300 750 28,050 

Total Instruction 30,361,336 100,521 30,461,857 

Actual 

$ 2,069,458 ,00 

119,455 

122 

6,474 

33,264 

3,200 

7,728 

2,239,701 

184,872 

20,663 

54,546 

276 

260,357 

500 

500 

6,966 

20 ,749 

27.715 

29,921,838 

D-3 
Sheet#3 

Variance 
Final to Actual 

$ 9,856.00 

5,587 

1,078 

1,500 

26 

2,989 

21,036 

14,585 

1,650 

5,904 

175 

22,314 

34 

301 

335 

540,019 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

DISTRICT-WIDE 

Undistributed Expenditures -Attendance and Social Work: 

Salaries $ 324,370 $ (1,807) $ 

Salaries of Family Support Teams 176,444 

Supplies and Materials 7,199 72 

Total Undistributed Expend. -Attendance and Social Work 508,013 (1,735) 

Undistributed Expenditures - Health Services: 

Salaries 816,996 (7,653) 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 1,350 

Supplies and Materials 15,110 (1,668) 

Other Objects 165 

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Health Services 833,621 (9,321) 

Undist. Expend. - Other Supp. Serv. Students - Related Serv.: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 738,986 

Purchased Professional and Educational Services 6,000 

Supplies and Materials 15,882 227 

Total Undist. Expend. -Other Supp. Serv. Students - Related Serv. 760,868 227 

Undist. Expend. - Other Supp. Serv. Students - Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 50,467 300 

Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services 200 

Supplies and Materials 300 (300) 

Total Undist. Expend. -Other Supp. Serv. Students -Guidance 50,967 300 

Undistributed Expenditures - Improvement of lnst. Serv.: 

Salaries of Supervisor of Instruction 24,990 (6,660) 

Supplies and Materials 9,943 

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Improvement of lnst. Serv. 37,733 (6,660) 

Undistributed Expenditures - Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library: 

Salaries 512,029 (25,900) 

Salaries of Technology Coordinators 792,738 (10,187) 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 6,671 

Supplies and Materials 184,000 (1,366) 

Other Objects 31,466 (5,700) 

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Edu. Media Serv./Sch. Library 1,526,904 (43,153) 

Final 
Budget 

322,563 $ 

176,444 

7,271 

506,278 

809,343 

1,350 

13,442 

165 

824,300 

738,986 

6,000 

16,109 

761,095 

50,767 

200 

51,267 

18,330 

9,943 

31,073 

486,129 

782,551 

6,671 

182,634 

25,766 

1,483,751 

Actual 

322,171 

176,242 

4,673 

503.086 

806,220 

408 

12,350 

165 

819,143 

738,076 

6,000 

15,935 

760,011 

50,712 

51 012 

18,309 

6.248 

29,268 

484,075 

762,446 

5,663 

178,053 

25.214 

1,475,451 

D-3 

~ 

Variance 
Final to Actual 

$ 392 

202 

2,598 

3,192 

3,123 

942 

1,092 

5,157 

910 

174 

1,064 

55 

200 

255 

21 

1,695 

1,805 

2,054 

105 

1,008 

4,581 

552 

8,300 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

DISTRICT -WIDE 

Undistributed Expenditures - Instructional Staff Training Serv.: 

Supplies and Materials $ 4,900.00 $ $ 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Instructional Staff Training Serv. 4,900 

Undistributed Expenditures -Support Serv. -School Admin.: 

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/ Program Directors 2,641.429 (24,036) 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 2,600 (1,560) 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 943,797 (7,004) 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 7,750 (1 ,700) 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 3,800 

Supplies and Materials 66,273 863 

Other Objects 1,303 (100) 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Support Serv. -School Admin. 3,666,952 (33,537) 

Undist. Expend. -Allowance for Maintenance of School Facilities: 

General Supplies 8,400 (1,452) 

Total Undist. Expend. -Allowance for Maintenance of School Facilities 14,400 (1,452) 

Undistributed Expenditures -Other Oper. and Malnt. of Plant: 

General Supplies 500 (500) 

Undistributed Expenditures - Security: 

Salaries 881,313 

General Supplies 2,016 498 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Security 883.329 498 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Other Oper. and Maint. of Plant 1,047,246 (1.454) 

Undistributed Expenditures -Student Transportation Serv.: 

Sal for Pupil Trans (Other than Bel Home & Sch) 33,881 14,700 

Contractual Service (Other than Between Home and Sch.)- Vendor 64,923 50,811 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Student Transportation Serv. 98,804 65,511 

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 

Group Insurance 5,266,192 (2,000) 

Health Benefits 6.,020,740 (66,699) 

TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 13,286,932 (68,699) 

TOTAL PENSION SERVICES- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 13,286,932 (68,699) 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 21,822,940 (98,521) 

TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 52,184.276 2,000 

Final 
Budget Actual 

4 ,900.00 $ 3,591 .00 

4,900 3.591 

2,617,393 2,610,450 

1,040 

936,793 929,832 

6,050 4,904 

3,800 3,728 

67,136 60,544 

1,203 1,203 

3,633,415 3,610,661 

6,948 5,966 

12.948 11,105 

881,313 880,088 

2.514 1,830 

883,827 881,918 

1,045,792 1,042,040 

48,581 42,199 

115,734 85,015 

164,315 127.214 

5,264,192 5,264,192 

7,954,041 7,953.265 

13,218,233 13,217,457 

13,218,233 13,217.457 

21,724.419 21,638,934 

52,186,276 51 ,560 772 

D-3 
§b.W.I!.§_ 

Variance 
Final to Actual 

$ 1,309.00 

1,309 

6,943 

1,040 

6,961 

1,146 

72 

6,592 

22,754 

982 

1,843 

1,225 

684 

1,909 

3,752 

6 ,382 

30,719 

37,101 

776 

776 

776 

85,485 

625,504 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES • BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

DISTRICT -WIDE 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Equipment: 

Regular Program -Instruction: 

Grades 9- 12 $ 8,750.00 $ (2,000.00) $ 

Total Equipment 8,750 (2,000) 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 8,750 (2,000) 

School-Based Expenditures 52,193,026 

Other Financing Sources: 

Operating Transfer In 51,771,074 

Total Other Financing Sources 51,771,074 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over/ 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (421,952) 

Fund Balance, July 1 421,952 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ $ $ 

Final Variance 
Budget Actual Flnal to Actual 

6.750.00 $ 6,750.00 $ 

6,750 6,750 

6,750 6,750 

52,193,026 51,567,522 625,504 

51 ,771,074 51,224,819 546,255 

51 ,771,074 51 ,224,81 9 546,255 

(421,952) (342,703) 79,249 

421,952 421,952 

s 79,249 $ 79,249 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

REGULAR PROGRAMS· INSTRUCTION 
Regular Programs -Instruction: 

Grades 9-12- Salaries of Teachers 
Regular Programs- Undistributed Instruction: 

Purchased Professional-Educational Services 
General Supplies 
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 

SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 
Resource Room/Resource Center. 

Salaries of Teachers 
General Supplies 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 

School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities -Instruction: 
Salaries 
Purchased Services (300-500 Series) 
Supplies and Male rials 

Total Schooi..Sponsored Cocun1cular Activities- Instruction 

Total Instruction 

Undistributed Expendftures- Attendance and Social Work: 
Salaries 
Supplies and Materials 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Attendance and Social Work 

Undistributed Expendilures- Health Services: 
SUpplies and Materials 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Health Services 

Undistributed Expenditures- Other Supp. Serv. - Guidance: 
Salaries of Olher Professional Staff 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Other Supp. Serv. - Guidance 

Undistributed Expenditures -Improvement of Instruction Services: 
Salaries of Sup~rvisor of Instruction 
Supplies and Materials 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Improvement of Instruction Services 

Undistributed Expenditures- Support Services- School Administration: 
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Supplies and Materials 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Support Services- School Administration 

UndlsL Expend.- Allowance for Maintenance of School Facllftles: 
Undistributed Expenditures- Securtty: 

Salaries 
General Supplies 
Total Undistributed Expenditures- Security 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Allowance for Maintenance of School FacUlties 

Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transportation Services; 
Contractual Services (Other than Between Home and School) - Vendor 

Total Undlstrtbuted Expenditures- Student Transportation Services 

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 
Health Benefits 

TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 

TOTAL PENSION SERVICES- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 
Equipment 
Regular Program -Instruction 

Grades 9- 12 
Total Equipment 
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 
School-Based Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operatlng Tr;ansfer In 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess (Deficiency} of Other Financing Sources Over/ 
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Sources 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 

s 

Original 
Budgot 

437,040 

123,100 
66,592 

626,732 

66,194 
2,423 

58,617 

58,617 

12,190 
8,000 
3,000 

23,190 

708,539 

86,613 
1,300 

87,913 

50,467 
50,467 

3,500 
3,960 
7 ,41;0 

160,1 17 
49,021 

1,500 
4,451 

215,089 

33,660 
300 

33,960 
33,960 

4,399 
4,399 

264,848 
264,848 

264,848 

664,136 
1,372,675 

8,750 
8,750 
8,750 

1,381 ,425 

1,257,134 

1,257,134 

(124,291) 

124,291 

Budget 
Transfe~ 

(9,777,00) 

12,977 
(199) 

3,001 

(570) 
(570) 

(570) 

(2,800) 

(2,eDO) 

(369) 

669 
669 

300 
300 

(3,500) 

(3,500) 

(3,000) 

(3,000) 

8,000 
8,000 

2,369 
2,000 

(2,000) 
(2,000) 
(2,000) 

$ 

Final 
Budget 

427,263 

136,077 
66,393 

629,733 

66,194 
1,853 

58,047 

58,047 

12,190 
5,200 
3,000 

20,390 

708,170 

86,613 
1,300 

87,913 

669 
669 

50,767 
50,767 

3,960 
3,960 

160,117 
46,021 

1,500 
4,451 

212,089 

33,660 
300 

33,960.00 
33,960 

12,399 
12,399 

264,848 
264,848 

264,848 

666,505 
1,374.675 

6,750 
6.750 
8,750 

1.ae1 ,•zs 

1,257,134 

1,257,134 

(124,291) 

124,291 

411,007 

121,440 
64,403 

596,850 

66,101 
1,818 

57,919 

57,919 

12,000 
5,171 
2,961 

20,132 

674,901 

86,613 
70 

86,683 

275 
275 

50,712 
50,712 

3,551 
3,551 

159,598 
45,830 

1,500 
4,392 

211 ,320 

33,250 

33,250.00 
33,250 

4,961 
4,961 

264,848 
264,848 

264,848 

655,600 

6,750 
6,750 
6,750 

1,337,251 

1,207,999 

1,207,999 

(1 29,252) 

124,291 

(4,961) 

Variance 
Final to Actual 

16,266 

14,637 
1,990 

32,883 

93 
35 

128 

128 

190 
29 
39 

258 

33,269 

1,230 
1,230 

294 
294 

55 
55 

409 
409 

519 
191 

59 
769 

410 
300 

710.00 
710 

7,438 
7,438 

10,905 
44,174 

44,174 

49,135 

49,135 

(4,961) 

(4,961) 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT ~ 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES • BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Original Budget Final Variance 
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual 

CLEVELAND STREET SCHOOL 

REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION 
Regular Programs - Instruction: 

Kindergarten -Salaries of Teachers 115,351 $ (5,000) 110,351 108,709 1,642 
Grades 1-5- Salaries of Teachers 1,041,462 (3,819) 1,037,643 1,037,447 196 
Grades 6-8- Salaries of Teachers 202,479 (8,593) 193,886 192,135 1,751 

Regular Programs -Undistributed Instruction: 
Other Salaries for Instruction 55,812 55,812 53,306 2,506 
Purchased Technical Services 500 68,618 69,118 500 68,618 
General Supplies 59,048 59,048 57,894 1,154 
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 1,474,652 51 ,206 1,525,858 1,449,991 75,867 

SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 
Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 71,449 71,449 71,311 138 
Other Salaries for Instruction 53,023 (1,000) 52,023 48,041 3,982 
General Supplies 844 844 564 280 
Textbooks 400 1,000 1,400 1,206 194 

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 125,716 125,716 121,122 4,594 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 
Salaries of Teachers 193,326 (3,764) 189,562 184,909 4,653 
Other Salaries for Instruction 61,956 3,764 65,720 65,720 
General Supplies 600 600 572 28 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 255,882 255,882 251,201 4,681 

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 381,598 381,598 372,323 9,275 

Bilingual Education -Instruction: 
Salaries of Teachers 82,998 (5,219) 77,779 77,259 520 
General Supplies 200 200 200 
Textbooks 200 200 200 

Total Bilingual Education - Instruction 83,398 (5,219) 78,179 77,659 520 

School-Sponsored Cocurrlcular Activities- Instruction: 
Salaries 6,650 6,650 550 6,100 
Purchased Services (300-500 Series) 5,001 420 5,421 5,401 20 

Total School-Sponsored Cocurrlcular Activities -Instruction 11,651 420 12,071 5,951 6,120 

Total Instruction 1,951,299 46,407 1,997,706 1,905,924 91,782 

Undistributed Expenditures -Attendance and Social Work: 
Salaries 56,322 56,322 55,930 392 
Supplies and Materials 150 150 135 15 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Attendance and Social Work 56,472 56,472 56,065 407 

Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services: 
Salaries 89,661 89,661 89,076 565 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 150 150 149 
Supplies and Materials 700 700 689 11 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Health Services 90,511 90,511 89,914 597 
UndlsL Expend. -Improvement of lnst. Serv.: 

Supplies and Materials 1,650 1,650 1,650 
Total Undlst. Expend. -Improvement of lnsL Serv. 1,650 1,650 1,650 

Undistributed Expenditures - Educational Media Services/School Library: 

Salaries 29,981 (21,000) 8,981 8,080 901 
Salaries ofT echnology Coordinators 86,613 (5,387) 81,226 81,225 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 150 150 132 18 
Supplies and Materials 11,273 11,273 11,233 40 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Educational Madia Services/School Ubrary 128,017 (26,387) 101,630 100,670 960 

Undistributed Expenditures - Instructional Staff Training Services: 
Supplies and Materials 1,400 1,400 1,101 299 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Instructional Staff Training Services 1,400 1,400 1,101 299 

Undistributed Expenditures - Support Services -School Administration: 
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals 129,765 129,765 129,118 647 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 54,203 54,203 53,355 648 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 550 550 550 
Supplies and Materials 5,000 5,000 4,938 62 

T.otal Undistributed Expenditures- Suppori Services -School Administration 189,518 189,518 187,961 1,557 

Undistributed Expenditures -Other Operations and Maintenance of Plant: 
Undistributed Expenditures -Security: 

Salaries 28,832 28,832 28,832 
General Supplies 250 250 250 

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Security 29,082.00 29,082 29,082 

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Other Operations and Maintenance of Plant 29,082 29,082 29,082 
Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transportation Services: 

Contractual Services (Other than Between Home and School) - Vendor 4,000 2,080 6,080 4,499 1,581 
Total Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transporiatlon Services 4,000 2,080 6,080 4,499 1,581 

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 
Health Benefits 860,425 (22,100) 838,325 838,277 48 

TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 860,425 (22,100) 838,325 838,277 48 

TOTAL PENSION SERVICES· EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 860,425 (22,100) 838,325 838,277 48 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 1,381,075 (46,407) 1,314,868 1,309,219 5,449 

TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 3,312,374 3,312,374 3,215,143 97,2;tl48 



CLEVELAND STREET SCHOOL 

School-Based Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfer In 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Excess (Deftclency) of Other Financing Sources Over/( Under) 
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 

CITY OF ORANqE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Original 
Budget 

$ 3,312,374 

3,311 ,975 

3,311 ,975 

(399) 

399 

$ 

Budget 
Transrers 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Final Variance 
Budget Actual Final to Actual 

3,312,374 $ 3,215,143 $ 97,231 

3,311,975 3,217,873 94,102 

3,311,975 3,217,873 94,102 

(399) 2,730 3,129 

399 399 

$ 3,129 $ 3,129 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

FOREST SCHOOL 

REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 
Regular Programs -Instruction: 

Kindergarten- Salaries of Teachers 

Grades 1-5- Salaries of Teachers 

Grades ~8 - Salaries of Teachers 

Regular Programs -Undistributed Instruction: 
Other Salaries for Instruction 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 
General Supplies 
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 

SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 
Resource Room/Resource Center. 

Salaries of Teachers 

General Supplies 
Total Resource Room/Resource Center 

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 

Bilingual Education -Instructions: 
Salaries CJfTeadlers 

General Supplies 

Total Bilingual Education -Instructions 

School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities -Instruction; 

Salaries 
Total School-sponsored Cocurricular Activitilill -Instruction 

Total Instruction 

Undistributed Expenditures -Health Services: 

Salaries 

Supplies and Materials 
Total Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 

Undl5tributed Expenditures- Other Supp. Serv. Students- Guidance 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 

Total Undistributed Expend. -Other Supp. Serv. Students -Guidance 

Undistributed Expenditures -Educational Media Services/School Library: 

Salaries 

Salaries of Technology Coordinators 

Supplies and Materials 

01her Objects 
Total Undistributed Expenditures- Educational Media Services/School Library 

Undistributed Expenditures- Support Services- School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 

Supplies and Materials 
Total Undistributed Expenditures ·Support Services- School Administration 

Undistributed Expenditures -Other Operations and Maintenance of Plant: 

Undistributed Expenditures -Security: 

Salaries 

General Supplies 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Security 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Other Operations and Maintenance of Plant 

Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transportation Services: 

Contractual Services (Other than Between Home and Schoo~- Vendor 

To.tal Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transportation Services 

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 

Health Benefits 
TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 

TOTAL PENSION SERVICES- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 

TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 

School-Based Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources: 

Operating Transfer In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources Over/( Under) 
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 

Original 
Budgd 

172,429 
806,076 
453,981 

79,994 

74,536 
1,587,016 

174,571 
2,458 

177,029 

177,029 

120,348 
3,000 

123,348 

7,910 
7,910 

1,895,303 

55,332 
1,500 

56,832 

60,963 
60,963 

62,863 
60,709 

2,145 
10,036 

135,753 

218,114 
2,600 

61,787 
4,300 

286,801 

35,962 
500 

36,462 

36,462 

8,045 

8,045 

865,288 

865,288 

865,288 

1,450,144 

3,345,447 

3,345,447 

3,345,310 

3,345,310 

(137) 

137 

s 

Budget 

Transfers 

48,900 

48,900 

48,900 

(4,800) 

(4,800) 

311 
(1,560) 
1,249 

500 
500 

(44,600) 
(44,600) 

(44,600) 

(48,900) 

Final 

~ 

172,429 
806,076 
453,981 

79,994 
48,900 
74,536 

1,635,916 

174,571 
2,458 

177,029 

177,029 

120,348 
3,000 

123,348 

7,910 
7,910 

1,944,203 

55,332 
1,500 

56,832 

60,963 
60,963 

62,863 
55,909 

2,145 
10,036 

130,953 

218,425 
1,040 

63,036 
4,300 

286,801 

35,962 
500 

36,462 

36,462 

8,545 

8,545 

820,688 
820,688 

820,688 

1,401,244 

3,345,447 

3,345,447 

3,345,310 

3,345,310 

(137) 

137 

169,758 
806,076 
453,978 

79,994 

72,529 

1,582,335 

172,524 
2,445 

174,969 

174,969 

118,206 
2,943 

121,149 

7,432 
7,432 

1,885,885 

55,332 
1,472 

56,804 

60,852 

60,852 

62,863 
55,863 

1,986 
9,844 

130,556 

217,830 

59,539 
3,371 

280,740 

35,892 
457 

36,349 

36,349 

8,031 
8,031 

819,960 
819,960 

819,960 

1,393,292 

3,279,177 

3,279,177 

3,279,046 

3,279,046 

(131) 

137 

D-3c 
Sheet#1 

Variance 

Final to Actual 

2,671 

48,900 
2,007 

53,581 

2,047 
13 

2,060 

2,060 

2,142 
57 

2,199 

478 
478 

58,318 

28 
28 

111 
111 

46 
159 
192 
397 

595 

1,040 
3,497 

929 
6,061 

70 
43 

113 

113 

514 
514 

728 
728 

728 

7,952 

86,270 

68,270 

86,264 

86,264 

6 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE Of BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201!1 

Original Budget Final Variance 

!!l!!!.w!.l Transfers BudgC~L Actual Fjnal to Actual 

HEYWOOD AVENUE SCHOOL 

REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUg:IIQti 
Regular Programs -Instruction: 

Kindergarten- Salaries of Teachers $ 194,706 (7,418) 187,288 187,288 
Grades 1-5- Salaries or Teachers 722,455 722,455 722,455 
Gntdn G-4- Salaritt. ofTneha1'1i 519,954 (22,071) 497,883 497,221 662 

Regular Programs- Undistributed Instruction: 
Other Salaries for ln5b'uc:tion 91,740 (1,065) 84,675 84,674 
Putd\1ued P1or~oniii..£dtJc:iltiotl~l StfV'Ices 15,000 (15,000) 
Pu.-eM~ Tcdvla! Servieu 73,635 73,6l5 15,000 58,635 
General Supp~es 25,321 25,321 23,709 1,612 
Textbooks 13,750 13,750 13,750 
Other Objects 1,380 1,380 1,380 
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 1,584,306 22,081 lfi06,:!!1 1.545.477 BO,SIO 

SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 
Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salarle$ ofTeachers 61,408 (469) 150,939 59,090 1,649 
Other Salaries for lnsbuction 1,500 469 1,!l69 1,950 19 
General Supp6es 3,000 3,000 2,926 74 

TolaiLeaming and/or Language Disabilities 65,908 6S,go8 63,966 1,942 

Multiple Disabilit;es: 
Salaries ofT eacheB 116,142 116,142 112,975 3,167 
Other Salaries ror lnslruction 92,100 92,100 90,354 1,746 
General Suppliea 3,980 3,980 3,741 239 

Total Multiple Disabilitles 212,222 212,222 207,070 5,152 

Resource Room/Resource Center. 
S~larin. al Tuc.he:n 167,280 (8,953) 178,327 178,327 
Other Salaries for Instruction 64,324 1,077 65,401 65,401 
General Supplies 5,000 5,000 4,860 140 

Tobl FWsou.rcG RoomiRv::ool.l t cc Center 256,604 (7,876) 246,728 248,588 140 

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 534,734 (1,876) 526,656 519,624 7.234 

Silingu.nl E;~uCilllgn - ln::o·lnactlon=: 

Salaries of TeacheR 84,745 (4,853) 79,8!12 78,107 1,785 

General Supplies 3,500 3,500 3,500 
T oWl BIUng1.1::t.1 Ed'uc:.:.Uon -tnsrn.u:tioruo 88,245 (0,853) 83,392 81,607 1,785 

School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities ·Instruction: 
Salaries 16,800 (4,882) 11.g18 11,917 

Total School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities ·lnstnJction 16,800 !4,88~ 11,918 11,917 

Total Instruction 2,224,085 4,470 2,228,555 2,158,625 69,gJo 

Undistributed Expenditures ·Attendance and Social Work: 
Salaries of Famly SUpport Teama 54,906 54,906 54,704 202 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Attendance and Soc iii I Work 54,906 54,906 54,704 202 

Undistributed Expenditures- He.atth Services: 
Salaries 86,613 86,613 88,613 
Suppfia and Materials 400 400 400 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Haalth S•rvlces 87,013 87,013 87,013 

Undistributed Expenditures· Edur;ational Media Services/School library: 

Salaries 52,805 52,805 52,603 202 
Salariea of Technology Coordinaton1 66,094 66,094 66,094 
Suppliea and Materiab: 61,798 61,798 61,563 235 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Educational Media ServlcesiSchool Library 180,697 180,697 180,260 437 

Undistributed Expenditures -Support Services - School Administration: 
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Directo~ 224,260 (2,514) 221,746 221,741 
Salaries of Seuetarial and Clerical Asststants 99,126 (3,456) 95,670 93,394 2,276 
SUppHes and Materials 4,200 4,200 4,147 53 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Support Services • School Administration 327,586 •(5,970! --321.616 319,2!2 2,334 

Undistributed Expenditures· Other Operations and Maintenance of Plant: 
Undistributed Expenditures - Security: 

Salaries 55,905 55,905 55,706 199 
GeneJal Sup pies 400 400 391 9 
Tolal Undistributed Expendituras- Security 56,305 56,305 56,097 208 

Total Undistributed Elcpenditures- Other Operations and Mainlenance of Plant 56,305 56,305 56,097 208 

Undistributed EJcpenditures- Student Transportation Servic.es: 
Contrac:t Services (other than Between Home and School) - Vendor 260 1,500 1,760 957 803 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transpor'bltion Services 260 1,500 1,760 957 803 

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 
Health Benefits 1,121,265 1,121,265 1,121,265 

TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 1,121,265 1,121,265 1,121,265 

TOTAL PENSION SERVICES- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,121,265 1,121,265 1,121,265 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 1,828,032 (4,470) 1,823,562 1,819,578 3,984 

TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 4,052,117 4,052,117 3,978,203 73,914 

Schooi-Ba5ed Expenditures 4,052,117 4,052,117 3,978,203 73,914 

Other Financing Sources: 
Operating Transfer In 4,035,988 4,035,988 3,965,212 70,776 

Total Other Financing Soun:es 4,035,988 4,035,938 3,965,212 70,716 

Excess (Oeftciency) of Other Financing Sources Overl 
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (16,129) (16,129) (12,991) 3,138 

Fund Balance, July 1 16,129 16,129 16,129 

Fund Balance, June 30 3,138 3,138 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT D-3e 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Original Budget Final Variance 
Budget Transfers I!!!!1!W Actual Final to Actual 

UNCOLN AVENUE SCHOOL 

REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 
Regular Programs - Instruction: 

Kindergarten - Salaries of Teachers $ 219 ,762 (1 ,465) 21 8,297 $ 2 18,297 
Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers 1,552,388 (1,868) 1,550,520 1,550,374 146 
Gmdes 6-8 - SmiMIII!$ ofTI!'aothRrs 365,408 (16,454) 348,954 348,940 14 

Regular Programs- Undistributed Instruction: 
Other Salaries for Instruction 101,893 101,893 101,893 
PUf'chased Professional-Educational Services 49,15-4 53 ,533 102,687 59,194 43,493 
PUlchased Technical Services 1,260 1,260 1,256 4 
Other Pt.wt:hased SeMces (400-500 Series) 14,896 (452) 14,444 3,575 10,869 
General Supplies 128,279 128,279 126,424 1,855 
Textbooks 34,549 34,549 30,776 3,773 
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 2,46Baa 33,294 ---z:5Co,Ml 2_440,7~9 60,154 

SPECIAL EOYCPJJDN · INSTRUCTION 
learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries of Tear;hers 323,797 (10 ,879) 312,918 312,915 
Other Salaries for lnslruc:tion 79,428 (5,390) 74,038 74 ,037 
General SuppliK 7,500 7,500 7,185 315 

Total learning and/or Language Disabilitiu 410,725 (15,2lill} 394,456 394,137 319 
Behavioral Disabilities: 

S11tiV1a or Tueh.ers 60,132 (3,938) 56 ,154 55 ,545 649 
Other Salaries for Instruction 27,936 590 28,526 27,343 1,183 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 2,500 2,500 2,461 39 
General Supplies 2,500 2,500 2,431 69 

Tot.i.ll Bah:rovioral Ola.q bUjde-s 93,068 (3,348) !9,720 &1,7MI 1,940 
Multiple Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 71,646 (7,138) 64,508 64 ,507 
other Salaries for lnslruction 117,742 117,742 116,632 1.110 
General Suppies 5,817 5,817 5,735 82 

Total Muttiplc Disabilities 195,205 (7,138) 1118067 186.1J7c 1,193 
Resource Room/Resource Center: 

S:t! r'.e~ofT~oh~ 245,780 245,780 244,704 1,076 
Olher Salaries for Instruction 41,717 41,717 41,717 
General Supplies 3,000 3,000 2,200 800 

Tob[ Resource Room.IRIL!:So(JJ'l;o Canllrr 290,497 ~.:4~7 OU!M2 1 1,876 
Preschool Disabilities- Full-Time: 

Olher Purchased Services (400-500 series) 2,500 2 ,500 2,500 
General SuppJ;n 7,500 7,500 7,345 155 

Total Preschool Disabilities- Full-Time 10,000 10,000 9,845 155 
TOTAl SPECIAl EDUCATION· INSTRUCTION 999,495 (26,755) sn,1.-o 967 ,257 5,483 

BJiinguol Ed~t~n .. ln-stnu::t!an5 : 
Salaries of Teachers 518,751 518,751 518,751 
Other Salarin for Instruction 32,214 32,214 32,214 
General SuppRes 6,500 6,500 6,317 183 

Total Bilingual Education -Instructions 557,465 557,465 557,282 183 
School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activjties - Instruction: 

Salaries 28,315 28,315 28,315 
~pies and Materials 20,000 450 20.450 10,251 1,199 

TobJ ScjlooJ.Spontored Co~c.ul..ar ;\ctivitlo:s -ln~.ttudiQrt 48,315 450 48,755 0,566 1,199 
Totallnstru~ion 4.072,864 6,989 4 07U!Jl 4.0 12.8:!4 67,019 

Undistributed Elcpend.- Attend. and Social Work: 
Supplies and Materials 1,500 1,.100 1,265 235 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Attendance and Social Worlc 1,500 1.500 1,:(1;5 235 
Undisbibuted Expenditures- Health Services: 

Salaries 88,799 !8,79!! 87,642 1,157 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 300 300 259 41 
SUpplies and Materials 3,900 (1,526) 2 ,374 2,287 87 

Total Undistributed Expenditures· Heatth Services 92,999 (1,526) 91,473 !10,188 1,285 
Undist. Expend. • Other Supp. Serv. Students- Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 55,762 55,762 55,125 637 
Supplies and Materials 2,000 2,000 2 ,000 

Total Undist. Expend.- Other Supp. Serv. Students- Guidance 57,762 57,762 57,125 637 
Undistributed Expenditures - Educational Modla Services/School Library: 

Salaries 54,039 54,039 54,038 
Salaries of Teehnology Coordinators 57,809 57,809 57,751 58 
Pur0ned ProlesaiaruJI and i eehnk-ol Scrkes 300 300 300 
Supplies and Materials 46,061 46,061 45,820 241 

Total Undistribuled Expenditures- Educ.atfonll Media Services/School library 158,209 158,209 157,609 600 
Undistributed Expenditures - Instructional SUff Training Services: 

Supplies and Materials 1,500 1,500 510 990 
Total UndistrlbU1ed Expenditures· lnst:n.Jctional Staff Training Services 1,500 1,500 510 990 
Undistributed Expenditures .. Support Services- School Administration: 

Salaries or Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors 321,718 (2,892) 318,826 318,755 71 
Salaries or Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 79,215 (2,571) 76,644 76,643 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 2,250 2,250 1,554 696 
Supplie-s and Malerials 12,815 12,815 12,516 299 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Support Services - School Administration 415,998 (5,463) 410,535 .WS,ol08 1,067 
Undist Expend. - Allowance for Maintenance of School Faciltties: 

General Supplies 1.200 1,200 1,159 41 
Total Undist. Expend. - Allowance for Maintenance of School Faciliti•s 1,200 1,200 1,159 41 
Undisl Expend. - Other Oper. and Maint. of Plant 

Salaries 142,004 142,004 141,612 392 
Total Undistributed Expenditures- Socurity 142,004 142,004 141,612 392 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Other Op.rations and Maintenance of Plant 143,204 143,204 142,771 433 
Undistributed Expenditures· Student Transportation Services: 

Contract Services (Other than Between Home and School)- Vendor 16,252 16,252 13,499 2,753 
Total Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transportal ion Services 16,252 16,252 13,499 2 ,753 
UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 

Health Benefrts 1,832,158 I.U2,153 1,832,158 
TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 1,832,158 1,832_158 1,832,158 
TOTAl PENSION SERVICES· EMPlOYEE BENEFITS 1,832,158 1,i!lin,15a 1,832,158 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 2,719,582 (6,989) 2,712,593 2,704 ,5:93 8,000 
TOTAl GENERAl CURRENT EXPENSE 6,792,446 6,792.446 6,717,427 75,019 

School-Based Expenditures 6,792,446 6,792,446 6,717,427 75,019 

Other Financing Sources: 

Operating Transfer In 6,743,254 6,743,254 6,684,539 58,715 

Total Other Financing Sources 6,743,254 6,743,254 6,684,539 58,715 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sourc•s Over/ 
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (49,192) (49,192) (32,888) 16,304 

Fund Balance, July 1 49,192 49,1 92 49 ,192 

Fund Balance, June 30 16,304 16,304 152 
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CfTY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE JO, 2018 

Original Budget Final Variance 

OAKWOOD AVENUE SCHOOL E!!!!!.9sJ Transfers .ll!!!W.! &!!!!! Final to Actual 

REGULAR PROGRAMS- INSTRUCTION 
Regular Programs -Instruction: 

Kindergarten- Salaries of Teachers 114,569 114,569 s 114,569 
Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers 491,431 491,431 491 ,431 
Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers 376,989 376,989 376,989 

Regular Programs- Undistributed Instruction: 
Other Salaries for lnslruction 52,498 (4,500) 47,998 47,998 

Purchased Professionai-EducaUonal Services 15,970 16,320 32,290 32,290 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 1,000 1,000 1.000 

General Supplies 30,515 (4,208) 26,307 25,165 1,142 

Textbooks 19,162 (2,669) 16,493 15,341 1,152 

OlherObjects 2,500 (2,500) 
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS- INSTRUCTION 1,104,634 2,443 1,107,077 1,103,783 3,294 

SPECIAL 'EDUCATION- INSTRUCTION 
LQarning and/or Language Disabilities: 

S:I!Otriu ofTe.iltb~ef!J 54,471 54,471 54,471 

General Supplies 1,000 80 1,080 734 346 

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 55,471 !0 55,551 55,205 346 

Multiple Disabilities: 
S:dllllitse~fTeln!.hllf"!ll 214,268 (4,958) 209,330 209,261 69 

Other Salaries for lnslruction 130,093 4 ,958 135,051 135,051 

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 1,000 1,000 243 757 

General Supplies 2,200 2200 1,270 930 

Total Mulliple Disabilities 347,561 347,581 345,625 1,756 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 

Salaries of Teachers 55,332 55,332 55,332 

General SuppUes 1,000 (1,000) 

Textbooks 1,000 (1,000) 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 57,332 (2,000) 55,332 55,332 

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 460,384 (1 ,920) 458,464 456,362 2,102 

Bilingual Education ·lnstruclion: 
Salaries of Teachers 88,326 58,328 88,328 

General Supplies 1,000 1,000 754 246 

Total Bilingual Education- Instruction 89,326 89,32ll 89.082 246 
School-Sponsored Cocurricular Actfvitles -Instruction: 

Salaries 11,655 11,655 11,655 

Purchased Services (300-500 Series) 6,000 (4,029) 1,971 1,971 

Supplies and Materials 13,950 13,950 11,944 2,006 

Other Objects 451 451 276 175 
Total School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities -Instruction 31,605 (3,578) 28,027 25,846 2.181 

B• fore/After School Programs -Instruction: 
Supplies and Materials 300 300 300 

Total Berore/After School Programs -lnslNctlon 300 300 300 

Totallnstruclion 1,558,251.00 (3,055) 1,683,198 1,675,073 8,123 

Undistributed Expenditures· Health Services: 

Salaries 86,213 86,213 84,860 1,353 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 500 500 500 

Supplies and Materials 1,000 1,000 856 144 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Heatth Sarvicas 67,713 87,713 85,716 1,997 

Undistributed Expenditures- Other Supp. Serv. Students - Guidance: 
Salaries of Olher Profess;onal StaH 96,189 96,189 96 ,1 89 

Supplies and Materials 1,000 1,000 988 12 
Total Undistributed Expenditures- Other Supp. Serv. Students- Guidance 97,189 9 7,189 97,177 12 
Undistributed Expenditures -Improvement of lnst. Serv.: 

Purchased Proressional- Educational Services 2,800 2,800 2,711 89 

Supplles and Materials 1,575 1,575 325 1250 
Total Undistributed Expenditures -Improvement of lnst. Serv. 4,375 4.375 3,00~ 1 339 
Undistributed Expenditures- Educational Media ServicesJS.::hool Library: 

Salaries 29,981 29,981 29,981 
Salaries of Technology Coordinators 100,934 100,934 100,934 

Supplies and Materials 10,121 (1,443) 8,878 8,607 71 

Total Undistributed Expenditures· Educational Media Services/School Ubrary 141,036 (1 ,443) 139,593 139,522 71 

Undistributed Expenditures -Instructional Staff Training Services: 
Supplies and Materiab: 2,000 2,000 1,980 20 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Jnslru.ctional Staff Training Services 2,000 2,000 1,980 20 
Undistributed Expenditures- Support Services- School Administration: 

Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/ Program Directors 123,784 123,784 123,784 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 44,340 4,500 48,840 48,840 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 800 600 728 72 
Supplies and Materials 2,600 2,600 2,108 492 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Support Services- School Administration 171,524 4,500 176,024 175,460 564 
Undistributed Expenditures- Other Operations and Maintenance of Plant: 

General Supplies 500 (500) 

Undistributed Expenditures- Security: 
Salaries 37,670 37,870 37,670 
General Supplies 566 498 1,064 732 332 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Security 38.236 498 38.734 38,402 332 
Total Undistributed Expenditures- Olher Operations and Maintenance of Plant 38,736.00 (2) 38,734 38,402 332 

Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transportation Services: 
Sal for Pupil Trans (Olher than Bet. Home & Sch) 22,000 22,000 20,260 1,740 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transportation Services 22,000 22,000 20,260 1,740 

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 

Health Beneffts 723,684 723,684 723,684 
TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 723,684 723,684 723,684 
TOTAL PENSION SERVICES- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 723,684 723,684 723,684 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 1,2BJ!.257 3,055 1,291 ,312 1,2115,237 6,075 
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 2,97<,508 2,974,508 2 ,000,3 10 14,198 

Schooi-Br;.Ged Ex.pondltures- l,074,508 2.974,508 2.!>6tl.l 10 14,198 
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OAKWOOD lll!ENUE SCHOOL 

Olt:ler Financ:ing Sources: 

Open~ting Transfer In 

Tot• I Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sourcas Overl(Under) 
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources 

Fund Bal•n~:e, Juty 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 

CllY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Original 
Budge I 

2,957,892 

2,957,892 

(18,818) 

16,616 

Budget 
Transfers 

Final 

.1!.1.!!!!1$.1 

s 2,957,892 

2,5157,892 

(16,616) 

18,818 

$ 2,970,526 

2,970,526 

10,218 

16,618 

26,832 

D-31 
§huW 

Variance 
Final to Actual 

s (12.6~) 

(12,834) 

28,632 

26,632 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES. BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Original Budget Final Var~nce 

Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual 

PARI{ AVENUE SCHOOL 

REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 

Regular Programs -Instruction: 
Kindergarten- Salaries of Teachers ,. 156,821 156,821 156,821 s 
Gr•c!Hl·S • ~JiJJ!IM;.of h.II'O:tuM1 1,074,448 1,074,446 1,074,446 
Gra~ 6·1- -Saltriel ol lc:HI'IMJ; 490,360 490,360 490,360 

Regular PrOiiJrams- Undistributed lnstrucUon: 
Other Salaries ror Instruction 42,518 42,518 42,518 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Seri~) 4,800 1,2-44 6,044 4,800 1,244 
General Supplies 33,412 6,680 40,092 38,220 1;872 
TeKtbooke 42,200 (17,850) 24,350 24,100 250 
Other Objects 27,975 11,460 39,435 39,335 100 
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 1,&n,sn 1,534 1,67•(066 1,810..000 3,466 

Learning and/or Language Diaabililles: 

Salaries or TeacheJS 56,906 56,906 56,906 
other Sala~ for Instruction 20,095 1,440 21,535 21,115 420 
Other Purchmed Servicn (400-500 Series) 1,000 1,000 ... 1 
General Supplies 1,601 1,601 1 546 55 

Total Learning .andlor Language Disabilitia 79,602 1,440 81,042 !0~560 476 

Mulliple Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 58,194 58,19-1 58,194 
Other Salaries for lnatluction 20,311 20,311 20,311 
Other Purdlased Services (400-500 seriet) 2,000 2,000 1,748 254 
General Supplin 1,555 1,555 1,555 
Textbook& 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Other Objects 385 385 365 

Tml Mulllplf!! Dlnhllltin 83,425 83425 82,171 1,2&4 
Resource RoomJResource Center: 

Sallrin ofT eachers 171,643 (719) 170,924 170,920 ~ 
Other Salariet for Instruction 700 (345) 355 75 UIJ 
Purchased ProfMonai-Educational Serviees 1,000 1,000 991 
Gen.,IIISupplies 300 300 300 
otherObjeeb 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total Resource RoomJRasource Center 174,843 (1,064) 173,579 17J 280 293 
AuUsm: 

Slllmln.ot 'rcat:i'ttllo 263,663 (10,416) 253,247 253,247 
OlherS&Iarielforlnlltruction 182,784 9,216 192,010 191,730 260 
Other Purc:hesed Se,...;ce. (-100-500 Series) 2,000 2,000 2,000 
General Suppies 3,280 3,280 3,126 154 
Texlbooka 1,500 1,500 748 752 
OlherObje<t~ 

Total Autism 453,237 (1,200) 452,037 450.151 1,186 
Preschool DINbilities -Full-Time: 

s.ltfinofTeld'lerw 

Other Salarln for lrl$bUction 

GenonlSu- 1,750 270 2,020 2,020 
OtherObjeca 1,068 1,0611 1,068 

Total Preschool Disabllittu- Full-Time 2,816 270 3066 3,068 
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 793 723 1554) 7~J60 789,960 3,209 

8lllngUl*t fdUnUcm. llutruDlan~ 

Si!!laries ofTeachera 83,859 83,659 83,859 
Genl!fal Suwtn 1,000 1,000 1 000 

Totlll811lngual ·!d.uatlDn- tn~truedon 1!4_859 !d,85g 114859 
School-Sponsored Coeurricular Activities -Instruction: 

SaJaries 10,520 10,520 10,509 11 
Purdlaud SltfYices (300-500 Serias) 325 325 J2$ 
Suppie. and Mattrials 8,000 8,000 7,100 900 

Total School-Sponsored Cocurrtculi!lr Activities -lnsb"uction 1e.e•s 18,845 17934 911 
Total Instruction 2,71Ht,959 980 2,n0,939 ~763.35! 7,586 

Undbitdbutod .E&pM~IIr.mu • Al::landanr;o :al'ld SociAl Wofll;: 
Salariel ot Family Support Teams 54,906 54,906 54,906 
Supplin and Materiala 908 72 980 862 118 

Total Undistributed Expenditures -Attendance and Social Work 55,814 72 <5,81!6 55,768 118 
Undistribut~ Expenditures- Health Servkes: 

Salaries 92,a-45 (1,55l) 91,392 91,391 

Purchased Proressional and Technical SeMcee 
Suppift and Materials 1,000 1,000 !KIO 
Othl!f Object~ 185 165 165 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services 94,110 (1,553} 92,557 92,55.4 
Undistrlbut.ct E11penditures- other Supp. Serv. Students- Guidance.: 

Other PurthltSed Professional and Technleal Services 200 200 200 
Other Purd'lased SefVices (400-500 aeries) 300 300 300 
Supplies and Materials 300 (300) 

Total UndlaiJibuted E11pend.- Olher Supp. Serv. Students- Guidance 500 500 300 200 
UOO!strlbuted Expenditures -lmprov~tmont of lnsl Services.: 

Salaries ol Supef\'isor ollnslrudion 700 700 700 
Suppfin and Ml\eriala 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Totillll Undistributed Expenditures -Improvement of lnsl Services 1,700 1,700 1,700 
Undistributed Expenditures- Edu. Media ServJSchool Library: 

Salaries 87,170 67,170 67,170 
Salaries of Technology Coordinators 102,368 102,368 102,368 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 

Supplies and Materials 8,613 6,613 8,043 570 
Other Objecbc 5,730 5,730 5,370 380 

Total Undistributed Expend'*ures- Edu. Med~ ServJSchool Library 181,881 181,8J)1 lSO,'~S1 930 
Undbtributed Expenditures- Support S•rvk:.es- School AdministraUon: 

Salaria of Princi~~tanl Principak~Program Directon~ 239,288 239,266 238,760 526 
Salaries of Seaelarial and Clerical Assistant. 108,408 108,406 108,406 
Other Purchased SeiVices (400-500 Series) 3,000 3,000 3,000 
SuppfiH and Materials 425 425 425 
OtherObjeeta 1,203 1,203 1,203 

Tot.lil Undistributed Expenditures -Support Services- School Administration 352,320 352,320 351.794 526 
Undisl Ex~nd. -Allowance for Maintenance of School Facilities 

General Supplies 300 300 269 31 
Undistributed Expenditures- Security.: 
Salar)e, 59,641 59,641 59,641 
Total Undistributed ExpendHures. Seeurfty 59,641 59,641 59,641 

Total Undistributed EJ~penditures- Other Oper. and Malnl of Plant 59,9-41 59,941 59,910 31 
Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transporl.allon Services: 

Contract Services (other than Between Home end School)- Vendor 8,386 500 ·- 8,067 819 
Tot;;..l Undi1t. I:Xpa-nd. -st ... dvnl Tr.llnlpor~~lon S~. 8,386 500 ·- 8,067 819 
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PARK JWENUE SCHOOL 

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 
Hoollh BentfiO> 

TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 

TOTAL PENSION SERVICES- EMPLOYEE BENEFrTS 

TOTAL UNDISTRJBUTED EXPENDITURES 

TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 

Sctlooi-BaMd E,~~:penditure& 

Other Financing Sourc.s: 
Operating Tranah!r In 

Total OU'ler Flnenctng Sourcas 

fxc:a.s (o.ftclency) af Other Financing Sources o-.er! 
(Under) Expenditures and Other Flnan~ing Sourc. 

Fund Balence, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED R~SOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED El<PENDrTURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FlSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2<118 

Original 

~ 

.s ,,229,770 
1220,770 

1.m.no 

1,1i!4 • .C22 

4 754 381 

4,1S<.3ll-1 

4,745,060 

4,745,080 

(0,301) 

0301 

Budget 
Tr•nafers 

(980) 

s 

Flnal 

D.Wltl 

1,DGTI 1 • 
1mn 1 

1,228 771 

1,1iM53,442 

4 754,381 

4,754,381 

4,745,01il 

4?45,080 

(9,301) 

9,301 

Actual 

1,22V,771 
1,22a,n1 

1,228771 

11a.a£1,815 

4,744,168 

4 7-i.C 1M 

4,735405 

4,735~~05 

(8,783) 

9,301 

538 

Variance 
fifl~ltnkhul 

2827 

10213 

10213 

9075 

0075 

538 

538 
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ORANGE PREp ACADEMY 

REGULAR PROGRAMS • INSm UCTION 
Regular Programs -Instruction: . 

Grades 6-8- Salaries of Teachers 
Grades 9-12 - Salaries or Teachers 

Regular Programs- Undistributed Instruction: 
Pw chased Professionai-Educalional Services 

Pll'chased T ec:tvlical SeMcH 
other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 

General Supplies 
Textbooks 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 

SPECIAL EPYCAJION - INSTRUCTION 
Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 
Other Sa Iarin for Instruction 

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 
Behavioral Disabilities: 

Purchased Professional-Educational Services 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Seriet;) 

General Supplies 
Textbooks 

Total Behavioral Disabilities 

Multiple Disabilities 
Salaries of Teachers 

Other Salaries for Instruction 
P~~Teank~S~pm 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 
General Supp~ttS 

Textbooks 
Total Multiple Disabilities 

Rasource Room/Resource Center: 
Salaries of Teachers 

Other Salaries for Instruction 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 

Purchased T ec:hnieal Services 
Other PurcheHd Service'!~ (400-500 Series) 

General Supplies 
Textbooks 

Total Resoun::e Room/Resource Center 

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 
S:illnouDJ Educ:.,llon .. l_nstnJa:tkx'l':. 

Salaries of Teacher& 

Other Salatiet for Instruction 
Purchased Technical Services 

Other Purchaaed Services (400-500 Seriee) 
General Suppties 
Textbooks 

total J3.UlngUal Eduea.Uon ·11\GinJC:Oon 

School-Sponsored Coc:urricular Ac:tivilies. -Instruction: 
Salaries 

SUpplies and Maleriala 
Total School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities. -Instruction 

Total Before/After School Programs ·Instruction: 
Total Instruction 

Undistributed Expenditures -Attendance and Social Work: 

Salaries of Family Support Teams 

Suppliee .and Materials 
Total Undistributed Expenditures -Attendance and Social Work 
Undistributed Expenditures- Health Services: 

Salaries 

Suppli es and Materiab 
Total Undistributed Expenditures· Health Services 

Undistributed EJCpenditures- Other Supp. Services Students- Guidance: 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 

Supplies and Materials 

T'OUIII U'ndlttt ibul~d E;x~nditute:l ,. Other S1,1pp. Sorvl~ Studont.s • l!hiidance 
Und1stri butod Expef}drturu- bnpro\lcmcnl of ln.$lruc;tion Services: 

Salaries of Supervisor of Instruction 

Suppties and Materials 
Tololl Undistributed Elcpenditures -Improvement of Instruction Services 

Undistributed Elcpenditures- Educational Media Services/School Library: 

Salaries 
Salaries of Technology Coordinators 

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 

Supplies and Materials 
Total Undistributed Expenditures- Educational Media Services/School Library 

Undistributed Expenditures- Support Services- School Administnstion: 
Salaries of Principa1s./~nt Principals 

Sallllies of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 

SUpplies and Materials 
Total Undistributed EJCpenditures- Support Services- School Administration 

Undist. Expend. · Allowance for Maintenance of School Facilities 
General Supplies 

Total Undisl Expend.- Allowance for Maintenance of School Facilities 
Undistributed Expenditures- Other Opelilltions and Maintenance of Plant: 

Salaries 
Total Undis tributed Expenditures- Security 

Total Undistributed Expenditures· Other Operations and Maintenance of Plant 
Undistributed EJCpenditures- Student Transportation Services: 

Contract Serviees (Other than Between Home and School)- Vendor 
Total Undistributed Elcpenditures- Student Transportation Services 
UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 

Health Benefits 
TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 
TOTAL PENSION SERVICES- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 

TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF bLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Original 
Budg~t 

2,194,642 
437,599 

10,000 

176,979 
120 

130,730 
14,200 

2,964,270 

60 ,709 
21 ,118 
81 ,827 

1,000 
2,000 
8,000 

3,000 
14,000 

59,963 

31,443 
5,000 

2,000 
9,000 
3,000 

110.406 

750 ,594 
74 ,664 
4,000 

3,000 
8,000 

12,000 
5,000 

! 57 258 
U JI4,491 

220,092 
32,055 

1,000 
2,500 
3,500 

2,000 
261,147 

44,348 
800 

45,146 

66,832 
800 

67,432 

95,733 
1,200 

96,933 

146,652 
1,000 

147,652 

1,750 

758 
2 ,508 

72 ,525 
62 ,863 

6,221 
10,482 

152,091 

344 ,030 

178,655 
7,900 

530,585 

2;300 
2300 

180,79.9 
180,7 99 
1113.099 

8,640 

8,640 

3,035,926 
7,369,980 

s 

Budget 
Transfers 

(2,821) 
(3,150) 

26,549 

(120) 
(17,011 ) 

(2,3491 
1,098 

120 

120 

(8 ,352) 
8,352 

(1,474) 

(1,188) 

(2,662) 
(2,5421 

(2,336) 
(2,0001 
(4,3361 

(5J80) 

1,800 
1,800 

(1,720) 
(300) 

(2,020) 

6,000 
6,000 

5,780 

Final 
Budg!!t 

2,191,821 
434,449 

36 ,549 
178,979 

113,719 
11,851 

2,965,361 

60,709 
21 ,118 

81,827 

1,000 
2,000 

8,000 
3,000 

14,000 

59,963 
31,443 

5,000 
2,120 
9,000 

3,000 
110,526 

742,242 
83,016 
2 ,526 
3,000 
8,000 

10,812 
5,000 

854 ,5!16 
1,060,949 

220,092 

32,055 
1,000 
2,500 
1,164 

256,811 

44,348 
800 

45,146 

4,32!1 ,274 

66,632 
800 

67,432 

95,733 
1,200 

96,933 

146,652 

1,000 
147,652 

1,750 
758 

2,508 

72 ,525 
62,863 

6,221 
12,282 

153,891 

344 ,030 

176,935 
7,600 

528,565 

2,300 

2,300 

110,799 
180,799 
1&3,099 

14,640 
14,640 

1 ,Mti;~B6 

U 46.086 
1.&46,9!6 

3,041 ,700 
7 ,31i9.9t0 

s 2,191,128 
434,441 

15,320 
178,979 

105,464 

11,024 
2,9l<,l56 

60,709 

21,118 

81 ,827 

259 
2,000 

7,964 
2,059 

12,282 

59,963 
31,443 

5,000 
1,967 
7,911 
2,440 

108,724 

742,242 
83,016 

2,526 
3,000 
7,996 

10,183 
4,965 

853,928 
1,056,761 

220,092 
31 ,587 

2,499 

1,164 

255,342 

44 ,346 
800 

45,146 

4,291,605 

66,632 
800 

67,432 

95,725 
1,082 

96,807 

146,-490 

972 
1:47 ,462 

1,750 

722 
2,472 

72 ,504 
62,863 

5,531 
9,836 

150,734 

342,464 

176,935 
7,541 

526,940 

1,668 

1,668 

180,645 

180,645 
182,313 

7,679 

7,679 

1,846,986 
1 &.46836 
1,846,986 

3,028,825 
7,320,430 

D-3h 
Sheet #1 

Variance 
Final to AchJal 

s 693 

21,229 

8,255 
827 

31,012 

741 

36 
941 

1,718 

153 
1,089 

560 
1,802 

629 
35 ___ 66_8_ 

4,188 

468 
1,000 

I 

36 
---36-

21 

690 
2,446 
3,157 

1,566 

632 
632 

154 
154 ___ 7_86_ 



ORANGE PREP ACADEMY 

Schooi·Basad Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources: 
Operating Trensfer In 

Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Dencloncy) of Other Financing Sources Overl 
(Under) Expenditures and other Flnam:iog sources 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDrTURES ·BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3<1, 2018 

Original 
Budget 

7 ,369,880 

7,180,309 

7,180,309 

[180,671) 

189,671 

$ 

Budget 
Transfers 

Final 

b!W Actual 

7,360,980 7,320,430 

7, 180.J(I9 7 ,142,676 

7. 140,309 7.142.67& 

[109,871) [177,7 .. ) 

189,671 189,871 

11,917 

0-Jh 
Sheet#2 

Varlance 
final tq A!:! tu::J. I 

$ 49,550 

37,633 
37,633 

11,917 

~ 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 
SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Original Budget Flnal Variance 

~ ~ !!lt!I!W ~ Final to Actual 

ORANGE HIGH SCHOOL 

RE61.:1LAR PROGRAMS -INSTBUCTION 

RL"Qular Progrlilms -ln11t1UI:lJCH1 ~ 

Grades 9-12- Salari~ ofTeache~ 3,922,472 (892) s 3,921 ,580 s 3,921,413 167 
Regular P1ograms- Undistributed lnstsuction: 

Other Salaries fc;Jr Instruction 144 144 144 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 15,000 45,361 60,361 25,410 34,951 
P\l.r~lt"Chnicai Stlnli~ 12,800 (870) 11,930 11,930 
General Supplies 148,567 (22,027) 126,540 104,216 22,324 
Textbooks 28,075 (4,500) ?3.575 2J;IS75 
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 4,127,058 170T.l 4 , 1 44~130 4,0Bb,54-l 57,585 

SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 
learning and/or language Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 59,888 (1,063) 58,825 58,729 96 
other Sataries for Instruction 53,2~1 800 54 ,()41 54,()41 
Other Purdla$ed Services (~00-500 Seri~) 4,000 4,000 2,997 1.003 
General SuppUes 9,000 (1,486) 7,514 6,516 998 
Textbooks 9,000 (4,000) 5,000 4,517 483 
Other Objects 500 500 500 

Total Learning and/or L:.nguage Disabilities 135,629 (5,749! 129"B!O 126.100 3,080 
Resource RoomiRosoun:e Center: 

Sahui" of T e.achea: 681,845 (1,200) 680,645 680,540 105 
other Salaries for lnslruction 75.026 (3,000) 72.026 n ,026 
P~Jrchased Ptolt"Hior'UII·EdUC3tioruJI Seriices 2,250 2,250 1,000 1,250 
General Supplies , .. ~,. (6,000! 8.418 7,166 1,252 

ToLal Resource Room/Resource Center 773,539 (10,200! 763,339 760,732 2,608 
AuUam: 

Salaries of Teac;hers 126,075 (22,324) 103,751 103,674 77 
Olher Salaries for Instruction 70,958 13,464 84,422 84,422 
General Supplies 7,200 (1,334) 5,866 4,600 1,266 

Total Autism 2()4,233 1'0,194! 194,039 192,696 1,343 
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 1113.40, 126,143! 1,087,258 1,080,228 7,031 

Bilingual EducatJon - Instruction: 
Salaries of Teadlere 376,285 376,285 376,285 
other Purch01sed Services (400-500 Series) 4,000 4,000 3,975 25 
General Supplies 13,789 (6,000) 7,789 5,493 2,296 
Textbocka 4,000 1'.000! 3,000 3,000 

Total Bilingual Education -lnatruction 398,07~ 17,000! 391.074 388,753 ---2-,321 

Schooi-Sponaorcd Cocurrlcular Activlttas -Instruction: 
Salaries 54,263 54,263 54,263 
Purchased Service (300-500 Sertes) 6,750 6,750 6,737 13 
SUpplies and Materials 8,000 8,000 7,049 951 

Total Schoo1..Sponaored Cocurrtcular Act.ivltin .Jn•truc:Uon 69,013 69,013 68,()49 964 
BeforaiAfter School Programs -Instruction: 

Purchased Services (400-500 Serin) 7,000 7,000 6,966 34 
Supplies and Materialt 750 750 750 

Totsl Before/After School Programs-lnatruction: 7,000 750 7,750 7,716 34 
Total Instruction '5 714,648 115,321! s16gg.'22S 5,631,290 67,935 

Undiatributed Expendlturu -Attendance and Social Work: 
Salaries 181.~35 (1,807) 179,628 179,628 
SUppfies and Materials 1.000 1,000 1,000 

Tolill Undislrlbutod EJcpond1Ntot.- AUond.anet! a.nd Soc.ial Waik 182,435 !1,807! 180,628 179,628 1,000 

Und~trll;lutod Ex~ltwc.•- HO-illlh Services: 
Salaries 97,052 97,052 97,052 
Supplies and Materials 2,500 (711! 1,789 1,386 403 

Total Undl•trlbuted Expenditures. Health Services 99,552 1711! !lll,841 51!8,4:36 403 
Undi&trlbuted Expenditures- Other Supp. Services Students- Guidance: 

Salaries of Other Professional staff 237,598 237,598 237,598 
Purc:hD.ad Pto!I!Ulonal.:~~nd E:chxatlon~ SQMOQ 6,000 6,000 6,000 
SUpplies and Materia" 11,882 227 12,109 11,975 134 

Total Undistributed E~~:penditures- Oth&r Supp. Ssrvices Students - Guidance 255,480 227 255,707 255,573 134 
Undlst Expend, -Improvement of In at Serv.: 

Salaries of Supervisor of Instruction 19,()40 (3,160) 15,880 15,859 21 
Suppll:e1·arw:t Mat:r:rl3~ 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total Undi8l Expend. -Improvement ot ln•t Serv. 20,040 13,160! 16- 1G.lli 21 
Undistributed Expenditures- Educational Mcdlu Services/School Library: 

Salaries 56,052 56,052 55,158 894 
Salaries of Technology Coordinators 62,232 62,232 62,232 
Supplies and Materials 17,308 (1,723) 15,585 14,766 819 
Other Objects 5,700 (5,700! 

Total Undistributed EJ~:penditures- Educational Media Serv/cesJSc:hoollibrary 141,292 !7.423! 133,869 132,156 1,713 
Undiatributed Expenditure•- Support Servfce&- School Administration : 

Salaries of Principala/Assistanl Principals/ Program Directors 433,308 (4,941) 428,367 428,367 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 133,507 2,994 136,501 136,501 
Pl.l~ Prore:ulon.,l.;~l'll'.l Tectmlcal &eorvices 3,000 (1,700) 1,300 1,300 
Supplies and Materials 13,052 1,163 14,215 12,264 1,951 
other Objects 100 (100) 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Support Services- School Admlnisttatfon 582,967 12,584! 580.3-aJ 57i3,.03l 1,951 
Undist Expend.- Allowance for Maintenance of School Facilities 

General Supplies 4,000 (1,452! 2,548 2,270 278 
Total Undisl Expend. - Allowance for Maintenance ot School Facilities 4,000 p,452! 2,548 2,270 278 

Undiatributed Expenditures- Security: 
Salari~ 306,840 30!1,8-<D 306,840 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Security 306,840 JOG.a..a 306,840 
Total Undistributed E~~:pendltures- Other Operations and Maintenanu or Plant 310,840 11,452) 309 .... 309,110 278 
Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transportation Services: 

Contract Services (other than Between Home and Sdlool)- Vendor 14,941 32,231 ~7.172 37,322 9,850 
Total Undlatributltd E~~:pcnditures- Studsnt Transportation Services 14,941 32,231 47,172 37,322 9,850 
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Qfi:AI.J~E HIGH SCHOOL 
UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 

Health Benefits 
TOTAL. UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 
TOTAL PENSION SERVICES· EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 

School-8811ed Expendlturas 

Other Financing Sourcee: 
Oper•Ung Tranefer In 

Tot:ll 9t:hof Financing Sour~ 

EJceeu (Oeftcklnc:y) of Other Financing Sources Ovet'/{Undlltf) 
Expendlb.lr .. and othef Financing Sources (U._) 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES. BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Origlrnlll 

lli!!!<!ru 

s 2.-5<10,129 
2.580,129 
1,58.D12i 

4.187.STG 
9,902,222 

O.!l02.:n2 

9,89S.6J5 
9,e!l6,5l5 

(5,587) 

5,587 

Budget 

'l!anlll!.!! 

15,321 

Final 
Budqnl ~ 

$ 2.Sill.1:m $ 2~6.8b.t29 

2.580,129 2,580,129 
1,580,129 UBO.I29 

~.202,997 4,187,647 
9,902,222 9.11!.537 

9,902,222 9,818,937 

9,896,635 9,835,153 
9,896,635 gi 83.51Sl 

(5,587) 16,216 

5,587 5,567 

21,603 

0-31 
~ 

Vsriance 
Fin11l to .l\.(.\45!1 

$' 

15,350 
83,285 

83,285 

61,482 
61,482 

21,603 

21,803 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDULE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES ·BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Original Budget Final Variance 

~ Transfers ~ Actual Final to Act!::!!! I 
ROSA PARKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

REGULAR· PROGRAMS ·INSTBUCIJO~ 
Regular Programs -Instruction: 

Kindergarten- Salaries of Teachers $ 383,261 $ 383,261 382,451 810 
Grades 1-5- Salaries of Teachers 2,007,574 2,007,574 2,004,410 3,164 
Grades 6-8- Salaries of Teachers 1,058,828 1,058,828 1,058,544 284 

Regular Programs- Undistributed lnstNction: 
other Salaries for Instruction 114,771 (4,000) 110,771 110,494 277 
Purchased Professional-Educational Servic::es 3,000 (3.000) 
Olher Purchased Services (400-500 Series) 2,000 2,000 1,447 S53 
General Supplies 182,314 182,314 180,82S 1,489 
other Objects 20,000 20,000 3,032 16.958 
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS -INSTRUCTION 3,771,748 !7.000) 3 784 748 3.741,203 23 5•5 

SPECIAL EDUCATION -INSTRUCTION 
Learning and/or Language Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teac::hers 56.624 (39S) 56,229 55,91S 314 
Other Salaries for Instruction 31,44S 39S 31,840 31 ,840 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 1,000 1,000 370 630 
Other Purchased Servic::es (-40Q-500 series) 1,200 1,200 1,160 40 
General Supplies S,OOO s.ooo s,ooo 
Textbooks 1,SOO 1,SOO 1,SOO 
other Objects 4,000 4 000 3.697 303 

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 100,769 100,769 97.982 2787 
Resource Room/Resource Center. 

Sd.l.lrfe-s ofTeachars 389,297 (18,481) 370,816 370,811 5 
Olher Salaries ror Instruction 61.055 18,481 79,S36 79,S36 
Purchased Professional-Educational Servic::es 50,500 50.500 S0,500 
other Purchased Services (-40Q-500 series) 3,000 3,000 2,965 35 
General Supplies 10,000 10,000 10,000 
Textbooks 2,500 (2,SOO) 
other Objects 5,000 5.000 5;000 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 470,852 ~8.000 516.852 468.312 50,540 
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION ·INSTRUCTION 571,621 ~8.000 81S.621 568254 53.327 

Bilingual Education ·Instruction: 
Salaries of Teachers 515,327 (1,347) S13,980 S08,S71 S,409 
other Salaries for lnslruction 59,426 1,347 60,773 55,654 S,119 
Ptucnased Profe:~sionaJ~Edut.afronal 5ervic:e-s 1,200 1.200 122 1,078 
Purchased Technical Services sao 500 500 
other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 4,200 (4,200) 
General Supplies 12,100 12,100 11,893 207 
Textbooks 8,000 (8,000) 
Olher Objects 7,728 7,728 7 ,128 -Total Blllngual Education -Instruction 608,481 (12,200) S96,281 583.968 12,31J 

School-Sponsored Cocunicular A~lvltles -Instruction: 
Salaries 11,S90 100 11,690 3,885 7,805 
Purchased Services (30~500 Series) 14,246 (11,600) 2,646 1,058 1,S88 
Supplies and Materials 6,250 6,250 S,441 809 

Total School-sponsored Cocurricular Activities ·Instruction 32086 (11,500) 20,586 10,384 10,202 
SchooJ..Spansored Athletics ·Instruction: 

Supplies and Materials 500 500 500 
Total School-sponsored Athletics ·Instruction sao sao soo 
BeforeJAfter School Programs-Instruction: 

Supplies and Materials 20,000 20,000 19 999 1 
Total Before/After School Programs· Instruction: 20,000 20,000 19,999 1 

Total Instruction S,004,436 17,300 5,021,736 4.922,348 993l!B 
Undistributed Expenditures- Attendance and Social Work: 

Supplies and Male rials 1,541 1,541 1,541 
Total Undistributed Expenditures .. Attendance and Social Watk 1541 1.541 1,541 
Undistributed Expenditures. Health Services: 

Salaries 124,648 (6,100) 118.548 118,529 19 
Purtll.as:«!:d Profo.ssiDnal ,and Technical Services 400 400 400 
Supplies and Materials 2,910 2,910 2.905 s 

Total Undistributed Expenditures· Health Services 127,958 (6,100) 121,858 121 434 424 
Undistributed Expenditures- Other Support Services Students· Guidance: 

Salaries of other Professional Staff 141,822 141,822 141,822 
To~;~l Undistributed ExpendHu re·s - otha:r Support-Servic-es Stud.eots .. Guidance 141,822 141,822 141,822 
UndjSfJibut~d Expaj1ditUTO;S. EducaJJon;al Media servicesJSchooJ Library: 

Salaries 86,613 (4,900) 81,713 81,678 35 
Salaries of Technology Coordinators 193,1 16 193,116 193,116 
Supplies and Materials 18,199 18,199 18,199 
other Objects 10,000 10,000 10.000 

Total Undistributed Expenditures .. Educational Media Services/School Library 307,928 (4,900) 303,028 302 992 35 
Undistributed Expendltures -Support Services .. School Administration: 

Salaries of Pr1ncipals/Assistant Principals/Program Directors 447,047 (14,000) 433,047 430,033 3,014 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 135,537 (5,000) 130.S37 130,389 148 
Purchased Professional and Technlcal Services 450 450 450 
Supplies and Materials 11,530 11,530 8 842 2.688 

Total Undistributed Expenditures- Support Services .. School Administration 594.564 (19,000) S75,564 569.264 6,3ll0 
Undist. Expend.- Allowance for Maintenance of School Facllltlas: 

Salaries of Noninstructional Aides 6,000 6,000 5,139 861 
General Supplies 600 600 600 

Undistributed Expenditures -Other Operations and Maintenance of Plant: 6,600 6,600 5 739 861 
Undistributed Expenditures .. Security: 
Salaries 149,017 149,017 149,017 
Toral Undistributed Expenditures .. Security 149,017 149,017 149,017 

Total Undistributed Expenditures· Olher Operations and Maintenance of Plant 155,617 155,617 154,756 861 
Undistributed Expenditures- Student Transportation Services: 

Sal for Pupil Trans (other than Bel. Home & Sch) 11,881 14.700 26,581 2 1 !!39 4 642 
Total Undistributed Expenditures -Student Transportation Services 11,881 14,700 26.581 21,939 41642 
UNALLOCATED BENEFITS: 

Heallh Benefits 1,962,379 (2,000) 1 9&0 379 1.9&0.379 
TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 1,962,379 (2,000) 1,960,379 1.960.379 
TOTAL PENSION SERVICES. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,962,379 (2,000) 1,960,379 1.960,379 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 3,303,690 (17,300) 3,286,390 3.274,125 12,262 
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 8,308,126 8,308,126 8 ,196,H6 111650 
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ROSA PARKS ElEMENTARY SCHOOL 

School-Based Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfer In 

Total Other Financing Sources (Use&) 

Excess(Deficlency) of Other Financing Sources OverJ 
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Sources IUHs). 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BLENDED RESOURCE FUND 15 

SCHEDUlE OF BLENDED EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Or1glnal 
BudM:I. 

S8,30B.126 

8 ,29"/ ,497 

8,291.'197 

(10,629) 

10629 

Budget 
Transfers 

$ s 8.308.126 

8,297,497 

8,297,497 

(10,829) 

10629 

Actua 

8.196,476 

8,166,390 

8,186,390 

(10,066) 

10,629 

543 

Variance 
Final to Actual 

111 ,660 

t11 ,107 

111 ,1 07 

543 

543 
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E. SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT Eo! 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES- BUDGETARY BASIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Tille Ill Tille IV IDEA IDEA Preschool 
Tille I Tille II Part A Part A lmmklrant Immigrant Part A Basic Preschool Educalion Totals 

2017-2018 2017-2018 2017-2018 2017-2018 2016-2017 2017-2018 ~ 2017-2018 _____M__ lQ.1§. 

~ 
Federal Sources $ 2,169,352 $ 277,784 $113,571 $ 27,839 $ 2,468 $18,142 $ 1,354,079 $ 43,667 s $ 4,539,363 
Slate Sources 10,106,953 10,206,672 
Local Sources ---- ---- --- --- --- - -- 289 458 

Total Revenue $ 2,169,352 $ 277 784 $113 571 ~ $ 2,468 $18,142 $ 1,354,079 $ 43,667 $ 10,106,953 s 15,035,493 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers $ 112,640 $ $ 105,500 $ $ 2,468 $12,885 ~ $ $ 1,551,361 s 2,035,201 
Other Salaries for Instruction 504,719 629,108 
Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated /Retired Staff 10,000 10,000 
Purchased Professional and Educational Services 186,207 1,197 50,000 237,404 
P1.1rc:ha.!iod P1oros.mn111.l and Ttu:tmlal SarviO!!s 115,726 
Purc hmn~tf T6cl'\n.kat SeMcO:'lil 
Other Purchased Services 18,936 554,566 16,361 592,363 
Supplies and Materials 123,361 27,839 50,000 3,055 273,705 
General Supplies 73,247 73,247 
other Objects 38 964 5 000 53,303 

Total Instruction 480 108 105 500 27.839 2 468 14 082 609,566 3 055 2,205,688 4,020,057 

Support Services: 
Salaries 246,590 17,000 112,182 119,389 692,550 
Salaries of Principals/ Program Directors 538,589 538,589 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Employees 54,708 54,708 
Other Salaries 103,016 103,016 
Salaries of Family/Parent Uaison and Community Parent Involvement 

Specialists 95,435 95,435 
Salaries of Master Teachers 331,120 331,120 
Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated /Retired Staff 985 10,000 10,985 
Employee Bener.ts 41,466 1,300 8,071 31,411 858,195 975,279 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services- Contracted Pre-K 5,132,937 5,132,937 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 26,244 76,585 
F' uu:;hs~ Prn~coal :i!Qd T~hn~1 S~1!!5. 43,455 3,075 570,000 24,426 668,456 
Other Purchased Professional Services 11,871 17,060 
Other Purchased Services 6,861 10,000 9,000 31,861 
Cleaning, Repairs and Maintenances Services 124,996 124,996 
Rentals 410,000 410,000 

Contractual Services (Field Trips) 11 ,644 11,644 
Travel 9,423 10,649 
Supplies and Materials 22,556 2,969 20,000 7.186 15,820 72,048 
Other Objects 92D 7,127 12.832 
Salaries of Security 34,149 34,149 

Total Support Services 360,928 21,269 8 071 4 060 744 513 40,612 ~.663 9,404,899 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services: 
Instructional Equipment 6,602 25 706 

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services - --- - --- --- - - - --- 6,602 25 706 

Total Expenditures 841 036 ~ ____!1Mll_ ~ ~ ~ 1,354,079 ~ 10,106,953 13,450,662 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/( Under) Expenditures 1,328 316 ~ ---- ---- --- --- _____jQ)_ 1,584,831 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfer in from General Fund 
Contribution to School-Based BudAets {1 ,328,316) ~ {1 ,584,831) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {1 ,328,316) ~ ---- (1,584,831) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Over/( Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) s ~$~--= s $ - $ =$-~- s s __@_ s $ (0) 

-->. 
(j) 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
E-1a 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES- BUDGETARY BASIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Career Career Robert Montclair Title Title 
Pathways Pathways Woods Montclair State IV IV 
Program Program Johnson State Summer Part B Part B Page 

2017-2018 2018-2019 Program Program Program 2016-2017 2017-2018 Total 

REVENUE 
Federal Sources $ $ $ $ $ $ 4,506 $ 527,955 $ 532,461 
State Sources 32,667 67,052 99,719 
Local 80,490 152,039 56,929 289,458 

Total Revenue $ 32,667 $ 67,052 $ 80,490 $ 152,039 $ 56,929 $ 4,506 $ 527,955 $ 921,638 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers $ $ 18,870 $ $ 31,812 $ $ 4,506 $ 195,159 $ 250,347 
Other Salaries for Instruction 73,564 50,825 124,389 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 115,726 115,726 
Purchased Professional and Educational Services 
Purchased Technical Services 
Other Purchased Services 2,500 2,500 
Tuition 
Supplies and Materials 3,859 25,506 326 6,104 33,655 69,460 
General Supplies 
Other Objects 5,700 3,639 9,339 

Total Instruction 9,559 46,876 105,702 ___§929 4,506 348,179 571,751 

Support Services: 
Salaries 13,545 60,644 123,200 197,389 
Salaries of Principals/Program Directors 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Employees 
Other Salaries 
Salaries of Family/Parent Liaison and Community 

Parent Involvement Specialists 
Coaches and Master Teachers 
Employee Benefits 2,481 8,000 24,355 34,836 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services-
Contracted Pre-K 

Purchased Professional-Educational Services 4,004 46,337 50,341 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 2,500 25,000 27,500 
Other Purchased Professional Services 5,189 5,189 
Other Purchased Services 6,000 6,000 
Cleaning, Repairs and Maintenance Services 
Rentals 
Contractual Services (Field Trips) 

Travel 1,226 1,226 
Miscellaneous Purchased Services 
Supplies and Materials 2,711 806 3,517 
General Supplies 
other Object 4,150 635 4,785 
Salaries of Security 

Total Support Services 4,004 20,176 80,490 46,337 179,776 330,783 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services: 
Instructional Equipment 19,104 19,104 

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services 19,104 19,104 

Total Expenditures 32,667 67,052 80,490 152,039 56,929 4,506 527,955 921,638 

Excess (Deficiencvl of Revenues Over/(Underl Expenditures 

Other Financin!l Sources (Uses): 
Transfer in from General Fund 
Contribution to School-Based Bud!lets 

_....Total Other Financin!l Sources (Uses) 
0) 

01 Excess (Deficiencvl of Revenues and Other Financin!l $ $ - $ - $ $ $ $ $ 



EXPENDITURES 
Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers 
Other Salaries for Instruction 
Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated /Retired Staff 
Purchased Professional and Educational Services 
Other Purchased Services 
General Supplies 
Other Objects 

Support Services: 
Salaries of Principals/Program Directors 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 
Other Salaries 
Salaries of Community Parent Involvement 

Specialists 
Salaries of Master Teachers 
Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff 
Employee Benefits 
Purchased Educational Services - Contracted 
Purchased Educational Services - Head Start 
Other Purchased Professional Educational Services 
Other Purchased Professional Services 
Cleaning, Repairs and Maintenance Services 
Rentals 
Contracted Services (Field Trips) 
Travel 
Supplies and Materials 
Other Objects 
Salaries of Security 

Total Support Services 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services: 
Instructional Equipment 
Noninstructional Equipment 

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction 
Services 

Total Expenditures 

Calculation of Carryover 
Total2017-18 Pre-KIECPA Aid Allocation 
Add: Actual Pre-KIECPA Aid Carryover June 30, 2017 
Total Funds Available for 2017-18 Budget 
Less: 2017-18 Budgeted ECPA (Including Prior Year 

Budgeted Carryover) 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

STATEMENT OF PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID 
BUDGETARY BASIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

$ 1,582,148 $ (30,000) 
524,719 (20,000) 

10,000 
50,000 

50,000 (16,700) 
75,000 16,700 
25,000 

2,266,867 

119,389 
539,244 

57,152 
139,831 (34,150) 

96,660 
332,559 

10,000 
858,195 

3,952,640 1,663,200 
1,663,200 (1 ,663,200) 

50,000 
25,000 

125,000 
410,000 

20,000 
12,000 
25,000 
20,000 

34,150 
8,455,870 

20,000 
16,087 

36,087 

$10,758,824 $ 

$10,228,680 
514,859 

10,743,539 

10,758,824 
Available and Unbudgeted ECPA Funds as of June 30, 2017 (15,285) 

Add: June 30, 2018 Unexpended Pre-K Aid 651,871 

2017-18 Actual Carryover- Pre-K Aid $ 636,586 

2017-18 Pre-KAid Carryover Budgeted in 2018-19 $ 654,798 

2018 
Final 

Budget Actual Variance 

$ 1 ,552,148 $ 1,551,361 $ 787 
504,719 504,719 

10,000 10,000 
50,000 50,000 
33,300 16,361 16,939 
91,700 73,247 18,453 
25,000 25,000 

2,266,867 2,205,688 61,179 

119,389 119,389 
539,244 538,589 655 

57,152 54,708 2,444 
105,681 103,016 2,665 

96,660 95,435 1,225 
332,559 331,120 1,439 

10,000 10,000 
858,195 858,195 

5,615,840 5,132,937 482,903 

50,000 26,244 23,756 
25,000 11,871 13,129 

125,000 124,996 4 
410,000 410,000 

20,000 11,644 8,356 
12,000 9,423 2,577 
25,000 15,820 9,180 
20,000 7,127 12,873 
34,150 34,149 1 

8,455,870 7,894,663 561,207 

20,000 6,602 13,398 
16,087 16,087 

36,087 6,602 29,485 

$10,758,824 $10,106,953 $651,871 
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Program: Preschool - Full Day 3 Year and 4 Year 

Exoendltures 
Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers 
Other Salaries for Instruction 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

STATEMENT OF PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID 
BUDGETARY BASIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Original Budget 
Budget Transfers 

$ 1,582,148 $ (30,000) 
524,719 (20,000) 

Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff 10,000 
Purchased Professional and Educational Services 50,000 
Other Purchased Services 50,000 (16,700) 
General Supplies 75,000 16,700 
Other Objects 25,000 

2,266,867 

Support Services: 
Salaries of Principals/Program Directors 119,389 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 539,244 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical 
Assistants 57,152 

Other Salaries 139,831 (34,150) 
Salaries of Community Parent Involvement 

Specialists 96,660 
Salaries of Master Teachers 332,559 
Unused Vacation Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff 10,000 
Employee Benefits 858,195 
Purchased Professional Educational Services-
Contracted Pre-K 3,952,640 1,663,200 

Purchased Professional Educational Services -
Head Start 1,663,200 (1 ,663,200) 

Other Purchased Professional Educational Services 50,000 
Other Purchased Professional Services 25,000 
Cleaning, Repairs and Maintenance Services 125,000 
Rentals 410,000 
Contracted Services (Field Trips) 20,000 
Travel 12,000 
Supplies and Materials 25,000 
Other Objects 20,000 
Salaries of Security 34,150 

Total Support Services 8,455,870 

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 
Services: 

Instructional Equipment 20,000 
Noninstructional Equipment 16,087 

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction 
Services 36,087 

Total Expenditures $1 0,758,824 $ 

2018 
Final 

Budget Actual Variance 

$ 1,552,148 $ 1,551 ,361 $ 787 
504,719 504,719 

10,000 10,000 
50,000 50,000 
33,300 16,361 16,939 
91,700 73,247 18,453 
25,000 25,000 

2,266,867 2,205,688 61 '179 

119,389 119,389 
539,244 538,589 655 

57,152 54,708 2,444 
105,681 103,016 2,665 

96,660 95,435 1,225 
332,559 331 '120 1,439 

10,000 10,000 
858,195 858,195 

5,615,840 5,132,937 482,903 

50,000 26,244 23,756 
25,000 11,871 13,129 

125,000 124,996 4 
410,000 410,000 

20,000 11,644 8,356 
12,000 9,423 2,577 
25,000 15,820 9,180 
20,000 7,127 12,873 
34,150 34,149 1 

8,455,870 7,894,663 561,207 

20,000 6,602 13,398 
16,087 16,087 

36,087 6,602 29,485 

$10,758,824 $10,106,953 $651,871 
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F. CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
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Project Title/Issue 

Various Improvements 
Various School Buildings and Grounds 
Various School Buildings and Grounds 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Expenditures to Date 
Original Prior Current 

Date Appropriations Years Year 

05/16/17 $2,550,000 $ $ 561,833 
11/16/17 1,194,000 37,208 

$3,744,000 $ - $ 599,041 

Exhibit F-1 

Unexpended 
Balance 

June 30. 2018 

$1,988,167 
1,156,792 -

$ 3,144,959 



CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRJCT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGETARY BASIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources: 
Note Proceeds 

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses: 
Construction Services 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Bond Cost 

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) 
Expenditures 

Net Change in Fund Balance/(Decrease) 

Fund Balance, Beginning 

Fund Balance, Ending 

Exhibit F-2 

$1,194,000 

1,194,000 

552,485 
76,556 

629,041 

564,959 

564,959 

2,550,000 

$3,114,959 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE 

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS 
IMPROVEMENT TO VARIOUS SCHOOL BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 

FROM INCEPTION TO JUNE 30, 2018 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources: 
Bond Anticipation Proceeds 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses: 
Construction Services 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Bond Cost 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) 
Expenditures 

Additional Project Information: 
Project Number 
Bond Authorization Date 
Bonds Authorized 
Original Authorized Cost 
Original Target Completion Date 

Prior Periods 

$ 

$ 

33-2017 
5/16/2017 

$2,550,000 
$2,550,000 
6/30/2018 

Current Year Totals 

$2,550,000 $2,550,000 

2,550,000 2,550,000 

529,152 529,152 
32,681 32,681 

561 ,833 561,833 

$1,988,167 $1,988,167 

Exhibit F-2a 

Authorized 
Cost 

$2,550,000 

2,550,000 

2,420,000 
130,000 
30,000 

2,550,000 

$ 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE 

AND PROJECT STATUS- BUDGETARY BASIS 
IMPROVEMENT TO VARIOUS SCHOOL BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS 

FROM INCEPTION TO JUNE 30, 2018 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources: 
Bond Anticipation Proceeds 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses: 
Construction Services 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Bond Cost 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) 
Expenditures 

Additional Project Information: 
Project Number 
Bond Authorization Date 
Bonds Authorized 
Original Authorized Cost 
Original Target Completion Date 

Prior Periods 

$ 

$ 

52-2017 
11/16/2017 
$1,194,000 
$1 ,194,000 
6/30/2019 

Current Year 

$ 1,194,000 

1,194,000 

23,333 
43,875 

67,208 

$ 1,126,792 

Totals 

$1,194,000 

1,194,000 

23,333 
43,875 

67,208 

$1,126,792 

Exhibit F-2a (2} 

Authorized 
Cost 

$1,194,000 

1,194,000 

1,105,000 
75,000 
14,000 

1,194,000 

$ 
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G. PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

173 



ENTERPruSEFUND 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 
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H. FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
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H-1 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Trust 
Private Agency 

Unemployment Purpose Total 
Compensation Scholarship Total Student Agency 

Trust Fund Trust Fund Activity Payroll Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 458,355 $162,086 $620,441 $119,373 $3,594,401 $3,713,774 
Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable: 

local 718 718 

Total Assets $ 458,355 $162,086 $620,441 $119,373 $3,595,119 $3,714,492 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable $ 20,873 $ $ 20,873 $ $ $ 
Payable to Student Groups 119,373 119,373 
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 3,595,119 3,595,119 

Total liabilities $ 20,873 $ $ 20,873 $119,373 $3,595,119 $3,714,492 

NET POSITION 
Held in Trust for Unemployment Claims 

and Other Purposes $ 437,482 $ $437,482 $ $ $ 
Reserved for Scholarships 162,086 162,086 

Total Net Position $ 437,482 $162,086 $599,568 $ $ $ 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

TRUST FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Unemployment 
Private 

Purpose 
Compensation Scholarship 

Trust Fund 

ADDITIONS: 
Contributions: 

Plan Member $114,990 $ 
Board Contribution 100,000 
Scholarship Donations 4,072 
Total Contributions 214,990 4,072 

Total Additions 214,990 4,072 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Unemployment Claims 216,382 
Scholarships Awarded 4,100 

Total Deductions 216,382 4,100 

Change in Net Position (1,392) (28) 

Net Position- Beginning of the Year 438,874 162,114 

Net Position- End of the Year $437,482 $162,086 

Total 
Trust 
Fund 

$ 114,990 
100,000 

4,072 
219,062 

219,062 

216,382 
4,100 

220,482 

(1,420) 

600,988 

$ 599,568 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Balance Cash Cash 
June 30. 2017 RecejQIS Disbursements 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS: 
Early Childhood Center $ 4,296 $ 3,839 $ 4,153 
Cleveland 1,695 9,566 8,867 
Forest 2,643 10,898 12,066 
Heywood 6,291 24,743 24,468 
Lincoln 1,448 1,240 
Rosa Parks 14,305 20,767 19,208 
Oakwood 1,639 1,145 444 
Park 10,593 14,397 10,656 

Total Elementary Schools 42,910 85,355 81,102 

JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL: 
Orange Prep Academy 10,251 800 2,710 

Total Junior High School 10,251 800 2,710 

SENIOR HIGH SCHOOLS: 
Orange High School 66,634 78,603 95,071 
Career and Innovative Academy 264 26 26 

Total Senior High Schools 66,898 78,629 95,097 

Athletic Activities 8,917 78,570 74,048 
Total Other Accounts 8,917 78,570 74,048 

Total All Schools $ 128,976 $243,354 $252,957 

Balance 
June 30. 2018 

$ 3,982 
2,394 
1,475 
6,566 

208 
15,864 
2,340 

14,334 
47,163 

8,341 
8,341 

50,166 
264 

50,430 

13,439 
13,439 

$ 119,373 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Balance 
ASSETS June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 674,166 $69,702,255 $66,782,020 
Intergovernmental Accounts 

Receivable 718 

Total Assets $ 674,166 $69,702,973 $66,782,020 

LIABILITIES 

Payroll Deductions and 
With holdings $ 672,449 $69,702,973 $66,780,303 

lnterfunds Payable 1,717 1,717 

Total Liabilities $ 674,166 $69,702,973 $66,782,020 

Balance 
June 30, 2018 

$ 3,594,401 

718 

$ 3,595,119 

$ 3,595,119 

$ 3,595,119 
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I. LONG-TERM DEBT 
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CX> 
N 

EXPENDITURES: 
Regular Debt Service: 

Interest on Notes 

Total Regular Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) 
Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources/(Uses): 
Transfers ln/(Out) from Capital Projects Fund 

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues and Other 
Financing Sources Over/(Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 

Recapitulation of Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over/(Under) Expenditures: 

Budgeted Fund Balance 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COUNTY OF ESSEX 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Original Budget 
Budqet Transfers 

$ - $ -

- -

$ - $ -

$ - $ -

$ - $ -

$ - $ -

$ - $ -

$ - $ -

Exhibit 1-3 

Final Variance 
Budqet Actual Final to Actual 

$ - $ 23,044 $ (23,044) 

- 23,044 23,044) 

$ - $ 23,044 $ (23,044) 

$ - $ (23,044) $ (23,044) 

$ - · $ - $ 

$ - $ (23,044) $ (23,044) 

$ - $ (23,044) $ (23,044) 

$ - $ (23,044) $ 23,044 



STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED) 
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INTRODUCTION TO THE STATISTICAL SECTION 
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FINANCIAL TRENDS 

185 



Governmental Activities: 

Net Invested in Capital Assets 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Governmental Activities Net Positions 

Business-Type Activities: 

Net invested in Capital Assets 

Unrestricted 

Total Business-Type Activities Net Position 

District-Wide: 

Net invested in Capital Assets 
Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total District Net Position 

Source: CAFR Exhibit A-1 

-"' 
00 
(j) 

2009 2010 

$ 118,561,986 $ 132,154,834 

(7,428,032! (6,381,093! 

$ 111 ,133,954 $ 125,773,741 

$ 279,738 $ 269,594 

(525,504) (409,379) 

$ (245,766) $ (139,785) 

$ 118,841,724 $ 132,424,428 

{7,953,536) (6.790,472) 

$ 110,888,188 $ 125,633,956 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Unaudited 

Flscal Year End In£! June 30, 
2011 2012 2013 2014 

$ 136,500,710 $ 140,368,517 $ 139,303,437 $ 138,621,212 

344,178 74,934 498,870 6,821,558 

(5,554,983! (6,243,853! (3,526,616! (6,995,267! 

$ 131,289,905 $ 134,199,598 $ 136,275,691 $ 138,447,503 

(248,545) (184,260) (41,779! $ 42,673 

$ {248,545) $ {184,260) $ {41,779) $ 42,673 

$ 136,500,710 $ 140,368,517 $ 139,303,437 $ 138,621,212 
344,178 74,934 498,870 6,821,558 

(5,803,528) (6,428,113) (3,568,395) (6,952,594) 

$ 131,041,360 $ 134,015,338 $ 136,233,912 $ 138,490,176 

J-1 

2015 2016 2017 2018 

$ 137,661 ,591 $ 136,238,074 $ 133,184,391 $ 132,467,607 

6,041 ,789 5,115,380 2,550,000 3,114,959 

(24,830,513) (23,757,910) (18,383,363) (21.489,954) 

$ 118,872,867 $ 117,595,544 $ 117,351,028 $ 114.092,612 

$ 55,261 $ 33,370 $ 15,083 

$ 89,760 190,574 145,323 61,287 

$ 89,760 $ 245,835 $ 178,693 $ 76,370 

$ 137,661,591 $ 136,293,335 $ 133,217,761 $ 132,482,690 

6,041,789 5,115,380 2,550,000 3,114,959 
(24,740,753) {23,567,336) (18,238,040) (21,428,667) 

$ 118,962,627 $ 117,841,379 $ 117,529,721 $ 114.168,982 



Expenses 
Governmental Activities: 

Instruction: 
Regular 
Special Education 
Other Special Education 
Other Instruction 

Support Service: 
Tuition 
Attendance/Social Work 
Health Services 
Other Support Services 
Improvement of Instruction 
School Library 
Instructional Staff Training 
Student and Instructional Related Services 
G~neru l AclminiSI~IIDn 
School Administration Services 
Required Maintenance 
Operation of Plant 
Pupil Transportation 
Business and Other Support Services 
Central Services 

Capital Outlay 
Charter Schools 
Special Schools 
Unallocated Depreciation 

Total Governmental Activities Expenses 

Business-Type Activities: 
Food Services 

Total Business-Type Activities Expenses 

Total District Expenses 

Program Revenues 
Governmental Activities: 

Instruction: 
Operating Grants and Contributions 

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 

Business-Type Activities: 
Food Services 
Operating Grants and Contributions 

Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues 

Total District Program Revenues 

Net lExpenses)/Revenue 
Governmental Activities 
Business-Type Activities 

Total District-Wide Net Expenses 

General Revenue and Other Changes in Net Posilion 
Governmental Activities: 

Taxes: 
Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes, Net 

Federal and Slate Aid Not Restricted 
Grants and Contributions: 

Federal Source 
State Source 

Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous Income 
Transfers 
Speclalllems 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Federal and State Aid Not Restricted 
Miscellaneous Income 
Transfers 

Total Business-Type Activities 

Total District-Wide 

Change in Net Position 
Governmental Activities 
Business-Type Activities 

Total District 

-'-
co 
-...) 

J-Obb 2690 

$ 44,494,992 $ 44,956,749 

591,173 297,388 
1,473,889 1,095,602 

12,912,218 15,005,424 
6,838,219 10,471,269 
1,220,937 1,271,795 

836,791 345,296 

1,313,044 1,791,241 
3,700,072 3,640,463 
4,474,596 7,242,606 
5,404,994 6,256,847 
3,554,225 3,770,491 

53,308 
1,849,071 1,566,556 

936,641 
32,918 

88,717,529 98,681,306 

2.414,563 2,860,126 
2,414,563 2,860,126 

91,132,092 s 101,541,432 

34,550 $ 54,981 
13,090,930 15,840,822 
13,125,480 15,895,803 

182,070 169,910 
1,853,600 2.416,197 
2,035,670 2,588,107 

15~ $ 18,481,910 

s (75,592,049) $ (82, 785,503) 
(378,893! ~74,019! 

s (75,970,942) $ (83,059,522) 

9,288,678 $ 9,660,225 

76,843 137,128 
92,195,186 87,353,014 

11,645 61,696 
381,473 595,547 
(34,330) (380,000) 

~ ~.320! 
97A25~ 5 

372,139 360,000 
372.139 386,000 

$102~ $ 97,605,290 

26,271,956 $ 14,639,787 

~ 105,981 

$ 26,265,202 $ 14,745,768 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

Wl ;w.;: 
F15cal YB="iir ErKfina Jun.a ~ 

201~ . 14 

$ 41,838,653 $ 47,939,869 $ 48,024,872 $ 38,983,345 
7,878,895 
7,135,393 
1,056,008 

8,566,766 
544,226 661,236 395,390 
816,705 1,027,346 989,254 

13,592,826 12,749,358 13,121,993 
8,601,929 7,788,656 9,535,582 
1,382,804 1,500,746 1,663,287 

373,613 349,443 626,264 
21,402,980 

1,852,089 1,943,271 1,975,007 5,533,896 
3,832,550 3,859,053 4,218.881 5,000,458 
7,601,082 6,960,163 81246,745 6,102,925 
6,356,680 6,576.341 6 .626.836 
3,053,885 3 ,211 ,507 3,270,398 3,042,970 

2,349,885 3,392,529 3,060,424 

939,945 989,173 
40,358 75,959 67,687 99,640 

2,248,490 
93,179,230 99,224,650 99,822,620 109,069,766 

2,877,600 3,020,010 2,912,126 2.919,691 
2,877,600 3,020,010 2,912,126 2.919,6!!1 

5 96,056,830 $102,244,660 $ 102,734,746 5 111,989,457 

$ 106,990 $ 50,000 $ 185,202 $ 
14,349,897 14,324,210 14,178,817 20,295,925 

"14,456]87 14,374,210 14,364,019 20,295,925 

192,848 229,775 281,810 249,378 
2,365,992 2,704,520 2,772,797 2,754,768 
2,558,840 2,934.~95 3,054,607 3,004,146 

$ 17,015,727 s 17,308,505 5 17,418,626 $ 23,300,071 

$ {78,722,343) $ (84,850,440) $ (85,458,601) $ (88, 773,841) 
(318.760) (85,715! 142,481 .00 (184,926) 

s (79,041.103) $ (84,936,155! $ (65,316,120! s (88,938,767) 

$ 10,046,634 $ 10,247,567 s 10,452,518 s 10,661,568 
74,449,451 

98,865 2,542,669 320,377 
75,050,652 74,463,852 76,114,567 

30,000 45,000 6,774 8,357 
126,056 611,045 640,441 4,396,195 

(177,059) (150,000) 

85,175,146 67,760,133 87,534,697 89,515.571 

249,376 
210,000 150,000 
210,000 150,000 249,376 

$ 85,365,146 $ 67,910,133 $ 67,534,697 s 69,764,949 

$ 8,452,805 $ 2,909,693 $ 2,076,096 $ 741,730 
(106,760! 64,265 142,461 84,452 

s 6,344,045 s 2,973,976 $ 2,216,577 s 826,162 

J-2 

W1l 0\lW! 2oH am 

s 37,497,640 $ 39,405,109 $ 50,578,411 $ 39,958,921 
8,258,596 9,012,798 11,516,457 8,872,597 
3,134,371 3,351,872 4,175,922 3,240,567 
1,151,366 1,222,851 1,023,171 943,662 

7,141,055 5,090,328 5,601,755 6,237,658 

24,097,356 24,741,795 28,253,104 23,301,976 
5,356,358 6,510,996 7,909,268 7,197,821 
7,435,363 6,135,924 6,348,332 5,349,521 
9,678,958 8,310,697 9,210,265 9,344,016 

3,589,854 3,099,965 3,234,073 3,313,774 

2,178,654 
2,222,036 3,111,861 3,180,883 

101,342 98,627 284,028 156~035 
2,317,422 2,889,708 

111,938,335 112,092,706 131,246,647 111,097,431 

3,306,982 3,563,327 3,203,591 3,393,478 
3,306,982 3,563,327 3,203,591 3,393,478 

s 115,245,317 $ 115,656,033 s 134,450,238 ~ 114,490,909 

s $ $ !> 
21,463,564 23,658,526 23,914,633 25,517,837 
21,463,564 23,658,526 23.914,633 25,517,837 

355,830 323,937 179,159 145,535 
2,998,239 3,395,465 2,957,290 3,145,620 
3,354,069 3,719,402 3,136,449 3,291,155 

$ 24,817,633 s 27,377,926 s 27,051,082 s 28,808,992 

$ (90,471,771) s (88,434,160) s (107,332,014) s (85,579,594) 
(308,743! (167,862! (246,301! (102,323) 

s (90,780,514) s (88,602,042) s (107,578,315) s (85,68 1,917) 

s 10,874,799 $ 11,692,295 s 11,928,140 s 12,164,664 
75,127,119 74,297,128 91,417,932 69,308,872 

3,912 2,764 
1,495,629 1,164,670 3,743,426 603,126 

87,501,459 87,156,857 107,087,496 62,076,662 

55,261 
355,830 268,676 603,126 

355,630 J23,9J7 603,126 

s 67,657,289 $ 323,937 s s 603,126 

$ (2,973,312) s (1 ,277 ,323) s (244,516) s (3,502,932) 
47,067 156,075 (67,142) (102,323! 

$ (2,926,225) $ (1,121,246) s (311,658) s (3,605,255) 



-" 
00 
00 

General Fund: 
Restricted: 

Encumbrances 
Excess Surplus Designated for Subsequent 

Year's Expenditures 
Assigned Fund Balance - Designated for 

Subsequent Year's Expenditures 
Restricted: 
Assigned 
(Deficit) 

Total General Fund 

All Other Governmental Funds: 
Unassigned (Deficit) 

Total All Other Governmental Funds 

Source: CAFR Schedule B-1 

2009 2010 

$ 204,712 $ 367,342 

(5,569,388) (5,101,076) 

$ (5,364,676) $ (4,73<>,734) 

$ (803,736) $ (358,684) 

$ (803,736) $ (358,684) 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Unaudited 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 

ill1 w.l 2013 2014 

$ 1,183,401 $ 1,021,135 $ 445,360 $ 1,596,197 

3,876,491 

1,273,257 

(4,838,805) (4,995,791) (5,286,334) (5,150,170) 

$ (3,655,404) $ (3,974,656) $ (4,840,974) $ 1,595,775 

$ (554,580) $ (879,795) $ (963,299) $ (368,606) 

$ (554,580) $ (879,795) $ (963,299) $ (368,606) 

J-3 

2015 2016 2017 2018 

$ 2,807,058 $ 1,187,560 $ $ 

1,273,337 

3,234,731 2,654,483 
10,528,304 6,384,105 

104,483 
(6,483,432) (5,508,676) (5,484,865) (5,594,366) 

$ (441,643) $ (393,296) $ 5,147,922 $ 789,739 

$ (316,995) $ (282,576) $ (479,193) $ 2,597,081 

$ (316,995) $ (282,576) $ (479,193) $ 2,597,081 



Revenues: 

Tax Levy 
Tuition 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 
State Sources 
Federal Sources 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Instruction: 

Regular Instruction 
Special Education Instruction 
Other Special Instruction 
Other Instruction 

Support Services: 

Tuition 
Student and Instruction Related Services 
School Administrative Services 

Other Administrative Services 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 
Pupil Transportation 
Unallocated Benefits 

Federal and State Aid and Other 
Special Schools 
Transfer to Charter School 
Capital Outlay 
Debt Service: 

Interest and Other Charges 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/ 
(Under} Expenditures 

Source: District Records 

__, 
CXl 
<D 

£Q1l! Z!!1I 

$ 12,164,664 $ 11,926,140 
61,439 61,184 

2,028,889 3,937,207 
97,832,854 94,934,107 

4,726,879 4,311,576 
116,814,725 115,170,216 

28,481,620 26,112,595 
6,041,697 5,984,544 
2,239,701 2,134,322 

790,619 713,761 

6,237,658 5,601 ,755 
18,853,784 19,807,319 
5,072,635 3,950,449 
4,310,024 4,101,690 
7,960,233 7,458,327 
3,206,922 3,073,081 

28,018,615 25,057,618 

87,305 145,074 
3,180,883 3,111,861 
3,591,893 573,219 

23,044 
118,096,633 109,825,615 

$ (1,281 ,908) $ 5,344,601 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting} 

Unaudited 

Fiscal Year Endina June 30. 
2016 2015 ZQjj 2013 

$ 11,692,295 $ 10,874,799 $ 10,661,568 $ 10,452,518 
63,206 191,260 177,568 185,202 

2,764 3,912 8,357 6,774 
1,266,564 887,139 3,336,793 673,441 

93,757,940 92,329,387 91,460,090 96,517,760 
5,222,611 4,277,557 4,167,120 6,337,477 

112,005,380 108,564,054 109,811,496 ~173,172 

28,514,761 27,423,647 30,064,051 34,944,940 
6,015,119 5,645,060 5,974,091 5,221,738 
2,284,046 2,123,812 2,367,339 

964,306 915,437 953,897 3,274,283 

5,090,328 7,141 ,055 8,586,766 7,839,751 
21,370,824 19,932,904 19,159,250 12,146,941 

3,883,694 3,637,419 3,773,364 3,626,010 
5,056,349 6,106,306 5,108,856 1,193,395 
8,061,146 6,947,111 7,859,096 7,448,271 
3,060,500 3,589,854 3,026,485 2,886,254 

23,867,955 21,480,859 19,705,634 14,811,252 
21,619,564 

65,358 67,742 72,D42 67,687 
2,222,036 2,178,654 
1,466,191 1,357,601 1,564,265 720,027 

111,922,613 110,549,661 108,215,136 116,000,133 

$ 82,767 $ (1 ,985,607) $ 1,596,360 $ 173,039 

J-4 

2012 ~ 2010 2009 

$ 10,247,567 $ 10,046,634 $ 9,660,225 $ 9,288,678 

50,000 106,990 54,981 34,550 

45,000 30,000 61,696 11,645 
803,248 405,046 794,425 464,586 

92,953,560 92,388,205 96,706,629 100,107,244 

8,016,918 4,299,741 9,524,896 8,167,080 
112,116,293 107,276,616 116,802,852 118,073,783 

33,116,815 33,116,615 33,329,874 34,178,754 
5,498,074 4,955,866 5,980,866 5,825,584 

4,928,924 2,765,114 2,945,468 2,639,081 

6,551)99 6,108,882 7,371,845 7,535,338 

12,582,960 10,597,301 12,315,028 10,536,766 
3,287,206 3,279,730 3,109,290 3,180,499 
1,314,142 1,114,996 1,082,985 886,946 
7,559,776 6,356,680 6,256,847 5,631,664 
2,896,947 2,685,339 3,416,363 3,341,176 

13,904,303 14,260,964 13,692,901 8,756,796 
15,743,215 12,675,357 10,055,465 7,090,261 

75,956 939,945 936,641 53,308 

5,300,644 6,377,901 15,233,285 32,335,726 

112,760,761 105,456,910 115,726,858 122,191,939 

$ (644,468} ~19,706 $ 1,075,994 $ (4,118,156) 



co 
0 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30. Donations 

2009 $ 2,588 

2010 2,588 

2011 2,000 

2012 4,550 

2013 46,890 

2014 44,632 

2015 15,435 

2016 15,300 

2017 22,867 

2018 11,000 

Source: District Records. 

Facilities 
Use 

$ 3,454 

3,454 

41,628 

25,027 

22,500 

21,831 

22,600 

25,000 

11,985 

4,939 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GENERAL FUND REVENUES 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCES 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 

Various 
Tuition Insurance 

Reimbursements Reimbursements 

$ 217,856 $ 

168,481 26,000 

106,990 15,687 

148,171 28,450 

181,750 34,948 

25,311 25,554 

21,013 26,080 

36,000 35,000 

11,697 430,581 

13,178 78,992 

$ 

J-5 

Refunds 
E-rate Other Annual Totals 

111,000 $ 46,575 $ 381 ,473 

200,000 195,024 595,547 

63,463 3,278 233,046 

189,918 264,929 661 ,045 

228,223 126,130 640,441 

3,162,937 41,125 3,321,390 

589,315 31,428 705,871 

580,700 409,464 1,101,464 

688,515 16,597 1,182,242 

179,449 254,129 541,687 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended Vacant 

June 30 ~ 

2009 $ 19,049,800 

2010 17,915,000 

2011 18,313,800 

2012 19,356,100 

2013 17,708,100 

2014 10,548,200 

2015 10,637,500 

2016 11,278,500 

2017 25,654,500 

2018 21,522,300 

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor 

_, 
<D 
N 

$ 

Farm 

Residential Reaular Q Farm 

1 ,008,408,200 N/A N/A 

1 ,003,444,500 N/A N/A 

992,642,000 N/A NIA 

972,757,200 NIA NIA 

956,660,850 NIA NIA 

721,341,700 NIA NIA 

717,560,400 NIA NIA 

716,861,000 N/A NIA 

716,282,100 NIA NIA 

716,393,600 NIA NIA 

Commercial 

$ 266,637,200 

268,738,800 

266,341,900 

261 '751 ,000 

258,192,600 

277,931,500 

265,861 ,400 

263,891 ,447 

260,837,400 

260,496,800 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
UNAUDITED 

Total 
Assessed 

Industrial Apartment Value 

$ 48,732,500 $ 256,996,100 $ 1 ,599,823,800 

46,546,500 252,712,100 1,589,357,000 

46,594,500 250,039,500 1 ,572,463,200 

45,567,200 247,097,200 1,545,060,200 

45,902,700 230,684,200 1,507,228,950 

44,057,200 253,572,600 1,307,451,200 

43,447,600 249,451 '1 00 1,286,958,000 

43,355,400 284,813,847 1,320,000,194 

40,569,400 248,759,300 1 ,292,102,800 

41,700,900 250,092,625 1 ,290,206,225 

.!:§ 

Estimated Total 

Less: Net Actual Direct 

Tax Exempt Public Valuation County School 
Property Utilities Taxable Equalized Value Tax Rate 

$ 312,431,850 $ 1,495,070 $ 1 ,601 ,528,166 $ 1,825,727,500 0.638 

311 ,230,850 1,527,292 1 ,590,684,292 1,771,586,700 0.685 

307,405,050 1,445,383 1,573,908,583 1,712,445,417 0,702 

312,186,250 1,609,129 1,546,669,329 1,484,470,035 0.721 

377,758,200 1,981,856 1 ,509,210,806 1 ,428,385,328 0,722 

437,235,472 1,652,723 1 ,309, 103,923 1,309,103,928 0.848 

449,402,072 2,010,593 1,288,968,593 1,288,968,593 0.887 

449,391,572 2,162,247 1 ,322,162,441 1 ,284,813,847 0.930 

481 ,608,872 2,943,023 1 ,295,045,823 1 ,286,400,290 0.943 

495,135,272 2,526,100 1 ,292,732,325 1 ,576,263, 760 0,931 



CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATE 

PER $100.00 OF ASSESSED VALUATION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Orange School District Direct Rate 
(From J-6) Overlapping Rates 

General Total Direct City 

Fiscal Year Obligated Debt School Tax of Essex 
Ended June 30. Basic Rate Revenue Rate Orange County 

2009 $ 0.638 0 $ 0.638 $ 2.150 $ 0.451 

2010 0.685 0 0.685 1.936 0.458 

2011 0.702 0 0.702 2.266 0.482 

2012 0.721 0 0.721 2.385 0.446 

2013 0.722 0 0.722 2.517 0.466 

2014 0.847 0 0.847 3.047 0.055 

2015 0.887 0 0.887 3.197 0.569 

2016 0.930 0 0.930 3.266 0.582 

2017 0.943 0 0.943 3.337 0.590 

2018 0.931 0 0.931 3.669 0.630 

Source: Municipal Tax Collector 

Total 
Direct and 

Overlapping 
Tax Rate 

$ 3.239 

3.079 

3.450 

3.552 

3.705 

3.949 

4.653 

4.778 

4.870 

5.230 

193 



Taxpayer 

Orange Portfolio LLC 
PD South Orange Towers LLC 
Susa Orange LP 
High Properties LLC 
Orange Senior Cit. Residence Co. 
Scroll Properties LLC 
Ben Central LLC 
Tri-State Realty Investment 
Ridge Garden Apartment, LLC 
400 Realty Management, LLC 

Total Assessed Valuation 

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor. 

$ 

$ 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
Unaudited 

2018 
Taxable %of Total 

Assessed District Net 
Value Rank Assessed Value 

14,587,000 1.13% $ 
10,024,400 2 0.78% 
9,310,600 3 0.72% 
6,874,100 4 0.53% 
6,593,100 5 0.51% 
6,514,100 6 0.50% 
6,500,000 7 0.50% 
6,245,900 8 0.48% 
5,795,600 9 0.45% 
5,610,200 10 0.43% 

78,055,000 6.04% $ 

$ 1 ,292, 1 02,700 

N/A 
2009 

Taxable %of Total 
Assessed District Net 

Value Rank Assessed Value 
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For Year Ended 
June 30 

2009 

2010 

2011 

TY 2012 

CY 2013 

CY 2014 

CY 2015 

CY 2016 

CY 2017 

CY 2018 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

Collected Within the Fiscal Year 
of the Levy 

Taxes Levied for Percentage of 
the Fiscal Year Amount Levy 

$ 49,028,162 $45,703,512 93.22% 

49,850,985 46,835,304 93.95% 

54,386,320 51,168,749 94.08% 

27,124,351 23,350,831 86.09% 

55,972,265 51,847,602 92.63% 

58,236,743 54,085,200 92.87% 

59,972,004 56,331,509 93.93% 

61,387,188 60,754,692 98.97% 

62,620,723 58,861 ,086 94.00% 

63,578,469 N/A N/A 

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F Form). 

Collection in 
Subsequent 

Years 

$2,848,459 

2,440,715 

2,250,425 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 
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co 
--.1 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30. 

2009 $ 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

General 
Obligation 

Bond 

6,851,357 

5,356,463 

2,224,631 

2,163,972 

1,375,312 

929,015 

929,015 

321,921 

CITY OF ORANGETOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

Governmental Activities 
Bond Business-Type 

Certificate Anticipation Activities 
of Capital Notes Capital 

Participation Leases (BANs) Leases 

$ $ $ $ 

3,744,000 

3,744,000 

J-10 

Percentage 
Total of Personal Per 

District Income Capita 

$ 2.90 992 

6,851,357 3.00 1,306 

5,356,463 N/A N/A 

2,224,631 N/A N/A 

2,163,972 N/A N/A 

1,375,312 N/A N/A 

929,015 N/A N/A 

929,015 N/A N/A 

4,065,921 N/A N/A 

3,744,000 N/A N/A 



Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30, 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding Percentage of 
General Net General Actual Taxable 

Obligation Bonded Debt Value of 
Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property 

* * * * 

$6,851 ,357 $ 6,851,357 0.43% 

5,356,463 5,356,463 0.34% 

3,801 ,495 3,801,495 2.50% 

2,209,692 2,209,692 * 

1,575,312 1,575,312 * 

929,015 929,015 * 

629,926 629,926 * 

321,921 321,921 * 

None None ** 

Per Capita 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

*The School District currently operates as a Type 1 District, and as such the debt for capital projects is issued and 
repaid by the City of Orange Township. However, the cost of the debt is raised by the Municipal and added to the 
School District Tax Levy. 

* * The School District currently operates as a Type 2 District, and as such the debt for capital projects is issued and 
repaid by the School District. 

Source: Data regarding School District population was given by School Officials. 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 
Unaudited 

Governmental Unit 

Debt Repaid with Property Taxes 

City of Orange Township 
Essex County General Obligation Debt 

City Orange Township District Direct Debt 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 

Gross 
Debt 

$41,079,101.00 

3,744,000.00 

Deductions 

$23,991,873.00 

3,744,000.00 

Net Debt 

$ 17,087,228.00 

None 

$ 17,087,228.00 

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentage provided by Essex County Board of Taxation. 

(1) City of Orange Township's Chief Financial Officer and 2018 Annual Debt Statement. 
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Debt Limit 

Total Net Debt Application to Limit 

Legal Debt Margin 

Total Net Debt Application to the Limit 
as a Percentage of Debt Limit 

2009 

$69,454,050.00 

$69,454,050.00 

0.00% 

2010 

$71,842,524.00 

6,851 ,357.00 

$84.991 ,167.00 

9.54% 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Unaudited 

2011 2012 2013 2014 

$70,796,795.00 $66,246,695.00 $59,713,375.00 $ 57,370,464.00 

5,356,463.00 2.224,631 .00 2.163.972.00 1 ,375.312.00 

$65,440,332.00 $64,022,064.00 $57,549,403.00 $ 55,995,152.00 

7.57% 5.73% 3.62% 2.75% 

Source: Equalized valuation basis was provided by the annual report of the State of New Jersey, Department of Treasury, Division of Taxation. 

1\.) 
0 
0 

Debt Limit (4% of Average Equalization Value) 
Total Net Debt Application to Limit 

Legal Debt Margin 

2015 2016 

J-13 

Equalized 
Year Valuation Basis 

2017 $1,566,708,450.00 
2016 1,460,050,847.00 
2015 1.435,296,116.00 

2017 

$4,482,055,415.00 

$1,494,016.471.67 

59,760,739.00 
3,744.000.00 

$ 56,016,739.00 

2017 

$53,834,763.00 $ 56,593,833.00 $51,456,001.00 $ 59,760,739.00 

929,015.00 929.015.00 321 ,921 .00 3,744,000.00 

$52,905,748.00 $ 55,664,818.00 $51' 134,080.00 $ 56,016,739.00 

1.70% 1.64% 0.62% 5.36% 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

J-14 

c d 

a b Per Capita Unemployment 
Year Population Personal Income Personal Income Rate 

2009 31,030 $1,590,101,320 $ 51,244 10.30% 

2010 30,134 1,517,216,766 50,349 11.00% 

2011 30,180 N/A N/A 11.90% 

2012 32,332 N/A N/A 12.20% 

2013 32,978 N/A N/A 12.40% 

2014 32,868 N/A N/A 9.10% 

2015 32,868 N/A N/A 7.80% 

2016 32,868 N/A N/A 7.30% 

2017 32,868 N/A N/A N/A 

2018 32,868 N/A N/A N/A 

Source: 

a - Population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development. 

b - Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal income prese 

c- Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2010 Census published by the U.S. Bureal 

Economic Analysis. 

d- Unemployment data provided by the N.J. Department of Labor and Workforce Development. 
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"' 0 
(;J 

EmQ!Qw Employees 

Parkway Associates 

I & S Investment Co. 
Union Mill Run 
Brookville Holding, LLC 
Verizon 
Newark Portfolio 
Bradford Utilities 
Colonial Village Association 
Public Service 
Lyons Plaza LLC 

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor. 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
Unaudited 

INFORMATION UNAVAILABLE 

2018 
Percentage of 

Rank Total Municipal 
[Option all Employment 

1 0.00% 
2 0.00% 
3 0.00% 
4 0.00% 
5 0.00% 
6 0.00% 
7 0.00% 
8 0.00% 
9 0.00% 
10 0.00% 

0.00% 

Employees 

J-15 

2009 
Percentage of 

Rank Total Municipal 
[Optional] Employment 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
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Function/Program 

Instruction: 
Regular 
Special Education 
Other Special Education 
Vocational 
Other Instruction 

Support Services: 
Student and Instructional Related Services 
General Administrative Services 
School Administrative Services 
Health Services 
Central Services 
Administrative Information Technology 
Plant Operations and Maintenance 
Student Transportation 
Other Support Services 

Special Schools 
Food Services 
Child Care 

Total 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

306 339 282 372 396 381 
130 81 78 106 77 79 

4 4 10 8 8 8 
9 a 9 11 14 19 

112 95 120 120 114 114 

95 74 129 120 69 64 
11 10 11 10 10 10 
46 46 33 42 44 44 
15 15 11 12 12 11 
10 17 49 29 49 51 
5 5 5 6 7 7 

33 33 35 38 43 42 
1 2 2 3 1 2 
0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 
1 1 1 1 1 1 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

778 730 775 878 845 833 = = 

2015 2016 .wz W..!! 

380 384 384 373 
77 78 78 75 

8 8 a 8 
17 17 17 17 

114 113 113 111 

66 66 66 64 
10 10 10 9 
46 46 46 44 
12 12 12 10 
51 51 51 50 

7 7 7 6 
44 44 44 42 

2 2 2 
0 

835 839 839 810 = 
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N 
0 
O'l 

Fiscal 
Year 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Enrollment 

4,628 
4,619 
4,522 
5,392 
5,526 
4,940 
5,359 
5,185 
5,170 
5,129 

Operating Cost per 
Ex[!enditures __fyQj.!_ 

$ 85,084,398 $18,385 
91 ,516,107 19,813 
90,763,083 20,071 
95,832,118 17,773 
97,938,801 17,723 
94,895,712 19,210 
97,208,056 18,139 

110,456,422 21,303 
109,252,396 21 '132 
117,976,425 23,002 

Percentage 
Change 

0.00 
7.77 
1.30 

-11.45 
-0.28 
8.39 
-5.57 
17.44 
-0.80 
8.85 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
OPERATING STATISTICS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Unaudited 

. Teaching Pupil/Teacher Ratio 
Staff Elementa!Jl Middle Hi~h School 

580 1.09 1.10 1.09 
589 1.12 1.13 1.12 
584 1.12 1.12 1.10 
597 1.09 1.10 1.10 
628 1.10 1.10 1.10 
628 1.10 1.10 1.10 
636 1.10 1.10 1.10 
636 1.10 1.10 1.10 
634 1.10 1.10 1.10 
635 1.10 1.10 1.10 

J-17 

Average Average %Change 
Daily Daily Average Student 

Enrollment Attendance Daily Attendance 
fADE) {ADA) Enrollment % 

4,420 3,983 3.27 90.11% 
4,434 4,214 0.32 95.04% 
4,427 4,588 -0.16 103.64% 
4,727 5,130 6.78 108.53% 
4,842 4,536 2.43 93.68% 
4,922 4,676 1.65 95.00% 
5,154 4,895 4.71 94.97% 
5046 4789 -2.10 94.91% 
5166 4890 2.38 94.66% 
5108 4860 -0.11 95.14% 



CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

J-18 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Djstric! Building 

E'-lementory 
Central (1913): 

Square Feet 43,272 43,272 43,272 43,272 43,272 43,272 43,272 43,272 43,272 43,272 

Capacity (student) 535 535 535 535 535 535 535 535 535 0 
Enrollment 304 261 246 246 0 

Cleveland (1910): 
Square Feet 32,850 32,850 32,850 32.850 32,850 32,850 32,850 32,850 32,850 32,850 

Capacity (student) 470 470 470 470 470 470 470 470 470 470 

Enrollment 329 293 301 301 298 318 350 357 352 351 

Forest (1997): 
Square Feet 37,363 37,363 37,363 37.363 37,363 37,363 37,363 37,363 37,363 37,363 

Capacity (student) 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 220 

Enrollment 290 315 361 361 377 379 379 400 402 409 

Heywood (1997): 
Square Feet 52,900 52,900 52,900 52,900 52,900 52,900 52,900 52,900 52,900 52,900 

Capacity (student) 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 

Enrollment 365 388 331 331 431 392 390 382 378 380 

Lincoln (1900): 
Square FeeL 44,000 44,000 63,450 63,450 63,450 63,450 63,450 63,450 63,450 63,450 

Capacity (student) 730 730 730 730 730 730 730 730 730 730 

Enrollment 455 463 523 523 616 674 693 705 729 741 

Oakwood (1911): 
Square Feet 26,929 26,929 26,929 26,929 26,929 28,929 26,929 26,929 26,929 26,929 

Capacity (student) 395 395 395 330 330 330 330 330 330 330 

Enrollment 283 254 237 393 280 258 289 288 285 285 

Park Avenue (1914): 
Square Feet 37,900 37,900 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 59,000 

Capacity (student) 330 330 330 330 330 330 330 330 330 330 

Enrollment 272 347 393 393 454 445 485 483 465 446 

Main Street: 
Square Feet 123.768 123.768 123.768 123,768 123,768 123,768 123,768 123,768 123,768 123,768 

Capacity (student) 775 775 775 775 775 775 775 775 775 775 

Enrollment 612 689 741 741 883 950 950 989 1,010 889 

Middle School 
Orange Middle (1925): 64,955 64,955 64,955 64,955 64,955 64,955 64,955 84,955 64,955 64,955 

Square Feet 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 

Capacity (student) 436 416 358 358 532 561 598 620 626 573 

Enrollment 
§en!o[ !:llab §!;boot 

Orange High School (1974): 
Square Feet 111,314 111,314 111,314 111,314 111,314 111,314 111,314 111,314 11,314 11,314 

Capacity (student) 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 

Enrollment 1,083 979 647 647 822 646 846 822 882 833 
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UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES- REQUIRED 

MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES 

11-000-261-XXXX 

• School Facilities 

Project# (s) 

Year 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

Total School Facilities 

*School facilities as defined under EFCFA. 

(N.J.A.C. 6A:26-1.2 and N.J.A.C. 6A:26A-1.3) 

Source: District Records 

N 
0 
00 

$ 

$ 

Park Orange 

Avenue Middle 

1,648 $ 43,103 

1,643 93,237 

30,637 52,714 

53,296 78,376 

39,513 132,957 

45,718 95,861 

93,889 126,489 

58,102 152,065 

59,183 105,995 

45,766 61,350 

429,395 $ 942,147 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

UNAUDITED 

Oakwood Main Lincoln Heywood 

Avenue Street Avenue Avenue 

$ 16,257 $ 43,828 $ 15,340 $ 49,400 

37,891 33,852 10,630 59,987 

46,024 35,850 13,138 80,133 

18,165 62,455 51,512 88,976 

28,303 145,480 52,014 55,493 

49,946 54,356 63,610 40,031 

69,414 67,868 56,604 62,592 

40,741 59,932 49,024 70,843 

24,850 67,584 54,698 49,275 

49,414 51,911 65,628 33,539 

$ 381,005 $ 623,116 $ 432,198 $ 590,269 

J-19 

Forest Cleveland Orange High 

Street Street Central School Total 

$ 23,463 s 13,999 s 3,862 $ 68,233 $ 279,133 

35,491 25,605 21 ,451 77,760 397,547 

16,509 20,407 30,031 112,309 437,752 

27,826 26,579 38 ,171 208,749 654,105 

72,371 44,971 38,71'3 213,016 822,891 

35,666 21,793 53,453 205,335 665,769 

73,835 23, 110 40,794 138,018 752,613 

68,618 27,495 24,733 121,155 672,708 

32,404 32,671 44,343 170,080 641,083 

41,255 23,267 25,491 164,707 562,328 

$ 427,438 $ 259,897 s 321 ,102 $ 1,479,362 $ 5,885,929 



CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

School Package Policy: 
Property: 

Real and Personal Property 
Extra Expense 
Valuable Papers 
Demolition and Increased Cost of Construction 
Earthquake 
Terrorism 
All Flood Zones 
Special Flood Hazard Area Per Occurrence 

Per Building Contents 

Electronic Data Processing 

Boiler and Machinery: 
Equipment Breakdown 
Blanket Faithful Performance 
Forgery and Alteration 
Money and Securities (In/Out) 
Money Orders/Counterfeit 
Computer Fraud 
Assistant Business Administrator 
Board Secretary 
Treasurer 

Comprehensive General Liability: 
General Liability 
General Liability including Student Accident 
Student Accident: 

Basic/Sports/Football K-12 
Catastrophe- Cash K-12 

Automobile 

School Leaders Errors and Omissions: 
Coverage A 
Coverage B 

Source: District Records . 

.. 

JUNE 30, 2018 
Unaudited 

Coverage 

$ 500,000 
50,000,000 
10,000,000 
25,000,000 
50,000,000 

1,000,000 
75,000,000 
25,000,000 

225,000 

100,000,000 
500,000 

25,000 
25,000 
25,000 
25,000 

400,000 
400,000 
400,000 

11,000,000 
11,000,000 

5,025,000 

1,000,000 

11 ,000,000 

1,000,000 
150,000 

Deductible 

$ 10,000 
10,000 
10,000 

10,000 
500,000 
500,000 

1,000 

5,000 
1,000 

500 
500 
500 
500 

1,000 
1,000 
1,000 

1,000 

5,000 
5,000 
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SAMUEL KLEIN AND CoMPANY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

550 BROAD STREET, 11TH FLOOR 

NEWARK, NJ 07102-9969 

PHONE (973) 624-6100 

FAX (973) 624-6101 

36 WEST MAIN STREET, SUITE 303 

FREEHOLD, NJ 07728-2291 

PHONE (732) 780-2600 

FAX (732) 780-1030 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

City of Orange Township .School District 
County of Essex 
Orange, New Jersey 07050 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School 
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
Board of Education of the City of Orange Township School District in the County of Essex, State of New 
Jersey, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City of Orange Township Board of Education's basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated February 25, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Orange Township 
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion ori the effectiveness of the City of Orange 
Township School District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City of Orange Township School District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance 
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 

M EMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board of Education of the City of Orange 
Township School District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as 
prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing , and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Newark, New Jersey 
February 25, 2019 

WALTER P. RYGLICKI 
Licensed Public School Accountant #845 

~::::!ft~~ NY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 
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SAMUEL KLEIN .AND COMPANY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

550 BROAD STREET, 11TH FLOOR 

NEWARK, NJ 07102-9969 

PHONE (973) 624-0100 

r"'AX <973l 624-6101 

36 WEST MAIN STREET, SuiTE 303 

FREEHOLD, NJ 07728-2291 

PHONE (732) 780-2600 

FAX (732) 780-1030 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE 
PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NJOMB 15-08 

The Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

City of Orange Township School District 
County of Essex 
Orange, New Jersey 07050 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program 

We have audited .the City of Orange Township Board of Education's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant 
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District's major federal 
and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The City of Orange Township School District's major 
federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs_ · 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations contracts and grants 
applicable to its federal and state programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Orange Township Board of 
Education's major federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the New Jersey 
State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School 
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey and New Jersey OMS's Circulars 15-08, Single Audit 
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid (NJOMB 15-08). Those standards, 
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Orange Township Board of Education's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our unmodified opinion on compliance for each 
major federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of 
Orange Township Board of Education's compliance. 

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program 

In our opinion, the City of Orange Township Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the City of Orange Township Board of Education is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Orange Township 
Board of Education's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct 
and material effect on each major federal and state program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal and state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Orange Township Board of Education's internal control 
over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
and state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal and state program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 

Purpose of Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Newark, New Jersey 
February 25, 2019 

w~G-~~ 
WALTER P. RYGLICKI 

Licensed Public School Accountant #845 
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Jl,l 
cny OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCH!OULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THe: FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

R41P.)'m41nl 
Feden!ll FecMtlll Grw1tor6tate ca,_,. Tolol ol BIII•I'IU JtJIW!I 30, 20178 

Fdll!rlltCr-~n,_Tllf(uJ~GtllfltOt( CFDA FAIN ""'loci 
_,. 
~ Balance (WallcDvef) """' Budget•ry PnorYeer !A=U"" OtferrM 0\lelo 

emt:I!Dll~ - - - - E!!!m l! June 30 2017 ~ - ~ - ..lll!!!!m... RecaWablel .ln!!llo!. -U.S,.Dipildrcnull ar'Ed~!ian: 
Genen,l Fund: 

Medlc.lre AuiManca P~Ugram (SEMI) ~.778.1 1805f'oU5MAP NIA $ 128,819 7101117-6f.Ml/18 s • s 128,118 $ 128,818 
Medfc.are Au&ltance PJUgrem (SEMI) a3,778.1 170SNJSMAP NIA 22&,503 7.1>1116-6130117 (12.1144) 12.044 
.-mA- Mllolilc:l.nl At$111:&.1'011 Prcr;tam (IEUl) 83.778.1 11105N.J5MAP NIA 104,483 710111~15 104,483 ~ 

Total Gen8f8.1 Fund 82,439 ------;40,ii3 128,8111 ~ 

u.s. Department or Educ.atlon P._.... 
ll'lrou_9f\ !il.&reQii'p1111MI'II.aJE.d~~ 

5f*M1 ~Fund: 
TlU• I- Sc;hoOf lmp:mcm.,..., P,n I. 84.D10A &010At50030 Nel&mac-17 1,194,420 7Kl1/15-lr.KJI17 (552,410) 564,1&7 (2,972) 8,785 
l1Ue I • 6choollmpfDYOfMIIl. Part A 14.010A. S010A150030 NClB-IQOCI(-16 2.l78,o434 7.01/1i-t11301'18 11,331 11,831 
nu.r- 5c:hooll"1'fDYIHMI\I. Plrt A IW.010A S010A150Gl0 Nel&JDD~X-15 2,079,206 7101114-1130115 33,948 33,1M8 
1liJe I· 6choollmprowfrMIN. P&lt A &4.010A S010AtS0030 NCl.S-)QIXX-14 1,808,899 7101/13-III"JJf14 2,222 2,222 
Tltle f. School!~ PMI A &4,010A IS01DA150I:UO NCLS-xxxx·18 2,2611,516 7101117~18 1,157,218 2,1811,352 (212.136) 
T11eUA &U87A 5387A1S00:28 NCLS-xxxx-17 310,015 710111a.er.»'t7 (300,708) 310,085 3,386 
Tille IIA 84.387A 1&367A150021 NCLS-XXXX·18 378,-423 7101/1~145 30,488 30,418 
TltleUA 84.387A 5367 A 1 !OOle NCl.B-XIOOC-15 331,1IKI 7101114-8130/16 g,707 9,707 
Tille IIA 14.387A S367A1!0029 HCl.&KDJC-18 288,801 7101/17~18 205,304 277,784 (12,430) 
Trll• Ill Language 94 .3MA S38SA1!100>0 NCl.B-xaDol:-17 143,832 7101/1&-8130117 (142,220) 143.032 1 .... 
Tltle Ill LangLHige 84 ,365A .,.,...,- NCL&xxxx·16 141,283 7101/15-8130/16 1,438 1."36 
Tille Ill Languag• 94.365A 6305A1!100>0 NCLB-xxxx-15 183,711 7J01/1+6r.MJ/15 4,2011 4,200 
TIUe Ill Language 94.3MA S3&SA 1 $00)0 NCL&XXXJC.o18 113,1130 7101/17~18 88,537 113,571 (27,03<) 
THie Ill Immigrant 94,365A S385A 150030 Nel&IOOIX-18 112. ... 7101115o&r.S0/16 • TKtetutmmlgrant 84,365A S38SA1600)(1 NCl.B-XXICC-17 33,056 7,101/1e-er.J0/17 (31,483) 33,955 ..... 
Tltlellllmmlgranl ........ S305A150030 NCLB-xxxx-18 21,546 7.01/17-4130/18 10,000 27,!39 (17,839) 
TlllfiV,PartA 84,287C S287C150030 NCl.B-lOCXlC-18 2S,2S7 71D't117-erJ0/18 12,828 18,142 (5,61<4) 
TIUeiV,PartB &4,287C S287C150030 NC~XXXX·16 5411,888 11101/15-&'31116 ot7,685 1,8711 47,885 1,879 
TrUtiV,PartB 84.287C S287C150030 NCLB-xxxx-17 5411,888 IW111&-81'31/17 (>03,975) zTB,1n 4,506 (29,304) 
Tille IV,PartB 84.287C &217C1500SO NCl.B-UXI(-18 5-411,888 lill01/17~1118 527,955 (527,1155) 
I.O.EA Part 8 • 8u1c R-vultr 04027 HOZ7A150100 NCl.B-xxxx-17 1,321,250 7101116-e130!'17 (438,094) 460,890 12,5118 
I.D.EA Part 8 • 8ulc R~lar &4-027 H027A150100 IOEJt...lltJXX-15 1,303,489 7101114--6130115 837 837 
I,D.EA Part 8 • Balle R-autar 04,027 H027A150100 IOEA-.IOOCX-18 1,354,159 7101/17-er.:JW18 713,485 1,354,079 (570,814) 
ID£A. P1ct 8 • Baatc Pntldloof 94.027 H027A150100 NClB-xxxx·18 -48,428 7101/17-IIJW18 ...... 43,687 (23,002) 
ID.EAPactB·B .. IcPn~ 04,027 H027At50100 NClB-IOCOt-17 48,0611 71DtltMQW17 (38,835) :00,1135 
I.D.E.A.. Part B- Balk PrHChool 94.027 H027A150100 ~DIOI'-16 -45,810 71DIIts-6"30/te m m 
Racelolhe TOP &U13A 8413A120008 NIA 178,2111 1Wtl12-11'31/13 3,1)41 ~ 

TUI Cpedal A.-wrNI FW'Id ,1,867,664~ ot .t55,8111 4,6J8,363 ~ 142.&27 i1.-t21.~ 28,056 

U,6 , Departmenl ot Agt1cult11n1 PUUO.Through 
Slate Dep1rtmenl o( Agrleulturw: 

Enttrpdla Fund: 
National School Lunch Ptogn1m 10,655 18181NJ304NJ10VII "'' 1,809,044 7101117-813(1/18 1.~.175 1,809,044 (348 .... 1 
National SchoollJ.Indl Pnlgt11m 10.555 17181NJ304NJ1011t NJA 1,705,728 7101/18-8130117 (135,115) 135,115 
Natlooal School Lunch Progt11m (F8) 10.555 17181NJ304NJ1081 Nl~ 411,788 710111a.at30117 (3,2BS) 3,205 
tlllll~• 1 5iWIC!ILuncl!PfDQt~m(F8) 10.555 18181NJ304NJ10119 NIA 85,137 71D1117-1130118 54,667 85,137 (10,570) 
u.s DA Commodlllea Program 10.550 18161 NJ304NJ 1099 '"' ~.501 7101117-8130118 33,501 283,501 
Fl\llb "ICI-" VI\Jel.lti!n Prcgru~ 10.582 17181NJ304NJ10IKI NIA 0,932 710111&-e/30/17 (1,145) 1,145 
Fruita •nd Vagltablu Prognillm 10582 18181NJ304NJ10119 NtA ...... 7101117-81)(){18 58,&05 58,605 
Child and Adult Food Progrwm 10.688 17181N.D04NJ10119 '"' 138,5),8 7101/18-8r.M)/17 (24,800) 24,106 
Child and Adult Food Pmgmn 10,588 111181NJ304NJ1091 >ItA 1&3,344 7101117-8130118 13V,6l3 163,344 (23,711) 
Olhtr FIKitn•l Aid Program 171111NJ304NJ1M Uo'A. to.~ 710111&-er.JOI17 (1,805) 1,805 
Olhtr FHen~l Aid Pfogn~m 11161NJ304NJ10H "'' 11,758 7101117-8130111 5,1571 11,758 (3.007) 
School SnKk Pmgn11m 10,SS> 181111NJ304NJ10t9 NIA 43,028 7101117-er.JOftB 3<4,776 43,028 (0,252) 
School 6nKk Program 10553 17181NJ304NJ1019 "" 111,N3 71011111-8130117 (3,313) 3,313 
School Brwakfut ~ 10,553 18181 NJl04NJ 1 019 NIA 8811,022 7101117-er.MJI18 534,075 8811,022 (1:14,047) 
School Sruldut Program 10.553 17181NJ304HJ1019 ' " A 1121,1111 7101111-8130117 ~·204! 00.204 

Total EntelpftM Fund E:19,873) --- 2,7V5,876 ),103.439 - -- --- (527,4?6) 

TotU F.da,.,. A,.-.~r,s, Fund .. (1.784.7M) ~ .. 7.11i2,165 1 7,771,621 s poe.srn $ 142,127 $ (1,953.864) $ • ~ 

St• I~J-r'lff"i ra«nlo~ts afupt~~etOfaW..r•b af\dfln•nci~ 1..~ 

~ _, 
01 



Gnml or Slate Awarll Grant Period 
S!Q!o Grnn!S!flpmcmm nre Pmiect Number Ml2!!!!l fl2!!l Ig_ 

Stale Departmerlt o1 Education: 
General Fund: 

Equalization Aid 18-495-034-5120~78 s 62,244,876 7J01J17-6130118 
Education Adequacy Aid \B-<95-(0.<..ii2D-043 7,152,931 7101/17-4/J()/18 
Transportation Aid 18-495-034-5120-014 568,151 7101/17.(;130118 
Special Education Aid 18-495-034-5120-089 2,919,794 7101117-4/J()/18 
Security Aid 18-495-034.5120-084 1,858,563 7.C1117..6130118 
Under Adequacy Aid 1 .... 95-034-5120-<)96 265,589 7.()1/17-6130/18 
PARCC Readiness Aid 18-495-034..S12(U)98 49,800 7Al1/17-&"JJ/18 
Per Pupil Gfowth AXf 18-495-034-5120-097 49,800 m1/1MI30/18 
Professional Leeming Community Aid 16-495-034--5120-101 52,570 7.111117~18 

Host District: Support Aid 18~95..0~120-102 40,403 7 J01/17 -6130/18 
Exlr.~ordinary Aid 18-100-034-5120-473 513,839 7101/174130118 
Extraordinary Aid 17·100~-5120-473 604,749 7101/16-6130117 
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions 18-495-034-5094-003 2,846,458 7101/17-6130118 
Reimbu~ TPAF Social Security Contributions 17-495-034-5004..003 2,955,047 7.()1/16-6130117 
TPAF Pension On·Behalf 18-495-034-5094~2 5,582,517 7101/17.at30118 
TPAF Medical On·Behalf 18-495-034-5094..002 3,605,629 711)1117-&'30118 
TPAF Long-Tenn OiS&bility Jnsurar)('.8 
On-Behalf 18-495-034-5094-002 14,083 7.1l1117..ai'J0/18 

Total General Fund 

Special Revenue Fund: 
Career Pathways 17E 00006 100,000 3/01115-2128/18 
career Paii'Yways 17E 00006 100,000 3/01117-2128/18 
Career Palhwa)'tl 17E 00006 100,000 3101118-2128/19 
Preschool Educalion Aid 1 .... 95-034-5120-066 10,226,660 71011174'30/18 
Pr•ocnool Educooon '-'d 17 ... 95-034-512~ 10,132,496 7101111Ml/J0117 

TOOII Spedal Revenue Fund 

SLale Departmenl of Agriculture: 
Enlerprise Fund: 

National Sehoollunch Program 17-100-010-l350-023 38,194 7101111Ml/J0117 
National School lunch Program 1 B-1 00..01 0-3350-023 42,180 7101/17-6130/18 

Tolal Enlerprise Fund 

Total State Financial Awards 

less On .Behalf TPAF Sy5lem Contribution 

Total for Stale Financial Anist.ance Major Program Oetermlnatlon 

See aocompanying notes to schedules o( expendilures or aw.uds and financial as5lstance. 

N .... 
0) 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Balance at June 30, 2017 
Deferred 
Inflows 
(Acmuntl Deferred Dual<> CBI/l Budgelary 

~ Revenue Q!!!liQ! ~ Expenditures 

• I • $ 62,244,878 s 62,244,878 
7,152,931 7,152,931 

568,151 568,151 
2,919,794 2,919,794 
1,858,563 1,858,563 

265,589 265,589 
49,800 49,800 
49,800 49,800 
52,570 52,570 
40,403 40,403 

513,639 
(604,749) 604,749 

2,706,672 2,846,458 
(142,059) 142,059 

5,582,517 5,582,517 
3,605,629 3,605,629 

14,063 14,063 ----
~ 87,858,166 87,764,983 

1,442 
, ... on) 100,400 32,667 

67,052 
10,228,951 10,106,953 

514,589 ----
~ 514,589 10,329,351 10,206,672 

(2,807) 2,807 
34,768 42,181 ----

~ 37,595 42,181 ---- ---
I (812,250) ~ ~ $ 98,225,112 s 98,013,836 

9,202,200 

$ 88,811,627 

K_. 

Balance at June 30, 2018 
Deferred MEMO 

Repayment lntergovemmenLal lnllowo/ CumulaUve 
ofPriorVaar (Acc:ounts lnterfund Due to Budgelsry Total 

~ ~ Rpivablel ~ ~ ~ ~ 

s I $ I s s 6,192,261 $ 62,244,876 
729,036 7,152,931 

55,491 568,151 
291,774 2,919,794 
187,637 1,858,563 
27,279 265,589 

148 49,800 
148 49,000 
144 52,570 
109 40,403 

(513,839) 513,839 

(139,786) 2,846,458 

(1153,625) '7,4 ... 027 78,562.m 

1,442 .. 98,062 
(0) 3,656 96,744 

(67,052) 67,052 
514,589 636,587 1,046,000 10,106,953 

(514,589) 

---- (67,052! 636,587 5,098 • 1,0416,000 10,368.811 

!7,393! 42,181 

!7,393! 
. 42,181 --- --- ---- ---- ----

~ ~ s (728,070) ~ ~ .. $ 8,530,027 s 88,973,766 



1. GENERAL 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

JUNE 30, 2018 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include federal 
and state award activity of the Board of Education, City of Orange Township School District. The information 
in these Schedules is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Requlations Part 200, (Uniform Administrative Guidance) and New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance 
Supplement (NJOMB 15-08). The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 (A) to the Board's basic financial 
statements. All federal awards and state financial assistance received directly from federal and state 
agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed-through other government 
agencies, is included on the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance. 

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on the 
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service. fund, which are 
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 1 to the 
Board's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey State Aid/Grant 
Compliance Supplement (NJOMB 15-08), Therefore, some amounts presented in these schedules may differ 
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements. 

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. 
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special 
revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or 
grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting revenue is not recognized 
until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. 

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the 
exception of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current 
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes payments are not 
recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the one or more June 
state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund and capital projects fund are presented 
in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis, which recognizes encumbrances as 
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. 

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $(114,997) for the general 
fund and $36,637 for the special revenue fund. See Note 2 (the Notes to Required Supplementary 
Information) for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the 
general and special revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's 
basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as presented on the following pages. 
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3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Federal State Total 

General Fund $ 128,819 $ 87,651,986 $ 87,780,805 
Special Revenue Fund 4,598,060 10,180,868 14,778,928 
Food Service Fund 3,103,439 42,181 3,145,620 

$7,830,318 ~ 97,875,035 ~ 1 05,705,353 

4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and 
state financial reports. 

5. SCHOOLWIDE PROGRAM FUNDS 

Schoolwide Programs are not separate Federal programs as defined in Title 2, Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR), Part 200 amounts used in Schoolwide Programs are included in the total expenditures of the program 
contributing the funds in the Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards. The following funds by program are 
included in Schoolwide Programs in the District: 

6. OTHER 

Program 

Title I of NCLB 
Title II, Part A, Preparing Training 

and Recruiting High Quality 
Teachers and Principals 

Amount 

$ 1,328,316 

256,515 

$ 1,584,831 

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value 
received and current year distributions, respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions, 
Post Retirement Contributions and TPAF Long-Term Disability Insurance Contributions represents the 
amount paid by the State On-Behalf of the District for the year ended June 30, 2018. TPAF social security 
contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share of social security 
contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2018. In addition, adjustments were made for 
cancellations of encumbrances, refunds and prior accounts payable. 
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7. ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS NOT SUBJECT TO STATE SINGLE AUDIT 

On-Behalf State Programs for TPAF Pension Contribution, TPAF Post-Retirement Medical Benefits 
Contributions and TPAF Long-Term Disability Insurance Contributions are not subject to a State single audit. 
The Schedule of State Financial Assistance provides a reconciliation of State financial assistance reported in 
the District's financial statements and the amount subject to State single audit and major program 
determination. 
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Section 1- Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

1) Material weakness( es) identified? 

2) Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to basic financial 
Statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

1) Material weakness( es) identified? 

2) Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major 
Major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with section Title 2 Part 200 
section .516(a) of the Uniform Guidance? 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number(s) 

10.555 
84.010A 
84.027 

FAIN Numbers 

18161 NJ304N1 099 
501 OA 150030 
H027A150100 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type 8 Programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Unmodified 

Yes No 

Yes None Reported 

Yes _ ..J_ No 

Yes _ ..J_ No 

Yes ..J None Reported 

Unmodified 

Yes _ ..J_ No 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

National School Lunch Program 
Title I 
IDEA, Part 8 

$750,000,00 

Yes _ ..J_ No 
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Section 1- Summary of Auditor's Results 
(Continued) 

State Financial Assistance 

Internal control over major programs: 

1) Material weakness( es) identified) 

2) Significant Deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with NJOMB Circular Letters 
15-08 and 04-04? 

Identification of major programs: 

State Grant Number 

18-495-034-5120-078 
18-495-034-5120-086 
18-495-034-5120-083 
18-495-034-5094-003 
18-495-034-5120-089 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B Programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Yes - "- No 

Yes -"- No 

Unmodified 

Yes - "- No 

Name of State Program or Cluster 

Equalization Aid 
Preschool Education Aid 
Education Adequacy Aid 
TPAF Social Security 
Special Education Aid 

$2,664,049 

-"- Yes No 
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Section II - Financial Statement Audit - Reported Findings 
Under Governmental Auditing Standards 

NONE 

222 



Federal Aid 

NONE 

State Aid 

NONE 

CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Section Ill -Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 
Findings and Questioned Costs 
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CITY OF ORANGE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Section IV- Schedule of Prior Year Findings 

NONE 
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